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LONG-TERM FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

SALES GROWTH

3-5% Annual Organic Growth

10% Annual Growth Including Acquisitions

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Mid-teens Percentage Annual EPS Growth

Free Cash Flow Greater Than or Equal to Net Income

ROCE In 12-15% Range

DIVIDEND

Continued Growth

CREDIT RATINGS

Upper Tier Investment Grade

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

millions of dollars eocept per share amounts 2008 2007 CHANGE

Closing market price per
share

Total return share price change plus dividends

Net sales from continuing operations

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

Percent of sales

Net earnings from continuing operations

Per share

Per share excluding $0.59 Q4 08 restructuring

Net earnings

Per share

Return on capital employed

from continuing operations

Adjusted return on capital excluding Q4 08 restructuring

Dividends per share

35.41

24%

4426

622

14.1%

212

2.82

3.41

313

3.92

11.3%

13.2%

1.26

48.39 27%

2%
4360 2%

673 8%
15.4% 130 bps

325 16%

3.87 27%
3.87 12%

337 7%
4.00 2%

14.1% 280 bps

14.1% 90 bps

1.22 3%

RECONCILIATION OF ADJOSTEO EBITDA WITH THE RELATES OAAP MEASUREMENT NET EARNINOS FROM CONTINOINO OPERATIONS IS PRESENTES ON PACE

REFER TO FOOTNOTES ON PAGE 35 FOR ASSITIONAL INFORMATION



STANLEY

MANAGEMENT LETTER

TO SHAREOWNERS

THE STANLEY WORKS STRENGTH AND FLEXIBILITY IN 2009 AND BEYOND

The state of todays operating environment was almost unthinkable only few years ago At that

time if someone had prognosticated any one of the following conditions they likely would have

been labeled as an extreme pessimist or at least an outlier

Storied financial institutions such as Lehman Brothers Bear Stearns and

Washington Mutual collapsing overnight

Global credit markets essentially seizing up with virtually no access to funds

for those issuers with ratings below upper tier investment grade Central bankers

around the world stepping up with trillions of dollars of liquidity and credit

guarantees

Major currencies gyrating with unimaginable volatility and the U.S dollar

continuing to strengthen in spite of our countrys expanding balance sheet

and growing fiscal deficit

Asset values plummeting at alarming rates The Dow plunging to levels not

seen since 1997 while U.S treasury bills are yielding almost zero

One of the worst inflationary environments since the early 1970s yielding to

sweeping deflationary trend in matter of weeks during the latter part of 2008

Economic growth grinding to halt and then slipping into deep negative

territory with manufacturers unit volumes typically down in double digits

and no clear indication of recovery

The U.S housing market slipping into depression-like conditions with housing

starts dropping from 36 year peak of 2.1 million as recently as years ago

to current level of approximately 500 thousand annualized



Yet this is the world of today In our view this

is world in which strong reality-based com

panies that are well prepared will emerge as

winners and reward their investors This is

world that will place premium on manage

ment teams that operate with agility courage

and common sense Needless to say in this

world the stakes are high just as big winners

will emerge from this tumult losers will be

left in the dust Such dislocation is logical

and common phenomenon which occurs during

recessionary periods however we think that

the magnitude of todays external issues will

amplify this effect by placing severe stresses

and strains on weaker enterprises

At Stanley we view this as time of unparal

leled opportunity Our senior management

team is seasoned with our officers having

been in key leadership positions with Stanley

for an average of 11 years This same team

has been operating the company and reposi

tioning it strategically for many years now

Together we have made considerable progress

and are dealing from position of strength

with respect to our financial condition business

portfolio competitiveness and management

system

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND STABILITY

Robust cash generation has been key feature

of the revitalized Stanley Works Our ability

to generate cash through recessions has been

cycle-tested and notably the two years associ

ated with this latest downturn 07/08 has

been the strongest two year free cash flow

FCFperiod in our history Further during

the ten year period ended December 2008 our

company generated $2.9 billion of FCF or

almost 3x that of the $1.0 billion realized

during the ten preceding years This dramatic

increase was the result of concerted and

sustained effort to extract cash from the

enterprise and reinvest it in areas producing

high cash returns Our success in managing

working capital exemplifies this approach At

year-end 1999 working capital was $702

million Nine years later we closed out the

year with working capital of $731 million

essentially unchanged during period when

the company grew its revenues by over 60%

This passion for sustained cash flow and

asset efficiency has enabled us to reinvest

over $2.8 billion in acquisitions since the

beginning of 2002 while returning $1.2 billion

to shareholders through cash dividends and

share repurchases during the same period

Another important element of Stanleys

financial strength is our long-standing com

mitment to an upper tier investment grade

credit rating During the credit boom we

refused to heed the clarion call to increase

leverage and compromise credit quality This

disciplined conservative financial posture

has served us well as we have enjoyed free

and clear access to short and long term credit

markets at favorable rates Iuring the entire

credit crisis our access to commercial paper

markets has been uninterrupted Further

we were the first industrial company to open

the public issue term debt markets after the

multi-week freeze in the wake of the Lehman

bankruptcy We had been planning to term

out some short term paper at the time and

on September 24 2008 we were able to

successfully open the market and issue $250

million of 5-year notes testament to the

underlying strength of our credit



Liquidity is an additional critical aspect of

our financial strength In February 2008 we

took the precautionary measure of increasing

the size of our liquidity facility from $550

million to $800 million and extended it to

2013 Just last month we renegotiated the

same facility to relax covenant restrictions in

order to ensure full access to funds even

under what we consider to be draconian eco

nomic stress scenarios With $600 million of

unutilized commercial paper capacity $800

million of undrawn bank lines more than

$200 million of cash on hand and the $320

million inflow expected in May 2010 from our

maturing stock purchase agreement we have

approximately $2 billion in excess near term

liquidity With only $200 million of long term

debt maturing between now and year-end

2011 we are very well positioned In fact current

sources of liquidity are equal to 2x all maturing

long term obligations through 2012

Taken as whole this financial strength and

stability affords us the flexibility to avail

ourselves of opportunities that may come our

way as the industries in which we operate

consolidate and weaker or less committed

competitors inevitably retrench

PORTFOLIO POSITIONING

AND COMPETITIVENESS

Although we never predicted the severity or

protracted nature of the economic and housing

market issues we have been preparing for

cyclical downturn in residential construction

for quite some time Our purchase of Best

Access Systems in November 2002 and sub

sequent sale of our residential entry door and

home decor businesses in 2004 marked the

beginnings of methodical progression toward

higher growth more diversified revenue

base with less dependence on Construction

DIY CDIY

Since 2002 we have built our security business

from $300 million in revenue to $1.5 billion

recession-resistant highly profitable segment

representing 43% of Stanleys 2008 total seg

ment profit

We continued to diversify our business portfolio

in 2008 acquiring 13 companies during the

year including two key security related acquisi

tions Sonitrol and GØnØralde Protection with

combined annual revenues of approximately

$200 million Today over quarter of our

security revenue is contractually repetitive

also known as recurring monthly revenue

RMR This in tandem with our large

installed base adds stability In addition

since virtually all of our security revenues

are non-residential we are less tied to the

vagaries of consumer spending cycles We

have identified number of effective ways to

grow this business organically as well as

through acquisitions continued focus on

outstanding customer service together with

product and service innovations give us

confidence that we will continue to gain

share within the large and attractive global

security market

Our industrial activities have expanded as

well and with the emergence of our global

Industrial and Automotive Repair growth

platform the industrial segment today repre

sents 29% of our revenues

From 2002 to 2008 the CDIY business while

growing organically has decreased in relative



size from 59% to 37% of total revenues As

the preeminent global manufacturer of hand

tools with the leading brand highly innovative

products and ubiquitous global distribution

we are well positioned to gain share at time

when weaker franchises are under duress

CDIY while smaller portion of our overall

company today remains vital part of our

future and should enjoy resumption of rapid

revenue and profit growth when its end markets

finally stabilize

very positive outcome of this overall portfolio

transformation has been to reduce our con

centration with large U.S retailers Today

our largest customer represents only 6% of

our revenue versus 22% in 2002 U.S home

centers and mass merchants which accounted

for 40% of our revenues in 2002 comprise

only 13% of total revenue today Another

important benefit of the portfolio shift has

been the geographic diversification of the

company Whereas in 2002 less than 30% of

our revenues were generated from outside

the U.S today nearly 45% of our business is

of that nature We remain underweight in

Asia only 5% of total revenues but we are

investing in that region and expect Asia to be

growth engine for Stanley in the coming years

THE STANLEY FULHLLMENT SYSTEM SFS

SFS is our proprietary management system

and our entire organization lives it every day

SFS is body of processes systems and

structure which creates customer value and

accelerates operating performance improve

ments The foundation of SFS centers on

Transformational Lean common platforms

sales operations planning SOP and

complexity reduction initiatives producing

benefits including shorter lead times lower

costs and inventories service level improve

ments and employee safety benefits We are

utilizing lean value stream mapping and

other continuous improvement techniques to

streamline operations and drive improvements

throughout our supply chain Our SFS initiative

helped to mitigate the substantial impact of

material and energy price inflation experienced

in recent years and has been instrumental in

the improvement in working capital turns

from 4.5x in 2006 to 5.9x in 2008



In 2009 and beyond we plan to further leverage

SFS to better serve our customers enhance

our cash flow and margins as well as provide

scalability to support our growth strategies

FUTURE OF GROWTH

Our long term growth strategy remains

intact We intend to continue to shift the

portfolio away from CDIY and toward our

growth platforms in electronic security

mechanical security and industrial and auto

motive tools as well as intensify our growth

initiatives in infrastructure engineered

healthcare storage and emerging markets

However priority one for 2009 is to protect

our earnings base cash flow and financial

position and thus enable us to continue to

deal from position of strength As the global

economy is now in uncharted territory we

will continuously develop realistic perspec

tives on our end markets and stand ready to

reduce our debt levels and cost structures

accordingly without compromising future

growth prospects We have done that proac

tively in 2008 and in early 2009 and we will

continue to do so as long as necessary In the

short term our acquisition activity will be

minimal unless an opportunity arises of suf

ficient strategic and financial attractiveness

as to justify the partial use of equity in

financing the transaction That said we

anticipate that the next several years will be

ripe with growth opportunities as our various

industries undergo the unavoidable consolidation

that will take place We intend to participate

in that consolidation and fully expect the

Stanley of tomorrow to be an even bigger

stronger and more diverse company

We also continue to be selective relative to

the types of businesses we choose to operate

businesses where brand matters

there is clearly defined customer value

proposition which can be enhanced through

continued innovation and global cost lead

ership is achievable these attributes have

and will continue to allow us to generate

above-average returns We will be dispassionate

in applying these criteria to our portfolio

decisions and are committed to exit those

activities which do not measure up or do not

exhibit the requisite characteristics for long

term growth and profitability



SUMMARY

We are reality-based company with talented team of associates who have worked hard to position

us for success and are ready and able to face the challenges ahead by operating with agility courage

and common sense Now is defining moment in our long and proud history we have been in business

for 166 years and have managed to thrive during the best of times and the worst of times

As always we remain focused on total

shareholder return 2008 marked the 132nd

consecutive year we paid dividend

record that remains unmatched by any

other industrial company on the New York

Stock Exchange

The balance of this report focuses on certain

key elements of our strategy examples of

the successful execution of our diversification

actions new growth opportunities and

tangible benefits resulting from our vari

ous SFS initiatives as well as highlights

of the companys global environmental

sustainability efforts As you read on we are

sure you will note that Stanleys products

arent just to be found in your toolbox

anymore

John Lundgren

Chairman CEO

4difl John Lundgren

Chairman CEO
James Loree

EVP and Chief Operating Officer

James Loree

EVP and Chief Operating Officer

New Britain CT

March 2009
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STANLEY

Moving Forward 2008 and Beyond
In no uncertain terms 2008 was difficult

year
for businesses around the world The global economic downturn presented

businesses with the challenge of reassessing and in some cases reforming almost every aspect of how they do business

in order to remain viable For Stanley this meant remaining committed to diversifying our product portfolio branching

into new markets and focusing on our core strengths Through these actions we are placing ourselves in position

to reduce the effects of the depressed global economy and to be prepared to emerge as stronger more competitive company

Our 2008 and beyond story is depicted by the following sections

Growth and Diversification Stanley Security Solutions Healthcare Solutions Emerging Markets

The Stanley Fulfillment System

The Stanley Brand

Sustainability

II Residential Construction

Commercial Construction

Ii Retail

Healthcare Education Government

Automotive Repair

Industrial Other

Other

STANLEYS PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION STANLEYS GLOBAL END MARKETS

Segment Revenues

2002 2008

nduntrial

13% U.S ResL

Construcilon

$2.2 BILLION

COIY

Segment Profit

$4.4 BILLION

Security

2002 2008

COO lnduntr Security

2002 marked the beginning of the companys diversification strategy Based on 2008 consolidated revenues



GROWTH DIVERSIFICATION

Stanley Security Solutions

In todays world the demand for reliable security products and solutions has never been higher Stanley Security Solutions

SSS with 2008 sales of $1.5 billion 7% increase over 2007 continues to evolve and grow through its Convergent

Electronic Security Solutions CSS and Mechanical Access Solutions MAS businesses An integral part of our security

business growth is our successful acquisition strategy whereby we use proven integration techniques in order to leverage

synergies from acquired companies to meet market needs

ELECTRONIC SECURY

2008 Revenue Mix

MECHANICAL ACCESS

2008 Revenue Mx

11 Hecurring

uT Time and Matenals

Product

Installation

Convergent Electronic Security Solutions CSS

CSS designs installs and services electronic security solutions

It provides real-time security services including video and audio

monitoring access control fire life safety time and attendance

staff protection and host of eServices We integrate these services

to create customized security solutions for our customers

Recurring represents revenues from multm-year service contracts

relat ng to monitor ng maintenance tents and inspectmns eServmceo

and preventat on us ntenance

Builders Hardware

Commercial
Locking Systems

Other Mechanical

Automatic Ooors

Mechanical Access Solutions MAS

MAS is our family of mechanical security solutions Our product

portfolio ranges from automatic doors and commercial locksets to

hardware solutions and is ideally suited for use in schools banks

retail stores hospitals government agencies manufacturing

facilities colleges and universities and utility companies



eS ER VICES

Stanleys eServices are clear competitive advantage for us as

our approach to world-class customer service includes providing

customers with real-time online information to help them operate

their businesses more securely and efficiently Our full portfolio

of eManagement services ranges from helping our customers

with everything from viewing their installation schedules service

repair status alarm incidents fire inspection history and facility

access activity to managing our customers access control systems

or video monitoring services including video alarm verification and

video guard tour Stanley eServices gives our customers secure

online real-time information that adds value and makes their

organizations safer and more secure

Our eServices are linked with an online network providing real-time security information to our customers

LOCAL CUSTOMER TEAMS

We use Local Customer Teams LOTs to bring together members

from each Security Solutions operation creating synergistic rela

tionships to promote cross-selling opportunities to our installed

base and new prospects Since their inception in 2005 LCTs have

generated significant growth by leveraging existing relationships

and coordinating sales activities Through these efforts we ensure

that each potential customer and project is afforded full access to

the breadth and depth of our security service and product offerings

Electronic Protection Services

STANLEY WORKS COMPANY

10

VeoMngo nge

eVideo Escort



TOTAL SECURITY PACKAGE

Stanley Wi-S

Wire ens Technology

GROWTH DWERSHCA11ON

Access Control Infant and Podiatric Stand Alone Electronic Mechan cal Door Locks Messagicg and re and Life Sofety Patiett Security

Protection Locko Staff Protection

MEDICAL FACILITY

We are one of the leading commercial security companies in North America Our combined security portfolio of products and services

provides one-company relationship when it comes to fulfilling our customers mechanical and electronic security needs

Alat Monitoring Time any AttendanceSat en

runAlarmL
Audio Vnr ficat on Auto natic Doors Sern ce

Video Surveillance

System lotte lotion



EXPANSION OF GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

Our security business isnt just increasing its capabilities its also large national and global accounts This expansion will allow us to

increasing its global footprint Through key acquisitions within leverage technologies giving us more well-rounded portfolio of

the past year weve successfully expanded our solutions and services and product offerings as well as multitude of new business

capabilities in new global markets enabling us to better serve opportunities in markets throughout the world

GENERALE DE PROTECTION

Acquired in October 2008 GØnØrale de Protection GdP is one of create Pan-European systems integration and monitoring business

the leading providers of electronic security and monitoring systems Accordingly systems and processes are being established at GdP

and services within France and Belgium With annual revenues of to allow for smooth and efficient integration of future European

approximately $90 million GdP adds audio and video capability acquisitions

to our electronic service platform and will serve as foothold to

ØIu ye

GØprj de

Otroe

BRUXELLES

LILLE

LIEGE

ROUEN

PARIS
REIMS

METZ
OUEST

PARIS PARIS

STRASROURG
RENNES

ORLEANS

NANTES DIJON

ANNECY
ST.JEAN OANGELY

LYON
CLERMONT-FERRAND

BORDEAUX GRENOBLE

TOULOUSE
AIX-EN-PROVENCE

NICE

MONTPELLIER
VITROLLE

PERPIGNAN

GØnØrale de Protection Geographic coverage

Videosurvejllance



VERFEO ELECTROMC SECURFY

GROWTH DflIERSHCATON

SON TROL

Also acquired in 2008 Sonitrol is leading provider of integrated

state-of-the-art intrusion video access and fire and monitoring

security solutions With annual revenues of approximately $110

million in North America Sonitrol enhances our electronic security

portfolio by integrating industry leading verified audio detection

technology into our existing offerings The addition of audio detection

technology allows us to enhance our position as one stop shop for

security needs of schools commercial buildings government offices

and healthcare facilities

13



Healthcare Solutions

Since 2002 Stanley has seen its share of the healthcare market rise substantially Stanley recently formed the Healthcare

Solutions division in recognition of the rapidly expanding healthcare market Building upon its existing healthcare related

operations and 2007 and 2008 acquisitions including InnerSpace and Scan Modul Stanley is well positioned to benefit

from growth in this important market segment

HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS REVENUES

75% COMPOUND
ANNUAL GROWTH RATE

cc

06 07 08 09 ES MATE

TOTAL ANNUAL SALES

IS M8.LION



Pedz Hugs WanderGuard and RoamAlert help protect everyone from infants to the elderly

HEALTH CARE SAFETY SECURITY

Stanleys healthcare related businesses are leaders in providing

safety and security systems that aid in infant protection wire

less communication wander prevention departure alert and

fall management applications with total installation base of

15000 hospitals and senior care facilities worldwide Our Hugs

system protecting newborns from abduction and mismatching and

WanderGuard and RoamAlert systems protecting Alzheimers

patients and the elderly are market leaders and continue to be

the fastest growing Radio Frequency Identification RFID protection

systems in the marketplace And with new products overseas ex

pansion and growing demand for senior care the future of this

business looks bright



InnerSpace medical storage solutions configured to meet the diverse needs of hospital

INNERSPACE STORAGE SYSTEMS

Stanley lnnerSpace Storage Solutions help healthcare professionals

address the concerns of space cost containment employee

efficiency and inventory management Our storage solutions are

tailored to meet the demands of the many diverse clinical depart

ments throughout hospitals in the world of inventory management

SpaceTRAX plus REID is revolutionizing the way hospitals track

control and protect clinical supplies SpaceTRAX plus REID uses

barcode technology that is coupled with web-based inventory

management software to provide real-time inventory information

which helps reduce the financial burden of clinical supply manage

ment and overhead costs



Scan Modul solutions in use throughout European hospitals

SCAN MODUL

We demonstrated our commitment to build global healthcare

solutions platform with the 2008 acquisition of Scan Modul

European counterpart to InnerSpace Scan Modul is market leader

in integrated logistics solutions for hospitals throughout Europe

This synergistic relationship will allow us to leverage technologies

develop and deliver the highest value added solutions With

established distribution in over 20 countries throughout Western

Europe Asia and Australia Scan Modul will bring our engineered

storage business into new markets and combined with InnerSpace

will make us worldwide leader in providing specialty medical

storage solutions



Emerging Markets
Stanleys emerging markets revenues exceeded $350 million in 2008 17% increase over the prior year Continued expansion

into emerging markets primarily through the companys Industrial Automotive Tools businesses such as Facom and

Proto remains one of the companys key growth initiatives The following are examples of our product offerings in

selected high growth regions of the world

STANLEYS

EMERGING MARKETS REVENUES

EMERGING MARKETS

Stanleys commitment to growth within emerging markets has

taken us to the following countries and regions of the world

China Eastern Europe

Taiwan Middle East

Southeast Asia Africa

India Latin America

11% COMPOUND

ANNUAL GROWTH RATE

LI

07

TOTAL ANNUAL SALES

1$ MILLION



CHINA

Stanleys sales in China have doubled in the last three years

driven by growth in our industrial and hydraulic tools and small

but rapidly growing automatic doors business prime example

of one of Stanleys important growth platforms in China is based

upon meeting increasing demand for infrastructure related tools

Stanleys Hydraulic Tools opened plant in China in 2008 and

developed distribution network to meet these needs As an up

and coming technology for China hydraulics is poised to continue

growing for years to come Our
ability

to tap into this market ahead

of the curve leaves us uniquely positioned to be the hydraulic tool

provider of choice throughout China

Stanley Hydraulic Tools at work during recovery efforts after massive May 2008 Chtna earthquake



Russian aircraft mechanic using Facom tools to get the job done

20
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EASTERN EUROPE MIDDLE EAST

Throughout Eastern Europe and the Middle East Stanley continues

to see strong performance and expansion opportunities Facoms

industrial hand tools achieved double-digit growth enhancing its

place as one of the market leaders within these regions 2008 was

also the year Stanley opened its first office in Dubai signaling new

era for Stanley in the Middle East Our operations within these

regions are well positioned for future growth

Facom tools in use at Russian food-canning factory



AL MAKIOUM INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

In 2008 Stanley won contract to outfit the first four buildings

of the new Al Maktoum International Airport in Dubai slated to

become the worlds largest cargo and passenger airport with MAS

security solutions such as hinges locks levers exit devices closers and

Stanley Best patented and interchangeable cylinders and cores

Staney Mechanical Access Solutions patented interchangeable cylinders and cores have served the Dubai International Airport for over decade



Proto tools have been part of the Panama Canal expansion project

LATIN AMERICA

From the worlds largest copper mine in Chile to the oil fields of

Venezuela to the expansion of the Panama Canal and to the ship

repair yards in Argentina one name continues to appear Stanley

Proto Protos strong performance in Latin America combined with our

mechanics tools platform and our specialty automotive tools make

it easy to see why we have increased sales in Latin America by

almost 170% in the past five years



mechanic in Jakarta Indonesia uses Facom tools for cockpit maintenance

SOUTH EAST ASIA

Southeast Asia proved to be fertile market for Stanley demonstrated facilities Diversifying into the growing healthcare industry by

by over 20% growth within the region in 2008 Proto and Facom leveraging the companys InnerSpace business and other health

remain fixtures within Southeast Asias industrial tools market care related product offerings is also strategic focus within this

evidenced by their use in oil rigs power plants and manufacturing region



Staney FufIHment System
The Stanley Fulfillment System SFS Its our transformational operating philosophy the way we do business SFS starts

and ends with the customer With SFS we deliver superior service and value It thrives in the Stanley culture where all

18000 employees are linked to SFS performance objectives It also means reducing cost leveraging new technologies

generating more cash by improving working capital performance and achieving maximum efficiency SFS employs Centers

of Excellence to keep us ahead of the curve goal deployment process that allows us to hit targets and continue growing

And showcase plant initiative to keep all plants on the track towards achieving our SFS related goals In short SFS

means Stanley is delivering like never before
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WORKING CAPTALTURNS

REFER TO PAGE 35 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

FREE CASH FLOW
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Compexity Management

Complexity Management uses techniques to examine existing

processes to identify and eliminate unnecessary activities

to reduce cost and increase productivity Complexity is tolerated

only when it creates customer value

TransformatonaI Lean

Transformational Leant is Stanleys proprietary methodology

used to minimize inventory and overhead by streamlining our

supply chain manufacturing and back-office processes
It is

thoroughly integrated with the other aspects of SFS including

Complexity Management SOP and Common Platforms

STANLEY FULfILMENT SYS

SOP is critical business pr
supply in balance SOP involves tight controls

supply chain through synchronization and rapid response to

demand variations

Common fatforms

SFS involves the development of standardized business

processes and system platforms to reduce costs and provide

scalability to facilitate organic growth and the integration

of acquired companies

25

CUSTOMER
VALUE



SFS in Action

Our tape rule plant in New Britain Connecticut uses SES principles to reform and streamline its manufacturing performance

SHOWCASE PLANT INITIATIVE

Stanleys showcase plant initiative was started as way to get all lean and supplier collaboration Senior management visits the

of our plants working towards full implementation of SFS Each year top ranked sites for an in-depth final evaluation This years top

plants are scored on criteria across seven areas relating to SES scoring plants were Wroclaw Poland New Britain Connecticut

including customer satisfaction quality complexity management and Farmington Connecticut

The following section features three plants that highlight SFS in action through the use of SOP Complexity Management and Transformational Lean



factory worker manages tape measure supply in our Thailand plant

SFS SOP AT WORK THAILAND

Through SES our Thailand plant is working to increase throughput frequencies and inventory overhead management This resulted in

while reducing inventory This is accomplished by reducing complexity 25% reduction in raw materials work in process inventory and

variation and waste in our processes By using fully integrated manufacturing lead times with 9B% fill rate

demand-driven supply model weve improved plant speed shipment



SFS COMPLEXITY MANAGEMENT AT WORK ALLENTOWN PA

When one footprint can yield over 290 quintillion different possibilities to build from that standard template every time This gives us the

its important to keep the process as simple as possible Through ability to rapidly service diverse markets and reduce inventory and

complexity management weve implemented the manufacturing overhead The result 100% fill rates through 20 consecutive quarters

process of Postponement Postponement allows customers to of growth doubling of our working capital turns And 25%

configure their order from standard template which allows us reduction in lead times



Welders in an access technologies plant are given 36O of access to doorframes using the innovative Door Panel Welding Fixture

TRANSFORMATIONAL LEANTM AT WORK FARMINOTON CT

Producing thousands of automatic door solutions year isnt the automation weve reduced cycle times by 5Q% and increased

challenge The challenge is producing them as efficiently as possible weekly production by over 185% without any added labor cost

when no two are alike At our Farmington Connecticut plant Whats more our new process technology allows us to respond

Transformational Lean has helped us redefine the business model quickly to customer changes reducing overtime and lead times

and win market share From 80% manual manufacturing to 80% by 30%



The Stanley Brand
The continued transformation of Stanley would not be complete without reinvigoratIon of one of our most valuable

assets our brand Encompassing family of world-class businesses such as HSM Sonitrol Facom Mac Tools and Proto

the Stanley name is synonymous with durability reliability and quality To continue this relationship with the world Stanley

has developed focused and targeted brand building strategy comprised of initiatives such as multimedia ad campaigns

increased presence in markets throughout North America Europe and Asia and sponsorship deal with NASCAH The

result of this strategy has been 40% increase in brand awareness since 2003

Elliott Sadler driver of the No 19 Stanley Dodge
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Sustainabulity
To be recognized by our stakeholders as sustainable company that publicly demonstrates the responsible

management of environmental social and economic resources

-Vision Statement the Stanley Sustainability Council

Stanleys longstanding commitment to environmental health and safety compliance provides strong foundation for sustainability

Sustainability means meeting present needs without compromising the
ability

of future generations to meet their needs Stanley demonstrated

its top down commitment by forming Sustainability Council to implement track communicate and institutionalize initiatives that drive

environmental social and economic success The Council actively benchmarks with recognized leaders in corporate sustainability to share

best management practices and accelerate our progress

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

In order to minimize our footprint we measure Key Performance Indicators KPIs across our manufacturing distribution and field service

organizations The following three graphs show continuous improvement across three key environmental indicators used to track perfor

mance at our manufacturing and distribution sites
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WASTE MINIMIZATION IS THE TOTAL WEIGHT OF ALL SOLID WASTE STREAMS GENERATED NORMALIZED TO PRODUCTION POUNDS PER 1000 PRODUCTION

ENERGY CONSUMPTION IS THE SUM OF ELECTRICITY AND FUEL USE NORMALIZED TO PRODUCTION BRITISH THERMAL UNIT PER PRODUCTION

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ARE THE SUM OF DIRECT AND INDIRECT AIR EMISSIONS RESULTING FROM THE CONSUMPTION OF FUEL ON SITE AND THE

GENERATION OF ELECTRICITY OFFSITE CONVERTED TO CO2E NORMALIZED TO PRODUCTION POUNDS CO2E PER 1000 PRODUCTION



THE FARMINOTON RIVER POWER PLANT

The Farmington River Power Plant owned by The Stanley Works

is small hydroelectric power station that contributes power to

common grid supporting homes schools and businesses throughout

the state of Connecticut The 30 million kilowatt hours produced

here per year
is equivalent to 750000 gallons of fuel oil

CERTIFICATIONS

Our certifications are our pedigree To date we have achieved some

of the most highly respected certifications in the industry including

the international environmental management system standard ISO

14001 Weve also been recognized by federal regulators in the U.S

EPA Performance Track Mexico Mexico Industria Limpia and

Israel Israel Guardian of the Environment

Stanleys Farmington River Power Plant lies on the scenic Farmington River which runs through central connecticut

CARBON DISCLOSURE PROJECT

The Carbon Disclosure Project COP is an independent not-for-profit

organization that acts as an intermediary between shareholders

and corporations on climate change related issues In our first year

of participation we finished with score of 83 out of 100 232%

ahead of the average
of our top five participating competitors



COMPARSON OF YEAR CUMULATRIE TOTAL RETURN AMONG

THE STANLEY WORKS SP 500 STOCK NDEX AND PEER GROUP

Set forth below is line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the Companys cumulative total shareholder return for the last

five years to that of the Standard Poors 500 Stock Index an index made up of 500 companies including The Stanley Works and the

Peer Group The Peer Group is group of nine companies that serve the same markets the Company serves and many of which compete

with one or more of the Companys product lines Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends

$80

$40

$0 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

The points in the above table are as follows

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Stanley 100.00 135.48 136.20 146.05 143.13 108.55

SP 500 100.00 110.88 116.33 134.70 142.09 89.52

Peer Group 100.00 128.86 129.49 150.84 156.11 105.44

Assumes $100 invested on January 2004 in the Companys common stock SP 500 Index and the Peer Group The Peer Group consists

of the following companies The Black Decker Corporation Cooper Industries Inc Danaher Corporation Illinois Tool Works Inc

Ingersoll-Rand Company Masco Corporation Newell Rubbermaid Inc Snap-On Incorporated and The Sherwin-Williams Company

THE STANLEY WORKS COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE CERTHCATON
ANNUAL CEO CERTIFICATION SECTION 303A.12A

As the Chef Executive Officer of The Stanley Works and as required by Secuon

303A.12a of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual hereby certify that

as of the date hereof am not aware of any violation by the Company of NYSEs Corporate John Lundgren

Governance listing standards other than has been notified to the Exchange pursuant to Chairman CEO

Section 303A.12b and disclosed on Exhibit to the Companys Domestic Company Section May 15 2008

303A Annual Written Affirmation

The Company has filed the certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as ExhibIts 31 ia and 31 ib to Its

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25 2009



Additional Information

COMMON STOCK The Stanley Works common stock is listed on the

New York Stock Exchange under the abbreviated ticker symbol SWK
and is component of the SP 500 Composite Stock Price Index

DIVIDENDS The Stanley Works has an impressive and truly

unique dividend record over the long haul

Our record of annual dividend payments is unmatched by any

industrial company listed on the New York Stock Exchange

132 CONSECUTIVE YEARS

Our quarterly dividend record is the longest of any industrial

company listed on the New York Stock Exchange 455
CONSECUTIVE QUARTERS

Our dividends have increased in each of the past 41 YEARS
and during that same period an investment in Stanley stock

grew at compound annual rate of 11%

DIVIDEDS DOLLARS PER SHARE ADJUSTED TO REFLECT STOCK SPLITSI

1968

$1.26 per share

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR All shareowner

inquiries including transfer-related matters should be directed to

Computershare Investor Services North LaSalle St Chicago

Illinois 60602 Toll-free telephone 888 660-5513 or 312 360-

5292 www.computershare.com

CORPORATE OFFICES The Companys principal corporate

offices are located at 1000 Stanley Drive New Britain CT 06053

860 225-5111

ANNUAL MEETING The annual meeting of The Stanley Works will

be held at 930 a.m Eastern Time on Thursday April 23 2009 at

the Stanley Center For Learning And Innovation 1000 Stanley Drive

New Britain CT formal notice of the meeting together with proxy

statement has been mailed to shareowners with this annual report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS Ernst Young 225 Asylum

Street Hartford Connecticut 06103

FINANCIAL AND INVESTOR COMMUNICATIONS

The Stanley Works investor relations department provides

information to shareowners and the financial community We

encourage inquiries and will provide services which include

Fulfilling requests for annual reports proxy statements

forms 10-0 and 10-K copies of press releases and other

company information

Meetings with securities analysts and fund managers

Contact The Stanley Works investor relations department at

our corporate offices by calling Kate White Director Investor

Relations at 860 827-3833 We make earnings releases

available on-line on the Internet on the day that results are released

to the news media The Stanley Works releases and variety of

shareowner information can be found at

the Companys website www.stanleyworks.com Stanley

shareowners may also call 860 827-3874 to request copy of the

most recent earnings release

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN AND STOCK

PURCHASE PROGRAM Shareowners may invest funds have

dividends automatically reinvested in Stanley common stock and

or make optional cash payments to increase their common stock

investment Inquiries regarding this service should be directed to the

Companys transfer agent Computershare Investor Services at

888 660-5513 or 1312 360-5292

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND

SCORECARD FOOTNOTES

The company believes excluding the 04 2008 after-tax restructuring

and related charges of $47 million $0.59 diluted EPS is better indicator

of operating trends when analyzing EPS ROCE and EBITDA due to

2008
the unusually large magnitude of these charges in relation to the past

years Therefore the company has provided these measures both

including and excluding such charges

2008 I3AAP Diluted EPS is $2.82 The 2008 pro forma Diluted EPS

of $3.41 excludes $0.59 pertaining to the fourth quarter

2008 restructuring and related charges

Free Cash Flow Net cash provided by operating activities

capital expenditures capitalized software In 2008 free cash flow

also excludes income taxes paid on the gain from the CST/berger

divestiture due to the fact the taxes are non-recurring and the

directly
related gross cash proceeds are classified in investing cash

flows Refer to page 16 in the enclosed 10K for the reconciliation of

operating cash flow to free cash flow

Working Capital Turns are computed as year-end working capital

accounts receivable inventory and accounts payable divided by

fourth quarter sales annualized

ROCE is computed as net earnings from continuing operations plus

after-tax interest expense divided by the 13-point average of debt

and equity ROCE as shown in the 2008 Scorecard excludes the

$47 million of after-tax fourth quarter restructuring
and related charges

$0.07
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

John Breen125

Retired former Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer

The Sherwin Williams Company

Patrick Campbell
24

Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

3M Company

Carlos Cardoso

Chairman of the Board

President and Chief Executive Officer

Kennametal Inc
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Virgis Colbert 1.3.5

Retired former Executive Vice President

Miller Brewing Company

Robert Coutts34

Retired former Executive Vice President

Electronic Systems

Lockheed Martin Corporation

Eileen Kraus 12.3

Retired former Chairman

Fleet Bank Connecticut

John Lundgren

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Stanley Works

Marianne Miller Parrs 2.4

Retired former Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

International Paper Company

Lawrence Zimmerman 145

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Xerox Corporation

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Donald Allan Jr

Vtce Pros dent and Chief Financial Offtcer

1999

Jeffrey Ansell

Vice Pies dent and President Consumer Tools Group

1999

Bruce Beatt

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

2000
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Vice President Business Development and

President Convergent Security Solutons

Justin Boswell

Vtce President and Prestdent

Staney Machan ca Soljtions

2000

Jeff Hung-Tse Chen

Vtce President and Presdont Stanley Asa

1903

Hubert Davis Jr

Senior Vice Pres dent Business Transfornation

2000

James Loree

Esecutve Vtce President and Chief Operating Officer

1999

John Lundgren

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

2004

Mark J.Mathieu

Vice President Human Resources

1997
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FORM 10-K

PART

ITEM BUSINESS

1a GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS

General The Stanley Works Stanley or the Company was founded in 1843 by Frederick Stanley

and incorporated in 1852 Stanley is diversified worldwide supplier of tools and engineered solutions for

professional industrial and construction and do-it-yourself use as well as engineered security solutions for

industrial and commercial applications Stanley is brand recognized around the world for quality and value

Net sales from continuing operations
have increased from $2.2 billion in 2002 to $4.4 billion in 2008

reflecting execution of the Companys profitable growth and diversification strategy The growth in net sales

from continuing operations predominantly relates to acquisitions particularly in the Industrial and Security

segments The Company sold the CST/berger business in 2008 and the entry door and home decor businesses

in 2004 along with several other small divestitures over the past few years Results have been recast for these

discontinued operations Refer to Note Acquisitions and Note Discontinued Operations of the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item for discussion of acquisitions and divestitures over the past

three years At January 2009 Stanley employed approximately 18225 people worldwide The Companys

principal executive office is located at 1000 Stanley Drive New Britain Connecticut 06053 and its telephone

number is 860 225-5111

ii Restructuring Activities Information regarding the Companys restructuring activities is incorporated

herein by reference to the material captioned Restructuring Activities in Item and Note Restructuring

and Asset Impairments of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item

1b FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS

Financial information regarding the Company business segments is incorporated herein by reference to the

material captioned Business Segment Results in Item and Note Business Segments and Geographic

Areas of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item

1c NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Companys operations are classified into three business segments Security Industrial and Construction

Do-It-Yourself All segments have significant international operations in developed countries but do not have

large investments that would be subject to expropriation risk in developing countries Fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates affect the U.S dollar translation of international operations in each segment

Security

The Security segment is provider of access and security solutions primarily for retailers educational

financial and healthcare institutions as well as commercial governmental and industrial customers The

Company provides an extensive suite of mechanical and electronic security products and systems and variety

of security services These include security integration systems software related installation maintenance

monitoring services automatic doors door closers exit devices hardware includes hinges gate hardware

cabinet pulls hooks braces and shelf brackets and locking mechanisms Security products are sold primarily

on direct sales basis and in certain instances through third party distributors

Industrial

The Industrial segment manufactures and markets professional industrial and automotive mechanics tools and

storage systems engineered healthcare storage systems hydraulic tools and accessories plumbing heating and

air conditioning tools assembly tools and systems and specialty tools These products are sold to industrial

customers and distributed primarily through third party distributors as well as through direct sales forces

Professional mechanics tools and storage systems include wrenches sockets electronic diagnostic tools tool

boxes and high-density industrial storage and retrieval systems Engineered healthcare storage systems are



customized cabinetry and storage solutions used to store and track clinical supplies Hydraulic tools and

accessories include hand-held hydraulic tools and accessories used by contractors utilities railroads and public

works as well as mounted demolition hammers and compactors designed to work on skid steer loaders mini

excavators backhoes and large excavators Plumbing heating and air conditioning tools include pipe wrenches

pliers press fitting tools and tubing cutters Assembly tools and systems include electric and pneumatic

assembly tools these are high performance precision tools controllers and systems for tightening threaded

fasteners used chiefly by vehicle manufacturers Specialty tools are used for assembling repairing and testing

electronic equipment

Construction DIY

The Construction Do-It-Yourself CDIY segment manufactures and markets hand tools consumer

mechanics tools storage systems pneumatic tools and fasteners These products are sold to professional end

users as well as consumers and are distributed through retailers including home centers mass merchants

hardware stores and retail lumber yards Hand tools include measuring and leveling tools planes hammers

demolition tools knives and blades screwdrivers saws chisels and consumer tackers Consumer mechanics

tools include wrenches and sockets Storage systems include plastic tool boxes and storage units Pneumatic

tools and fasteners include nail guns staplers nails and staples that are used for construction remodeling

furniture making pallet manufacturing and other applications involving the attachment of wooden materials

Competition

The Company competes on the basis of its reputation for product quality its well-known brands its

commitment to customer service strong customer relationships the breadth of its product lines and its

emphasis on product innovation

The Company encounters active competition in all of its businesses from both larger and smaller companies

that offer the same or similar products and services or that produce different products appropriate for the same

uses The Company has large number of competitors however aside from small number of competitors in

the consumer hand tool and consumer hardware businesses who produce range
of products somewhat

comparable to the Companys the majority of its competitors compete only with respect to one or more

individual products or product lines in that segment Certain large customers offer private label brands house

brands that compete across wider spectrum of the Companys CDIY segment product offerings The

Company is one of the largest manufacturers of hand tools in the world The Company is significant

manufacturer of pneumatic fastening tools and related fasteners for the construction furniture and pallet

industries as well as leading manufacturer of hydraulic tools used for heavy construction railroad utilities

and public works The Company also believes that it is among the largest direct providers of access security

integration and alarm monitoring services in North America

Customers

substantial portion of the Companys products are sold to home centers and mass merchants in the U.S and

Europe consolidation of retailers both in North America and abroad has occurred over time While this

consolidation and the domestic and international expansion of these large retailers provide the Company with

opportunities for growth the increasing size and importance of individual customers creates certain degree

of exposure to potential volume loss The loss of certain of the larger home centers or mass merchants as

customers could have material adverse effect on the Company until either such customers were replaced or

the Company made the necessary adjustments to compensate for the loss of business Despite the trend toward

customer consolidation the Company has been able to maintain diversified customer base and has decreased

customer concentration risk over the past years as sales from continuing operations in markets outside of the

home center and mass merchant distribution channels have grown at greater rate through combination of

acquisitions and other efforts to broaden the customer base primarily in the Security and Industrial segments

In this regard sales to the Companys largest customer as percentage of total sales have decreased from 22%

in 2002 to 6% in 2008

Within the Security segment large portion of sales are generated in the retail sector The Security segment

also has significant sales to commercial governmental and educational customers



Raw Materials

The Companys products are manufactured using both ferrous and non-ferrous metals including but not

limited to steel aluminum zinc brass copper and nickel as well as resin Additionally the Company uses

other commodity based materials for components and packaging including but not limited to plastics wood

and other corrugated products The raw materials required are procured globally and available from multiple

sources at competitive prices The Company does not anticipate difficulties in obtaining supplies for any raw

materials or energy
used in its production processes

Backlog

Due to short order cycles and rapid inventory turnover in most of the Companys CDIY and Industrial segment

businesses backlog is generally not considered significant indicator of future performance At February

2009 the Company had approximately $348 million in unfilled orders All of these orders are reasonably

expected to be filled within the current fiscal year As of February 2008 unfilled orders amounted to

S368 million

Patents and Trademarks

No business segment is dependent to any significant degree on patents licenses franchises or concessions

and the loss of these patents licenses franchises or concessions would not have material adverse effect on

any of the business segments The Company owns numerous patents none of which individually is material to

the Companys operations as whole These patents expire at various times over the next 20 years The

Company holds licenses franchises and concessions none of which individually or in the aggregate are

material to the Companys operations as whole These licenses franchises and concessions vary in duration

but generally run from one to 40 years

The Company has numerous trademarks that are used in its businesses worldwide The STANLEY and

STANLEY in notched rectangle design trademarks are material to all three business segments These well-

known trademarks enjoy reputation for quality and value and are among the worlds most trusted brand

names The Companys tagline Make Something Great is the centerpiece of the brand strategy for all

segments The BEST HSM National Sonitrol GdPM and Xmark trademarks are material to the

Security segment LaBounty MAC Mac Tools Prom Vidmar Facom Virax and USAG trademarks

are material to the Industrial segment In the CDIY segment the Bostitch Powerlock Tape Rule Case

Design Powerlock and FatMax family of trademarks are material The terms of these trademarks vary

typically from 10 to 20 years with most trademarks being renewable indefinitely for like terms

Environmental Regulations

The Company is subject to various environmental laws and regulations in the U.S and foreign countries where

it has operations Future laws and regulations are expected to be increasingly stringent and will likely increase

the Companys expenditures related to environmental matters

The Company is party to number of proceedings before federal and state regulatory agencies relating to

environmental remediation Additionally the Company along with many other companies has been named as

potentially responsible party PRP in number of administrative proceedings for the remediation of

various waste sites including fifteen active Superfund sites Current laws potentially impose joint and several

liabilities upon each PRP In assessing its potential liability at these sites the Company has considered the

following whether responsibility is being disputed the terms of existing agreements experience at similar

sites and the Companys volumetric contribution at these sites

The Companys policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and remediation costs for identified sites when

it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated The

amount of liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each

individual site and includes such factors as existing technology presently enacted laws and regulations and

prior experience in remediation of contaminated sites The liabilities recorded do not take into account any

claims for recoveries from insurance or third parties As assessments and remediation progress at individual

sites the amounts recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal



information that becomes available As of January 2009 the Company had reserves of $29 million for

remediation activities associated with Company-owned properties as well as for Superfund sites for losses

that are probable and estimable

The amount recorded for identified contingent liabilities is based on estimates Amounts recorded are reviewed

periodically and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal information that becomes available Actual

costs to be incurred in future periods may vary from the estimates given the inherent uncertainties in

evaluating environmental exposures Subject to the imprecision in estimating future environmental costs the

Company does not expect that any sum it may have to pay in connection with environmental matters in excess

of the amounts recorded will have materially adverse effect on its consolidated financial position results of

operations or liquidity

Employees

At January 2009 the Company had approximately 18225 employees nearly 8900 of whom were employed

in the U.S Approximately 750 U.S employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements negotiated

with 18 different local labor unions who are in turn affiliated with approximately different international

labor unions The majority of the Companys hourly-paid and weekly-paid employees outside the U.S are not

covered by collective bargaining agreements The Companys labor agreements in the U.S expire in 2009

2010 and 2011 There have been no significant interruptions or curtailments of the Companys operations in

recent years due to labor disputes The Company believes that its relationship with its employees is good

1d FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Financial information regarding the Companys geographic areas is incorporated herein by reference to Note

Business Segments and Geographic Areas of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item

1e AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Companys website is located at http//www.Stanleyworks.com This URL is intended to be an inactive

textual reference only It is not intended to be an active hyperlink to our website The information on our

website is not and is not intended to be part of this Form 10-K and is not incorporated into this report by

reference Stanley makes its Forms 10-K 0-Q 8-K and amendments to each available free of charge on its

website as soon as reasonably practicable after filing them with or furnishing them to the U.S Securities and

Exchange Commission

ITEM IA RISK FACTORS

The Company business operations and financial condition are subject to various risks and uncertainties You

should care/lu/v consider the risks and uncertainties described helov together with all of the other influrmation

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including those risks set fbrth under the heading entitled Cautionary

Statements Under the Private Securities Litigation Re/lurm Act of 1995 and in other documents that the

Company files with the US Securities and Exchange Commission be/öre making any investment decision with

respect to its securities If any of the risks or uncertainties actually occur or develop the Companys business

financial condition results of operations and fluture growth prospects
could change Under these circum

stances the trading prices of the Company securities could decline and you could lose all or part of your

investment in the Company securities

I/the current weakness continues in the housing and construction markets in the Americas Europe or Asia

or general recessionary conditions worsen it could have material adverse effect on the Company

business

Approximately 37% of 2008 sales were in the Construction and Do-It-Yourself segment and 29% in the

Industrial segment The Company experienced 10% sales unit volume declines in existing businesses i.e

excluding acquisitions in the fourth quarter of 2008 and 7% in the third quarter primarily in these segments

as the recession spread worldwide The Companys business has been adversely affected by the decline in the

U.S and international economies particularly with respect to housing and general construction markets It is



possible this softness will be prolonged and to the extent it persists there is likely to be an unfavorable impact

on sales earnings and cash flows It is possible the Security segment which thus far has not experienced

significant recession-related volume declines may become more affected if the recessionary impacts permeate

other market sectors particularly construction within the retail sector Further deterioration of these housing

and construction markets and general economic conditions could reduce demand for Company products and

therefore have material adverse effect on sales earnings and cash flows In addition due to current economic

conditions it is possible certain customers credit-worthiness may erode resulting in increased write-offs of

customer receivables

The Company growth and repositioning strategies include acquisitions The Company recent acquisitions

may not further its strategies and the Company may not be able to identify suitable future acquisition

candidates

In 2002 the Company embarked on growth strategy to shift its business portfolio toward favored growth

markets through acquisitions and divestitures and thereby reduce the risk associated with large customer

concentrations The strategy has been advanced over the last several years with the sales of the Companys

CST/berger laser measuring residential entry door and home decor businesses and the acquisition of number

of companies including General de Protection GdP Xmark Corporation Xmark Sonitrol Corporation

Sonitrol HSM Electronic Protection Services Inc HSM Facom S.A Facom National Manufactur

ing Co National Besco Pneumatic Corporation Besco Blick plc Blick Frisco Bay Industries Ltd

Frisco Bay ISR Solutions Inc ISR Security Group Inc Security Group and Best Lock

Corporation and its affiliates Best Access

Although the Company has extensive experience with acquisitions there can be no assurance that recently

acquired companies will be successfully integrated or that anticipated synergies will be realized If the

Company successfully integrates the acquired companies and effectively implements its repositioning strategy

there can be no assurance that its resulting business segments will enjoy continued market acceptance or

profitability

In addition there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully identify suitable future

acquisition candidates negotiate appropriate terms obtain the necessary financing complete the transactions

or successfully integrate the new companies as necessary to continue its growth and repositioning strategies

The Company acquisitions may result in certain risks for its business and operations

The Company has made number of acquisitions in the past three years including but not limited to GdP in

October 2008 Sonitrol and Xmark in July 2008 InnerSpace in July 2007 HSM in January 2007 Besco in

July 2006 and Facom in January 2006 The Company may make additional acquisitions in the future

Acquisitions involve number of risks including

the diversion of Company managements attention and other resources

the incurrence of unexpected liabilities and

the loss of key personnel and clients or customers of acquired companies

Any intangible assets that the Company acquires may have negative effect on its earnings and return oti

capital employed In addition the success of the Companys future acquisitions will depend in part on its

ability to

combine operations

integrate departments systems and procedures and

obtain cost savings and other efficiencies from the acquisitions

Failure to effectively consummate or manage future acquisitions may adversely affect the Companys existing

businesses and harm its operational results The Company is still in the process of integrating the businesses

and operations of GdP Xmark Sonitrol InnerSpace and other acquisitions with its existing businesses and



operations The Company cannot ensure that such integrations will be successfully completed or that all of the

planned synergies will be realized

The Company may incur significant additional indebtedness or issue additional equity securities in

connection with future acquisitions which may restrict the manner in which it conducts business The poten

tial issuance of such securities may limit the Company ability to implement elements of its growth strategy

and may have dilutive effect on earnings

As more fully described in Item and Note Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements of the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item the Company issued $450 million of Enhanced Trust Preferred

Securities through its Trust subsidiary in 2005 the net proceeds of which were used to finance portion of

the acquisitions of Facorn and National In March 2007 the Company completed concurrent offerings of

Floating Rate Equity Units and 5% Senior Notes due 2010 the net proceeds of which were used to finance

portion of the acquisition of HSM In addition the Company has revolving credit agreement expiring in

February 2013 enabling borrowings up to $800 million This agreement includes provisions that allow

designated subsidiaries to borrow up to $250 million in Euros and Pounds Sterling which may be available to

among other things fund acquisitions

The instruments and agreements governing certain of the Companys current indebtedness contain requirements

or restrictive covenants that include among other things

limitation on creating liens on certain property of the Company and its subsidiaries

maintenance of specified financial ratios Failure to maintain such ratios could adversely affect

further access to liquidity and require the Company to pay all interest coupons on certain debt

securities through the issuance of common stock before making further dividend payments on its

common shares outstanding

restriction on entering into certain sale-leaseback transactions and

customary events of default If an event of default occurs and is continuing the Company might be

required to repay
all amounts outstanding under the respective instrument or agreement

Future instruments and agreements governing indebtedness may impose other restrictive conditions or

covenants Such covenants could restrict the Company in the manner in which it conducts business and

operations as well as in the pursuit of its growth and repositioning strategies

The Company results of operations could be negatively impacted by inflationary or deflationary economic

conditions that affect the cost of raw materials freight energy labor and sourced finished goods

The Companys products are manufactured of both ferrous and non-ferrous metals including but not limited to

steel aluminum zinc brass nickel and copper as well as resin Additionally the Company uses other

commodity based materials for components and packaging including but not limited to plastics wood and

other corrugated products The Companys cost base also reflects significant elements for freight energy and

labor The Company also sources certain finished goods directly from vendors As described in more detail in

Item hereto the Company has been negatively impacted by inflation in recent years
If the Company is

unable to mitigate any inflationary increases through various customer pricing actions and cost reduction

initiatives its profitability may be adversely affected Conversely in the event there is deflation the Company

may experience pressure
from its customers to reduce prices there can be no assurance that the Company

would be able to reduce its cost base through negotiations with suppliers or other measures to offset any

such price concessions which could adversely impact results of operations and cash flows

Tightening of capital and credit markets could adversely affect the Company by limiting the Company or

its customers ability to borrow or otherwise obtain cash

The Companys growth plans are dependent on among other things the availability of funding to support

corporate initiatives and complete appropriate acquisitions and the ability to increase sales of existing product



lines While the Company has not encountered financing difficulties to date the capital and credit markets

have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruption in late 2008 and early 2009 which could make it

more difficult for the Company to borrow or otherwise obtain the cash required for significant new corporate

initiatives and acquisitions In addition there could be number of follow-on effects from the credit crisis on

the Companys business including insolvency of key suppliers resulting in product delays inability of

customers to obtain credit to finance purchases of the Companys products and/or customer insolvencies and

failure of derivative counterparties and other financial institutions negatively impacting the Companys treasury

operations

The company is exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates which could nega

tively impact profitability

Exposure to foreign currency risk results because the Company through its global operations enters into

transactions and makes investments denominated in multiple currencies The Companys predominant expo
sures are in European Canadian British and Asian currencies including the Chinese Renminbi RMB In

preparing its financial statements for foreign operations with functional currencies other than the U.S dollar

asset and liability accounts are translated at current exchange rates and income and expenses are translated

using weighted-average exchange rates With respect to the effects on translated earnings if the U.S dollar

strengthens relative to local currencies the Companys earnings could be negatively impacted This occurred in

the latter half of 2008 and is expected to persist in 2009 Although the Company utilizes risk management

tools including hedging as it deems appropriate to mitigate portion of potential market fluctuations in

foreign currencies there can be no assurance that such measures will result in all market fluctuation exposure

being eliminated The Company does not make practice of hedging its non-U.S dollar earnings

The Company sources many products from China and other Asian low-cost countries for resale in other

regions To the extent the RMB or other currencies appreciate with respect to the U.S dollar the Company

may experience cost increases on such purchases While the 7% appreciation of the RMB which occurred in

both 2007 and 2008 has not generated material cost increases for products sourced from China further

significant appreciation of the RMB or other currencies in countries where the Company sources product could

adversely impact profitability The Company may not be successful at implementing customer pricing or other

actions in an effort to mitigate the related cost increases and thus its profitability may be adversely impacted

The Companys business is subject to risks associated with sourcing and manufacturing overseas

The Company imports large quantities of finished goods components and raw materials Substantially all of

its import operations are subject to customs requirements and to tariffs and quotas set by governments through

mutual agreements bilateral actions or in some cases unilateral action In addition the countries in which the

Companys products and materials are manufactured or imported may from time to time impose additional

quotas duties tariffs or other restrictions on its imports including restrictions on manufacturing operations or

adversely modify existing restrictions Imports are also subject to unpredictable foreign currency
variation

which may increase the Companys cost of goods sold Adverse changes in these import costs and restrictions

or the Companys suppliers failure to comply with customs regulations or similar laws could harm the

Companys business

The Companys operations are also subject to the effects of international trade agreements and regulations such

as the North American Free Trade Agreement and the activities and regulations of the World Trade

Organization Although these trade agreements generally have positive effects on trade liberalization sourcing

flexibility and cost of goods by reducing or eliminating the duties and/or quotas assessed on products

manufactured in particular country trade agreements can also impose requirements that adversely affect the

Companys business such as setting quotas on products that may be imported from particular country into

key markets such as the U.S or the European Union or make it easier for other companies to compete by

eliminating restrictions on products from countries where the Companys competitors source products

The Companys ability to import products in timely and cost-effective manner may also be affected by

conditions at ports or issues that otherwise affect transportation and warehousing providers such as port and



shipping capacity labor disputes severe weather or increased homeland security requirements in the U.S and

other countries These issues could delay importation of products or require the Company to locate alternative

ports or warehousing providers to avoid disruption to customers These alternatives may not be available on

short notice or could result in higher transit costs which could have an adverse impact on the Companys
business and financial condition

Large customer concentrations and related customer inventory adjustments may negatively impact sales

results of operations and cash flows

The Company has certain significant customers particularly home centers and major retailers although no one

customer represents more than 10% of consolidated net sales The loss or material reduction of business from

or the lack of success of sales initiatives for the Companys products related to any such significant customer

could have material adverse impact on the Companys results of operations and cash flows

In addition unanticipated inventory adjustments by these customers can have negative impact on sales For

example severe inventory adjustments pertaining to reducing the number of weeks supply on hand taken by

certain large North American home center customers in December 2005 negatively impacted sales by

approximately $30 million versus normal levels Significant impacts from customer inventory adjustments may
re-occur in the future

Customer consolidation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business

substantial portion of the Companys products in the CDIY and Industrial segments are sold through home

centers and mass merchant distribution channels consolidation of retailers in both North America and

abroad has occurred over time and the increasing size and importance of individual customers creates risk of

exposure to potential volume loss The loss of certain larger home centers as customers would have material

adverse effect on the Companys business until either such customers were replaced or the Company made the

necessary adjustments to compensate for the loss of business

If the Company were required to write down all or part of its goodwill indefinite-lived trade names or other

definite-lived intangible assets its net income and net worth could be materially adversely afftcted

As result of acquisitions the Company has $1747 billion of goodwill $300 million of indefinite-lived trade

names and $557 million of definite-lived intangible assets recorded on its Consolidated Balance Sheet at

January 2009 The Company is required to periodically at least annually determine if its goodwill or

indefinite-lived trade names have become impaired in which case it would write down the impaired portion of

the intangible asset The definite-lived intangible assets including customer relationships are amortized over

their estimated useful lives such assets are also evaluated for impairment when appropriate Impairment of

intangible assets may be triggered by developments outside of the Companys control such as worsening

economic conditions technological change intensified competition or other matters causing decline in

expected future cash flows

Income tax payments may ultimately differ from amounts currently recorded by the Company Future tax

law changes may materially increase the Companys prospective income tax expense

The Company is subject to income taxation in the U.S as well as numerous foreign jurisdictions Judgment is

required in determining the Companys worldwide income tax provision and accordingly there are many
transactions and computations for which the final income tax determination is uncertain The Company is

routinely audited by income tax authorities in many tax jurisdictions Although management believes the

recorded tax estimates are reasonable the ultimate outcome from any audit or related litigation could be

materially different from amounts reflected in the Companys income tax provisions and accruals Future

settlements of income tax audits may have material effect on earnings between the period of initial

recognition of tax estimates in the financial statements and the point of ultimate tax audit settlement

Additionally it is possible that future income tax legislation may be enacted that could have material impact

on the Companys worldwide income tax provision beginning with the period that such legislation becomes



effective Also while reduction in statutory rates would result in favorable impact on future net earnings it

would require an initial write down of any deferred tax assets in the related jurisdiction

The Company failure to continue to successfully avoid manage defend litigate and accrue for claims and

litigation could negatively impact its results of operations or cash flows

As described in further detail in Items and and Note Contingencies of the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements in Item the Company is exposed to and becomes involved in various litigation matters

arising out of the ordinary routine conduct of its business including from time to time actual or threatened

litigation relating to such items as commercial transactions product liability workers compensation the

Companys distributors and franchisees intellectual property claims regulatory actions and envi ron mental

matters There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to successfully avoid manage

and defend such matters In addition given the inherent uncertainties in evaluating certain exposures actual

costs to be incurred in future periods may vary from the Companys estimates for such contingent liabilities

The Iompany brands are important assets of its businesses and violation of its trademark rights by

imitators or the failure of its licensees or vendors to comply with the Company product quality manufac

turing requirements marketing standards and other requirements could negatively impact revenues and

brand reputation

The Companys trademarks enjoy reputation for quality and value and are important to its success and

competitive position Unauthorized use of the Companys trademark rights may not only erode sales of the

Companys products but may also cause significant damage to its brand name and reputation interfere with its

ability to effectively represent the Company to its customers contractors suppliers and/or licensees and

increase litigation costs Similarly failure by licensees or vendors to adhere to the Companys standards of

quality and other contractual requirements could result in loss of revenue increased litigation and/or damage

to the Companys reputation and business There can be no assurance that the Companys on-going effort to

protect its brand and trademark rights and ensure compliance with its licensing and vendor agreements will

prevent all violations

Successful sales and marketing efforts depend on the Company ability to recruit and retain qualified

employees

The success of the Companys efforts to grow its business depends on the contributions and abilities of key

executives its sales force and other personnel including the ability of its sales force to adapt to any changes

made in the sales organization and achieve adequate customer coverage The Company must therefore continue

to recruit retain and motivate management sales and other personnel sufficiently to maintain its current

business and support its projected growth shortage of these key employees might jeopardize the Companys

ability to implement its growth strategy

The Company faces active competition and if it does not compete effectively its business may suffeit

The Company faces active competition and resulting pricing pressures
The Companys products compete on

the basis of among other things its reputation for product quality its well-known brands price innovation

and customer service capabilities The Company competes with both larger and smaller companies that offer

the same or similar products and services or that produce different products appropriate for the same uses

These companies are often located in countries such as China Taiwan and India where labor and other

production costs are substantially lower than in the U.S Canada and Western Europe Also certain large

customers offer house brands that compete with some of the Companys product offerings as lower-cost

alternative To remain profitable and defend market share the Company must maintain competitive cost

structure develop new products and services respond to competitor innovations and enhance its existing

products in timely manner The Company may not be able to compete effectively on all of these fronts and

with all of its competitors and the failure to do so could have material adverse effect on its sales and profit

margins



The Stanley Fulfillment System SFS is continuous operational improvement process applied to many

aspects of the Companys business such as procurement quality in manufacturing maximizing customer fill

rates integrating acquisitions and other key business processes In the event the Company is not successful in

effectively applying the SFS disciplines to its key business processes its ability to compete and future earnings

could be adversely affected

In addition the Company may have to reduce prices on its products and services or make other concessions

to stay competitive and retain market share The Company engages in restructuring actions sometimes

entailing shifts of production to low-cost countries as part of its efforts to maintain competitive cost

structure If the Company does not execute restructuring actions well its ability to meet customer demand may

decline or earnings may otherwise be adversely impacted similarly if such efforts to reform the cost structure

are delayed relative to competitors or other market factors the Company may lose market share and profits

Tue performance of the Company may suffrr from business disruptions associated with information

technology system implementations or catastrophic losses affecting distribution centers and other facilities

The Company relies heavily on computer systems to manage and operate its businesses and record and

process transactions Computer systems are important to production planning customer service and order

fulfillment among other business-critical processes Consistent and efficient operation of the computer

hardware and software systems is imperative to the successful sales and earnings performance of the various

businesses in many countries

Despite efforts to prevent such situations the Companys systems may be affected by damage or interruption

front among other causes power outages computer viruses or security breaches Computer hardware and

storage equipment that is integral to efficient operations such as e-mail telephone and other functionality is

concentrated in certain physical locations in the various continents in which the Company operates Manage

ment believes it has effective disaster recovery plans and that it is unlikely there would be more than short-

lived disruption to its computer and communication systems due to these physical concentrations of equipment

or from potential occurrences of damage and interruption However it is reasonably possible that results could

be adversely impacted if equipment outages were prolonged due to an unusually serious event In addition the

Company is planning system conversions to SAP to provide common platform across most of its businesses

The implementations from legacy systems to SAP will occur in carefully managed stages over period of

several years in the Americas and ultimately thereafter in Europe and Asia Management believes the planned

system conversions are cost-beneficial and will further enhance productivity in its operations There can be no

assurances that expected expense synergies will be achieved or that there will not be delays to the expected

timing It is possible the costs to complete the system conversions may exceed current expectations and that

significant costs may be incurred that will require immediate expense recognition as opposed to capitalization

The risk of disruption to key operations is increased when complex system changes such as the SAP

conversions are undertaken If systems fail to function effectively or become damaged operational delays may

ensue and the Company may be forced to make significant expenditures to remedy such issues Any

significant disruption in the Companys computer operations could have material adverse impact on its

business and results of operations

The Companys operations are significantly dependent on infrastructure notably certain distribution centers

and security alarm monitoring facilities which are concentrated in various geographic locations If any of these

were to experience catastrophic loss such as fire or flood it could disrupt operations delay production

shipments and revenue and result in large expenses to repair or replace the facility The Company maintains

business interruption insurance but it may not fully protect the company against all adverse effects that could

result from significant disruptions
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If the investments in employee benefit plans do not perform as expected the Company may have to contrib

ute additional amounts to these plans which would otherwise be available to cover operating and other

expenses Certain ilLS employee benefit plan expense is affected by the market value of the Company

common stock

As described in further detail in Note Employee Benefit Plans of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements in Item the Company sponsors pension and other post-retirement defined benefit plans as well

as an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ESOP under which the primary U.S defined contribution and

401k plans are funded The Companys defined benefit plan assets are currently invested in equity securities

bonds and other fixed income securities and money market instruments The Companys funding policy is to

contribute amounts determined aimually on an actuarial basis to provide for current and future benefits in

accordance with applicable law which require among other things that the Company make cash contributions

to under-funded pension plans The Company expects to contribute approximately $20 million to its pension

and other post-retirement defined benefit plans in 2009

There can be no assurance that the value of the defined benefit plan assets or the investment returns on those

plan assets will be sufficient in the future It is therefore possible that the Company may be required to make

higher cash contributions to the plans in future years which would reduce the cash available for other business

purposes and that the Company will have to recognize significant pension liability adjustment which would

decrease the net assets of the Company and result in higher expense
in future years During 2008 there was

$71 million loss on pension plan assets The fair value of these assets at January 2009 was $265 million

Overall ESOP expense is affected by the market value of Stanley stock on the monthly dates when shares are

released among other factors Net ESOP expense amounted to $11 million in 2008 and $2 million in both

2007 and 2006 The increase in expense was mostly attributable to the average
market value of shares released

which decreased from $49.28 in 2006 to $43.65 in 2008 However the Company has discontinued the 401k

and other defined contribution benefits in the ESOP for 2009 as part of its cost reduction initiatives and thus

there will be reduction in fiscal 2009 expense In the event these defined contribution benefits are offered

again ESOP expense could increase in the future if the market value of the Companys common stock

declines

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its accounts receivable

The Companys outstanding trade receivables are not generally covered by collateral or credit insurance While

the Company has procedures to monitor and limit exposure to credit risk on its trade and non-trade receivables

there can be no assurance such procedures will effectively limit its credit risk and avoid losses which could

have an adverse affect on the Companys financial condition and operating results

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

As of January 2009 the Company and its subsidiaries owned or leased material facilities facilities over

50000 square feet for manufacturing distribution and sales offices in 17 states and 15 foreign countries The

Company believes that its material facilities are suitable and adequate for its business

Certain properties are utilized by more than one segment and in such cases the property is reported in the

segment with highest usage

Material facilities owned by the Company and its subsidiaries follow

Security

Farmington Connecticut Sterling and Rock Falls Illinois Indianapolis Indiana Nicholasville Kentucky

Richmond Virginia Cobourg Canada Nueva Leon Mexico and Xiaolan Peoples Republic of China
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Industrial

Phoenix Arizona Dallas Texas Two Harbors Miimesota Columbus Georgetown and Sabina Ohio

Allentown Pennsylvania Pecky Czech Republic Epernay Ezy Sur Eure Feuquieres en Vimeu Morangis and

Villeneuve Le Roi France and Fano Gemonio and Monvalle Italy

CDIY

Clinton and New Britain Connecticut Shelbyville Indiana East Greenwich Rhode Island Cheraw South

Carolina Pittsfield Vermont Smiths Falls Canada Hellaby and Northampton England Arbois Besancon

Cedex and Lassiey France Puebla Mexico Jiashan City Langfang and Xiaolan Peoples Republic of China

Wroclaw Poland Taichung Hsien Taiwan and Amphur Bangpakong Thailand

Material facilities leased by the Company and its subsidiaries follow

Corporate Offices

New Britain Connecticut

Security

Noblesville Indiana

Industrial

Kentwood Michigan Highland Heights and Westerville Ohio Milwaukie Oregon Morangis France

CDIY

Miramar Florida Fishers Indiana Kannapolis North Carolina Epping Australia Mechelen Belgium Oakville

Canada Karmiel and Migdal Israel Biassono and Figino Serenza Italy and Pietermaritzburg South Africa

The aforementioned material facilities not being used by the Company are

Security

Richmond Virginia owned

Industrial

Ezy Sur Eure and Villeneuve Le Roi France owned

CDIY

Smiths Falls Canada owned and one of the two properties located in Amphur Bangpakong Thailand

owned

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the normal course of business the Company is involved in various lawsuits and claims including product

liability environmental and distributor claims and administrative proceedings The Company does not expect

that the resolution of these matters will have materially adverse effect on the Companys consolidated

financial position results of operations or liquidity

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of 2008 to vote of security holders
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PART

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Companys common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange inc NYSE under the

abbreviated ticker symbol SWK and is component of the Standard Poors SP 500 Composite

Stock Price Index The Companys high and low quarterly stock prices on the NYSE for the yeats
ended

January 2009 and December 29 2007 follow

2008 2007

Dividend Dividend

Per Per

Common Common

High Low Share High loss Share

QUAR1ER

First $52.18 $43.69 $0.31 $58.99 S49.95

Second $51.08 $44.50 $0.31 $63.68 $54.63

Third $49.58 $40.56 $0.32 $64.25 $52.41

Fourth $43.93 $24.19 $0.32 S58.99 $47.01

Total $1.26 $1.22

As of February 17 2009 there were 12622 holders of record of the Companys common stock

Information required by item 201d of Regulation S-K concerning securities authorized for issuance under

equity compensation plans can be found under Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table provides information about the Companys purchases of equity securities that are registered

by the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act for the three months ended January 2009

lotal

uniber

Of Shares Maximum

Purchased As Number

Part Of Of Shares

Total Average Publicly May
Number Price Announced Yet Be Purchased

Of Shares Paid Plan lJnder The

2008 Purchased Per Share or Program Program

September 28 November 506 532.80

November November 29

November 30January 28117 532.71

28623 $32.71
_______ ___________

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company repurchased $100.1 million 2.2 million shares of its common

stock associated with the prior authorization of the repurchase of 10.0 million shares on December 12 2007

As of January 2009 7.8 million shares of common stock remain authorized for repurchase The Company

may continue to repurchase shares in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions from time

to time pursuant to this prior authorization to the extent management deems warranted based on number of

factors including the level of acquisition activity the market price of the Companys common stock and the

current financial condition of the Company

The shares of common stock in this column were deemed surrendered to the Company by participants in

various of the Companys benefit plans to satisfy the participants taxes related to the vesting or delivery

of time vesting restricted share units under those plans
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company made significant acquisitions during the five-year period presented below that affect compara

bility of results Refer to Note Acquisitions of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item for

further information Additionally as detailed in Note Discontinued Operations and prior year 10-K filings

results in all years have been recast to remove the effects of certain discontinued operations for comparability

in millions except per share amounts

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Continuing Operations

Net sales $4426 $4360 $3897 $3183 $2930

Net earnings $225 $325 $279 $262 $229

Basic earnings per share

Continuing operations $2.86 $3.95 $3.40 $3.15 $2.79

Discontinued operations $1.11 $0.14 $0.13 $0.09 $1.68

Total basic earnings per share $3.97 $4.09 $3.54 $3.23 $4.47

Diluted earnings per share

Continuing operations $2.82 $3.87 $3.33 $3.07 $2.72

Discontinued operations $1.10 $0.13 $0.13 $0.08 $1.64

Total diluted earnings per share $3.92 $4.00 $3.46 $3.16 $4.36

Percent of net sales

Cost of sales 62.2% 62.1% 63.7% 64.1% 63.3%

Selling general and administrative 25.0% 23.8% 23.9% 22.5% 23.2%

Interest net 1.6% 1.8% 1.7% 1.1% 1.2%

Other net 2.4% 2.0% 1.4% 1.4% 1.5%

Earnings before income taxes 6.8% 10.0% 8.9% 10.8% 10.6%

Net earnings 5.1% 7.5% 7.2% 8.2% 7.8%

Balance sheet data

Total assets $4879 $4763 $3935 $3545 $2851

Long-term debt $1419 $1212 $679 $895 $482

Shareowners equity $1688 $1729 $1552 $1445 $1237

Ratios

Current ratio 1.3 1.4 1.4 2.2 1.7

Total debt to total capital 49.4% 46.5% 39.2% 42.4% 32.1%

Income tax rate continuing operations 25.2% 25.1% 19.8% 23.4% 26.5%

Return on average equity continuing

operations 13.2% 19.8% 18.6% 19.6% 21.6%

Common stock data

Dividends per share $1.26 $1.22 $1.18 $1.14 $1.08

Equity per share at year-end $21.40 $21.50 $18.96 $17.24 $15.01

Market price per sharehigh $52.18 $64.25 S54.59 $51.75 $49.33

Market price per
sharelow $24.19 $47.01 $41.60 $41.51 $36.42

Average shares outstanding in 000s
Basic 78897 82313 81866 83347 82058

Diluted 79874 84046 83704 85406 84244

Other information

Average number of employees 17862 17344 16699 13605 12817

Shareowners of record at end of year 12593 12482 12755 13137 13238

SGA is inclusive of the Provision for Doubtful Accounts

item includes discontinued operations in all years

Shareowners equity was reduced by $14 million in fiscal 2007 for the adoption of FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in income

Taxes an interpretation of SFAS No 109 Shareowners equity as of December 30 2006 decreased $61 million from the adop

tion of SFAS 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-retirement Plans-an amendment of FASB

Statements NO 87 88 106 an 132R
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial and business analysis below provides information which the Company believes is relevant to an

assessment and understanding of its consolidated financial position results of operations and cash flows This

financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and

related notes

The following discussion and certain other sections of this Annual Report on Form 0-K contain statements

reflecting the Lompanys views about its future performance that constitute forward-looking statements

under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements are based on

current expectations estimates forecasts and projections about the industry and markets in which the

Company operates and managements beliefs and assumptions Any statements contained herein including

without limitation statements to the effect that The Stanley Works or its management believes expects

anticipates plans and similarexpressions that are not statements of historical fact should be considered

forward-looking statements These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain

risks uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict There are number of important factors that

could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements These

factors include without limitation those set forth or incorporated by reference below under the heading

Cautionary Statements The Company does not intend to update publicly any forward-looking statements

whether as result of new information future events or otherwise

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company is diversified worldwide supplier of tools and engineered solutions for professional industrial

construction and do-it-yourself DIY use as well as engineered and security solutions for industrial and

commercial applications Its operations are classified into three business segments Security and

Construction DEY CDIY The Security segment is provider of access and security solFutions primarily

for retailers educational financial and healthcare institutions as well as commercial governmental and

industrial customers The Company provides an extensive suite of mechanical and electronic security products

and systems and variety of security services These include security integration systems software related

installation maintenance monitoring services automatic doors door closers exit devices hardware and

locking mechanisms Security products are sold primarily on direct sales basis and in certain instances

through third party distributors The Industrial segment manufactures and markets professional industrial and

automotive mechanics tools and storage systems engineered healthcare storage systems assembly tools and

systems plumbing heating and air conditioning tools hydraulic tools and accessories and specialty tools

These products are sold to industrial customers and distributed primarily through third party distributors as

well as direct sales forces The CDIY segment manufactures and markets hand tools consumer mechanics

tools storage systems pneumatic tools and fastener products which are principally utilized in construction and

do-it-yourself projects These products are sold primarily to professional end users as well as consumers and

are distributed through retailers including home centers mass merchants hardware stores arid retail lumber

yards

For several years the Company has pursued diversification strategy to enable profitable growth The strategy

involves industry geographic and customer diversification as exemplified by the expansion of security

solution product offerings the growing proportion of sales outside the U.S and the deliberate reduction of the

Companys dependence on sales to U.S home centers and mass merchants Sales outside the U.S represented

43% of the total in 2008 up
from 29% in 2002 Sales to U.S home centers and mass merchants have declined

from high point of approximately 40% in 2002 to approximately l3% in 2008 Execution of this strategy has

entailed approximately S2.8 billion of acquisitions since the beginning of 2002 several diveslitures and

increased brand investments Additionally the strategy reflects managements vision to build growth platform

in security while expanding the valuable branded tools and storage platform Over the past several years the

Company has generated strong free cash flow and received substantial proceeds from divestitures that enabled

transformation of the business portfolio
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Free cash flow as defined in the following table was $422 million in 2008 $457 million in 2007 and

$359 million in 2006 considerably exceeding net earnings Management considers free cash flow an important

indicator of its liquidity as well as its ability to fund future growth and provide dividend to shareowners In

2008 free cash flow also excludes the income taxes paid on the CST/berger divestiture due to the fact the

taxes are non-recurring and the directly related gross cash proceeds are classified in investing cash flows Free

cash flow does not include deductions for mandatory debt service other borrowing activity discretionary

dividends on the Companys common stock and business acquisitions among other items

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities $517 $544 $439

Less capital expenditures 95 66 60
Less capitalized software 46 21 20
Add taxes paid on CST/berger divestiture included in

operating cash flow 46

Free cash flow $422 $457 $359

The Company strives to reinvest its free cash flow in high return businesses in order to generate strong return

on assets and improve working capital efficiency

Significant areas of tactical emphasis related to execution of the Companys diversification strategy as well as

events impacting the Companys financial performance in 2008 and 2007 are discussed below

CONTINUED GROWTH OF SECURITY BUSINESS

During 2008 the Company further advanced its strategy of becoming global market leader in the commercial

security industry Annual revenues of the Security segment have grown to $1497 billion or 34% of 2008

sales up from $216 million or 10% of 2001 sales Key events pertaining to the growth of this segment in the

past year include the following

On July 18 2008 the Company completed the acquisitions of Sonitrol Corporation Sonitrol for

$282 million in cash and Xmark Corporation Xmark for $47 million in cash Sonitrol with annual

revenue totaling approximately Sl 10 million provides security monitoring services access control and

fire detection systems to commercial customers in North America Sonitrol will complement the product

offering of the pre-existing security integration and monitoring businesses including HSM acquired in

early 2007 Xmark headquartered in Canada markets and sells radio frequency identification RFID
based systems used to identify locate and protect people and assets Xmark with annual revenues

exceeding $30 million will enhance the Companys personal security business

On October 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of GØnØrale de Protection GdP for

SI 69 million in cash GdF headquartered in Vitrolles France is leading provider of audio and video

security monitoring services primarily for small and mid-sized businesses located in France and Belgium

GdP with 2007 revenues totaling approximately $87 million represents Stanleys first significant

expansion of its electronic security platform in continental Europe

Several other smaller acquisitions were completed for total purchase price of $49 million including access

technologies distributors mechanical lock business and security monitoring businesses The acquisitions

complement the existing Security segment product offerings increase its scale and strengthen the value

proposition offered to customers as industry dynamics favor multi-solution providers that offer one-stop

shopping The Company continues to focus on integrating the acquired businesses as it expands the suite of

security product and service offerings The Sonitrol integration into HSM is well underway with the business

sharing the same information technology platform while duplicative field offices are being eliminated The

reverse integration of the Companys pre-existing systems integration business into HSM progressed further in

2008 contributing to 80 basis point expansion in the segment profit rate to 17.9%
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Drive Further Profitable Growth in Branded Tools and Storage

While diversifying the business portfolio through expansion into Security is important management recognizes

that the branded construction do-it-yourself products and industrial businesses are the foundations on which

the Company was established and provide strong growth and cash flow generation prospects Management is

committed to growing these businesses through innovative product development brand support an increased

weighting in emerging markets and relentless focus on global cost competitiveness to foster vitality over the

long term Acquisition-related growth will also be pursued where appropriate Two events in branded tools and

storage are noteworthy

In October 2008 the Company acquired Scan Modul headquartered in Hillerod Denmark for

$20 million cash Scan Modul provides engineered healthcare storage equipment arid services

throughout Europe The acquisition expands the Companys healthcare storage technology offering

provided by its existing Innerspace business acquired in July 2007

In July 2008 the Company completed the sale of the CST/berger laser leveling and measuring

business for $197 million in cash net of transaction costs The transaction generated net book gain

of $84 million and $150 million in net after-tax cash proceeds CST/berger had 2007 revenues of

$80 million As result CST/berger along with three unrelated small businesses is reported in

discontinued operations and prior periods have been recast for comparability

Continue to Invest in the Stanley Brand

Stanley has an excellent portfolio of brands including Stanley Facom Mac Proto Vidmar Bostitch

and Fatmax The Stanley brand is recognized as one of the worlds great brands and is one of the Companys

most valuable assets Brand support was increased over the past several years including television advertising

campaigns associated with new product roll-outs continued NASCAR racing sponsorships as well as print and

outdoor advertising that generate approximately one billion brand impressions annually These advertising and

marketing campaigns yielded strong results as evidenced by 40% increase in Stanley hand tool brand

awareness since 2003

Institutionalize the Stanley Fulfillment System

The Company continued to practice the operating disciplines encompassed by the Stanley Fulfillment System

SFS which is transformation of processes systems and structure that enables improvements in

operations and creates customer value The Company employs lean value stream mapping and other

continuous improvement techniques to streamline operations and drive improvements throughout the supply

chain The foundation of SFS centers on lean common platforms sales and operations planning SOP
and complexity reduction Benefits of SFS include reductions in lead times costs and working capital service

level improvement and focus on employee safety The Company applies SFS to many aspects of its business

including maximizing customer fill rates through SOP and acquisition integration SFS entails lean

manufacturing disciplines and maximizing common platforms to drive operational excellence and asset

efficiency The SFS program helped to mitigate the substantial impact of material and energy price inflation

that was experienced in recent years It was instrumental in the reduction of working capital during 2008 and

the 11% improvement in working capital turns to 5.9 in 2008 In 2009 and beyond the Company plans to

further leverage SFS to achieve higher working capital turns decreased cycle times reduced complexity in

operations and increased customer service levels The Company is also migrating toward common systems

platforms to reduce costs and provide scalability to support its long-term acquisition growth strategy

Aside from the strategic commentary above other matters having significant impact on the Companys

results were inflation currency exchange rate fluctuations and share repurchases Additionally the U.S reces

sionary environment and slowing global demand in the second half of 2008 necessitated significant cost

reduction actions which will reduce the Companys cost structure in 2009
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The Company has been negatively impacted by inflation primarily commodity and freight which has

increased costs by an estimated $252 million over the past three years During this period more than two-

thirds of the cost increase was recovered through customer pricing actions and the remainder was mostly

offset through various cost reduction initiatives Inflationary trends have largely abated and are expected to be

considerably less of headwind in 2009 Inflation is estimated at $30 million for the first half of 2009 Due to

the lagging nature of customer price increases the Company expects favorable carryover effect from

previous customer pricing actions of approximately $30 50 million in 2009

In recent years the strengthening of foreign currencies had favorable impact on the translation of foreign

currency-denominated operating results into U.S dollars The favorable impact of foreign currency translation

including acquired companies contributed an estimated $09 18 and $04 of diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

relative to the U.S dollar may have significant impact either positive or negative on future earnings

Although the overall translation impact in 2008 was positive the U.S dollar strengthened in the second half of

2008 causing unfavorable effects that are expected to persist in 2009 Refer to the Market Risk section of this

MDA for further discussion

During 2008 and 2007 the Company executed share repurchases of 2.2 million and 3.6 million outstanding

shares of its common stock respectively for $100 million in 2008 and $200 million in 2007 The share

repurchase benefit was partially offset by the issuance of 3.1 million shares of common stock under various

employee plans over the two year period and also by higher interest expense associated with short-term

borrowings made to finance the share repurchases

In response to the continued decline in the U.S housing market combined with deteriorating global demand in

the second half of 2008 the Company took actions to reduce its cost structure and recognized $86 million in

pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges or $0.80 per diluted share The pre-tax earnings benefit

from the cost actions implemented both at mid-year 2008 and in conjunction with the restructuring announced

on December 11 2008 is expected to total approximately $195 million or $1.75 per diluted share in 2009

with an additional $.24 per share benefit in 2010 The Company likely will incur 2009 restructuring and

related charges of approximately $40 $50 million pre-tax for certain productivity initiatives and the continued

rationalization of its manufacturing footprint inclusive of approximately $10 million in carryover charges

pertaining to the actions announced in December 2008

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below is summary of the Companys operating results at the consolidated level followed by an overview of

business segment performance The terms organic and core are utilized to describe results aside from the

impact of acquisitions during their initial 12 months of ownership This ensures appropriate comparability to

operating results of prior periods

Net Sales Net sales from continuing operations were $4.426 billion in 2008 as compared to $4360 billion

in 2007 2% increase As result of significant commodity inflation the Company increased pricing on its

products and services which provided 3% sales benefit in 2008 Sales growth related to acquisitions

principally from Sonitrol GdP and other small Security segment acquisitions contributed nearly 4% in higher

sales Organic unit volume decreased 6% while favorable foreign currency translation in all regions increased

sales 1% versus the prior year The organic unit volume decline reflects deteriorating economic conditions

which spread from the U.S to other regions in the second half of 2008 Sequentially organic unit volume was

down 4% for the first half of 2008 associated with the contraction in the U.S residential construction market

and declined 7% and 10% in the third and fourth quarters respectively The CDTY segment unit volume was

most affected by the economic downturn In the Industrial segment the U.S based automotive-related

businesses suffered sharp declines which were partially offset by strength in industrial storage Aside from the

hardware business which had lower sales pertaining to the loss of major customer in 2007 the Security

segment had positive organic sales volume for the
year reflecting solid demand in its diversified end markets

Net sales from continuing operations were $4360 billion in 2007 as compared to $3.897 billion in 2006

12% increase Acquisitions contributed 7% or $263 million of the sales increase Organic volume and pricing
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both increased 1% while favorable foreign currency translation in all regions increased sales 3% versus the

prior year Strong performance in the Industrial segment particularly by the hydraulic and mechanics tools

businesses was supplemented by more modest gains in the CDIY and Security segments CDIY achieved

robust growth internationally that was partially offset by weakness in the U.S associated with housing market

declines In the Security segment solid gains by the automatic door and mechanical lock businesses as well

as overall pricing actions more than compensated for lower sales in the legacy electronic security integration

business as it shed unprofitable equipment installations

Gross Profit The Company reported gross profit from continuing operations of $1671 billion or 38% of net

sales in 2008 compared to 51.653 billion or 38% of net sales in 2007 The acquired businesses increased

gross profit by $77 million and were modestly accretive to the gross margin rate Core gross profit for 2008

was 51.594 billion or 37% of net sales down $59 million or 60 basis points from the prior year The security

segment achieved gross profit expansion associated with the higher monitoring services sales mix emanating

from the reverse integration of the legacy security integration business into HSM However this was more than

offset by gross profit declines in the CDIY and Industrial segments reflecting sa volume pressures

Aggregate pricing and productivity actions in 2008 largely offset $140 million of material energy and wage

cost inflation As previously mentioned the Company expects such inflation will increase first half 2009 costs

by S30 million which management plans to mitigate through the carryover effect from previous customer

pricing actions while it appears likely that inflationary effects may subside in the second half of 2009

The Company reported gross profit from continuing operations of $1653 billion or 38% of net sales in 2007

compared to 51.413 billion or 36% of net sales in 2006 The acquired businesses increased gross profit by

$136 million Core gross profit for 2007 was $1.5 17 billion or 37% of net sales up $104 million from the

prior year The core gross margin rate expanded on strong performances from certain Industrial segment

businesses primarily Facom and mechanics tools as well as the absence of $22 million of inventory step-up

amortization from the initial turnover of acquired inventory in 2006 This was partially offset by decline in

the CDIY segment gross margin rate mainly from un-recovered cost inflation In addition the legacy security

integration business had lower margins on certain equipment installations Price and productivity actions in

2007 more than offset $67 million of material energy and wage cost inflation

SGA Expense Selling general and administrative expenses inclusive of the provision for doubtful

accounts were 51.108 billion or 25% of net sales in 2008 as compared with 51.038 billion or 24% of net

sales in 2007 Acquired companies contributed $46 million of the increase The remaining $24 million

increase is largely attributable to foreign exchange impact higher bad debt expense and strategic investments

including those to foster growth in emerging markets partially offset by benefits from the cost reduction

initiatives previously mentioned

Selling general and administrative expenses were $1 .038 billion or 24% of net sales in 2007 consistent with

the 24% of sales represented by $932 million of expense in 2006 Acquired companies contributed $70 million

of the increase and the remaining $36 million increase is largely attributable to foreign currency translation

Jnterest and Other-nd Net interest expense from continuing operations in 2008 was $73 million compared

to $80 million in 2007 The decrease is primarily due to lower applicable interest rates on commercial paper

borrowings in 2008 The remainder of the decrease predominantly relates to repayment of $150 million of

debt that matured in November 2007 partially offset by interest expense on $250 million of term debt issued

in September 2008

Net interest expense from continuing operations in 2007 was $80 million compared to $65 million in 2006

The higher interest expense stems from borrowings necessary to fund the January 2007 acquisition of HSM
Refer to the Financial Condition section for additional discussion of the HSM acquisition financing

Other-net from continuing operations totaled $104 million of expense
in 2008 compared to S87 million of

expense in 2007 The increase mainly relates to higher
intanible

asset amortization expense due to recent

acquisitions as well as currency losses partially offset by $9 million gain on extinguishment of debt
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Other-net from continuing operations totaled S87 million of expense
in 2007 compared to $54 million of

expense in 2006 The increase pertained primarily to higher intangible asset amortization expense due to

recent acquisitions

Income Taxes The Companys effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 25% in both 2008

and 2007 compared to 20% for 2006 The lower effective tax rate in 2006 primarily relates to benefits

realized upon resolution of tax audits that did not re-occur The effective income tax rate may vary in future

periods based on the distribution of foreign earnings or changes in tax law in the jurisdictions where the

Company operates among other factors

Discontinued Operations The $88 million of net earnings from discontinued operations in 2008 is attribut

able to the $84 million net gain from the sale of the CS1/berger business along with three other small

businesses divested in 2008 and also reflects the operating results of these businesses through the dates of

disposition The SIl million of net earnings from discontinued operations reported in both 2007 and 2006

reflects the operating results of CST/berger and the aforementioned other minor businesses

Business Segment Results

The Companys reportable segments are aggregations of businesses that have similar products services and

end markets among other factors The Company utilizes segment profit which is defined as net sales minus

cost of sales and SGA aside from corporate overhead expense and segment profit as percentage of net

sales to assess the profitability of each segment Segment profit excludes the corporate overhead expense

element of SGA interest income interest expense other-net inclusive of intangible asset amortization

expense restructuring and asset impairments and income tax expense Corporate overhead is comprised of

world headquarters facility expense cost for the executive management team and the expense pertaining to

certain centralized functions that benefit the entire Company but are not directly attributable to the businesses

such as legal and corporate finance functions Refer to Note Restructuring and Asset Impairments and

Note Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the

amount of restructuring charges and asset impairments and intangibles amortization expense respectively

attributable to each segment As discussed previously the Companys operations are classified into three

business segments Security Industrial and Construction and Do-It-Yourself CDIY

Security

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net sales from continuing operations $1497 $1400 $1127

Segment profit from continuing operations $269 $240 $169

of Net sales 17.9% 17.1% 15.0%

Security segment sales increased 7% in 2008 primarily driven by acquisitions notably Sonitrol and GdP which

contributed 9% Customer price increases amounted to 3% while foreign currency and organic volume

declined 1% and 4% respectively The hardware business posted significant volume declines associated with

the loss of major customer in late 2007 Aside from hardware the security segment had an increase in

organic volume reflecting solid demand from its well-diversified customer base and associated recurring

monthly revenues from service contracts for security monitoring and system maintenance The access

technologies and mechanical lock businesses delivered organic sales growth pertaining to modest volume

increases and disciplined recovery of inflation through customer pricing actions The reverse integration of the

U.S-based legacy security integration business as well as the integration of the July 2008 Sonitrol acquisition

into HSM provided cost synergies and fostered 80 basis point expansion of the segment profit rate The

segment profit improvement was also attributable to strong execution of productivity projects partially offset

by the impact of the previously discussed hardware business sales volume decline

Security segment sales increased 24% in 2007 HSM and other acquisitions contributed 21% while price grew

3% currency 2% and organic volume declined 2% Organic sales gains in automatic doors and mechanical

locks were achieved on the strength of national and strategic account growth while the hardware business

demonstrated resilience in recovering from the loss of key customer Effective pricing actions to recover
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inflation in raw material costs also contributed to sales growth in the segment Shrinkage in the legacy

U.S security integration USSI business sales and segment profit was necessary by-product of business

model change entailing shift away from low profitability equipment installation to an emphasis on higher

margin recurring service revenues The reverse integration of USSI into HSM with its superior bidding and

project management disciplines progressed well The broader security segment product line enabled the

Company to compete more effectively in the architectural bidding process to attain gains in commercial

construction markets The 2007 segment profit rate showed strong expansion of 210 basis points over 2006

This improvement was attributable to HSM the non-recurring inventory step-up amortization for the National

hardware acquisition recorded in 2006 the benefits of partial shift in hardware production to Asia and

overall pricing and productivity in excess of inflation These positive factors were partially offset by the

previously discussed decline in the legacy security integration businesses

Industrial

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net sales from continuing operations $1274 $1246 $1129

Segment profit from continuing operations $164 $183 $123

of Net sales 12.9% 14.7% 10.9%

Industrial segment net sales increased 2% in 2008 versus 2007 attributable to the Innerspace and Scan Modul

healthcare storage acquisitions Foreign currency translation provided 3% benefit and favorable pricing 2%
which were offset by 5% unit volume decline The North American automotive repair business was adversely

affected by distributor attrition and the deteriorating U.S economy European sales volumes which had been

positive in the first half of the year declined in the second half as Facom and other businesses reflected the

contraction of the European economy These volume declines were partially offset by strong sales growth in

U.S.-based engineered storage and to lesser extent the hydraulic tools business The sales growth in

engineered storage was driven by government spending particularly by army and navy bases and also strength

with commercial customers The sales volume declines created substantial headwinds from unfavorable

manufacturing plant absorption causing decrease in the segment profit Strong focus on customer pricing and

productivity initiatives more than offset the effects of inflation Additionally the benefits of cost reduction

actions partially mitigated the unfavorable impact of sales volume declines on segment profit

Industrial segment net sales increased 10% in 2007 from 2006 comprised of 4% volume increase 4%

favorable foreign currency impact 1% favorable pricing and 1% from the Innerspace acquisition Hydraulic

tools and mechanics tools achieved robust sales increases along with strong performance from the Facom and

engineered storage businesses The hydraulic tools sales increase was attributable to sustained high demand for

recent shear product offerings strong international sales and favorable steel scrap markets Industrial

mechanics tools benefited from strong demand in the U.S oil and gas industry The higher Facom sales

pertained to new product introductions and improved European economic conditions Intensified marketing

efforts including an expanded sales force contributed to the U.S-based engineered storage business growth

Segment profit as percentage of net sales improved 380 basis points Excluding the effect of the one-time

inventory step-up charge from the initial turn of Facom acquired inventory in 2006 segment profit increased

270 basis points Customer price increases effectively offset the impact of cost inflation while productivity

initiatives further contributed to the segment profit rate expansion Additionally Facoms contribution to the

higher segment profit rate reflected favorable currency translation and the benefits of acquisition integration

actions

CDIY

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net sales from continuing operations $1656 $1715 $1641

Segment profit from continuing operations $191 $254 $252

of Net sales 11.5% 14.8% 15.4%
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CDIY net sales from continuing operations decreased 3% in 2008 from 2007 Customer pricing increases in

response to rising commodity costs in the first three quarters of 2008 contributed 3% to sales Foreign

currency translation increased sales by 2% while organic volume declined 8% Volume was negatively

impacted by the contraction in residential construction in both the Americas and Europe reductions in

consumer spending as well as decline in industrial markets served by fastening systems reflecting

increasingly weak macro-economic conditions Fastening systems continued its planned shift toward more

profitable business which resulted in additional volume pressure The sales volume decline also partially

pertained to the shut-down of the unprofitable consumer metal storage business Europe had essentially flat

unit volume in the first half of 2008 but declined significantly in the second half Despite declines in unit

volume CDIY retained focus on inventory levels and contributed substantial part of the Companys total

working capital improvement Progress was made on executing customer pricing actions but these benefits

were significantly outpaced by cost inflation contributing to the profit rate erosion The profit rate was also

dramatically affected by lower sales volumes and to lesser extent strategic investments that will help

generate future emerging markets growth Productivity projects and cost reduction actions partially mitigated

these unfavorable impacts

CDIY net sales from continuing operations increased 5% in 2007 from 2006 Foreign currency translation

contributed 3% to the higher sales pricing 1% acquisitions 1% and organic volume remained flat The

U.S was adversely impacted by the housing market contraction as repair and remodel activity declined along

with new construction Sales were very strong in Canada Europe Australia and Asia in particular for the

consumer tools and storage business This positive international performance was bolstered by new product

introductions including the FatMax XL line as well as favorable economic conditions outside the

U.S Fastening systems also experienced an overall decline in sales due to the U.S housing down-turn

although its industrial channel and office product sales remained stable During 2007 the Company took

actions to improve the fastening systems cost structure including Mexican plant closure and the first wave

of pneumatic tool production shift to Asia enabled by the 2006 Besco acquisition As result fastening

systems improved its margin rate slightly despite the lower sales volume The Company completed the

migration of second wave of fastening systems tool production to Asia during 2008 which further aided in

reducing the cost structure The segment profit rate decline of 60 basis points in 2007 was mainly attributable

to un-recovered cost inflation product mix shift to lower margin tools along with channel mix shift in the

U.S and unfavorable absorption on inventory reductions These factors were partially offset by the favorable

impact of foreign currency translation and the previously mentioned improvement in the fastening systems

business



RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

At January 2009 the restructuring reserve balance was $67.9 million summary of the restructuring

reserve activity and related charges from December 29 2007 to January 2009 is as follows

Acquisition Net

Millions of Dollars
12/29/07 Accrual Additions Usage urrenc 1/3/09

Acquisitions

Severance and related costs $18.8 $5.3 812.8 80.5 510.8

Facility closure 1.6 1.1 0.9 1.8

Other 1.0
_____

1.0
______

Subtotal acquisitions 21.4 6.4
_____ 14.7 0.5 12.6

2008 Actions

Severance and related costs 70.0 15.5 0.4 54.1

Asset impairments 13.6 13.6

Facility closure 0.7 0.7

Other _____ 1.2

Subtotal 2008 actions 85.5 29.8 0.4 55.3

Pre-2008 Actions 2.3
______ _____ 2.3 ______

Total $23.7 $6.4 $85.5 846.8 80.9 567.9

2008 Actions During 2008 the Company initiated cot reuetion initiatives in order to maintain its cost

competitiveness large portion of these actions were initiaed in the fourth quarter as the Company

responded to deteriorating business conditions resulting froth the recessionary U.S economic weakness and

slowing global demand primarily in its CDIY and Industrial segments Severance charges of $70.0 million

have been recorded relating to the reduction of approximately 2700 employees In addition to severance

$13.6 million in charges were recognized pertaining to asset impairments for production assets and real estate

and $0.7 million for facility closure costs The $1.2 million in other charges stemmed from the termination of

service contracts Of the amount recorded in 2008 $29.8 million has been utilized to date for remaining

reserve as of January 2009 of $55.3 million The Company will utilize majority of these reserves in 2009

and estimates approximately 30% will be expended in 2010 primarily pertaining to the timing of approvals

from European governmental agencies

Pre-2008 Actions During 2007 the Company initiated $1 1.8 million of cost reduction actions in various

businesses These actions were comprised of severance for 525 employees and the exit of leased facility The

remaining reserves were fully utilized in 2008

Acquisition Related During 2008 $6.4 million of reserves were established related to the Companys current

year acquisitions Of this amount $5.3 million was for severance and related costs for approximately

200 employees and $1.1 million related to the closure of nine branch facilities As of January 2009

$2.2 million has been utilized leaving $4.2 million remaining The Company also utilized $12.5 million of

restructuring reserves during 2008 established for various prior year acquisitions principally Facom and HSM
As of January 2009 $8.4 million in accruals remain for the prior year acquisitions Of this balance

approximately $7 million pertains to Facom for which the timing of payments depends upon the actions of

certain European governmental agencies
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Restructuring and asset impairment charges by segment were as follows

NIillioHs of Dollars

2008 2007 2006

Security
$13.8 $5.3 $5.9

Industrial 29.7 1.5 1.6

CDIY 35.6 5.6 5.3

Non-operating
6.4 0.4 1.0

Consolidated $85.5 $12.8 $13.8

Of the $35.6 million of restructuring and asset impairment charges noted above for the CDIY segment

$13.6 million is for asset impairments related to the current and planned closure of several facilities There

were no asset impairments for the Security and Industrial segments in 2008 Fair value for impaired production

assets was based on the present value of discounted cash flows This included an estimate for future cash flows

as production activities are phased out as well as auction values prices for similar assets for assets where use

has been discontinued or future cash flows are minimal Real estate values were based on estimates of

anticipated sales values less costs to sell which contemplated sales of comparable properties and estimates

from third party brokers

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity Sources and ises of Capital The Companys primary sources of liquidity are cash flows

generated from operations and available lines of credit under various credit facilities

Operating and Investing Activities The Company has consistently generated strong operating cash flows over

many years In 2008 cash flow from operations totaled $517 million down $27 million compared to 2007

Operating cash flow reflects $46 million reduction for the taxes paid on the gain from the CST/berger

divestiture even though the directly related gross proceeds are reported as an investing cash flow Working

capital receivables inventories and accounts payable generated $123 million of cash inflows driven by

accounts receivables reflecting the disciplines of SFS and concerted effort to reduce past due accounts and

to lesser extent inventory reductions Cash outflows for restructuring activities totaled $33 million in 2008

decrease of $25 million over 2007 primarily pertaining to cost reduction actions in the fourth quarter and the

continuing payments under Facom Europe initiatives

In 2007 cash flow from operations totaled $544 million up $105 million compared to 2006 The favorable

increase principally stems from an expansion of cash earnings and improved working capital performance In

this regard the higher non-cash intangibles amortization expense from acquisitions reduced earnings but not

cash flows Working capital generated $23 million of higher cash inflows in 2007 compared with 2006 This

working capital improvement reflects leaner inventory positions achieved through process improvement efforts

while maintaining customer service levels and was accomplished despite lower receivable sale proceeds in

2007 versus 2006 These favorable impacts were partially offset by cash outflows for restructuring activities

which amounted to $58 million in 2007 an increase of $29 million over 2006 primarily pertaining to

payments for the Facom Europe initiatives

Capital expenditures were $141 million in 2008 $87 million in 2007 and $80 million in 2006 The higher

capital expenditures in 2008 as compared with 2007 were primarily attributable to investment in the North

American SAP information system implementation and the purchase of previously leased distribution

facility The increase in 2007 capital expenditures versus 2006 pertained to investments for plant productivity

improvements as well as ongoing information system spending for major SAP implementation in the

Americas

Free cash flow as defined in the following table was $422 million in 2008 $457 million in 2007 and

$359 million in 2006 considerably exceeding net earnings Management considers free cash flow an important

indicator of its liquidity as well as its ability to fund future growth and provide dividend to shareowners In

2008 free cash flow also excludes the income taxes paid on the CST/berger divestiture due to the fact the

taxes are non-recurring and the directly related gross cash proceeds are classified in investing cash flows Free
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cash flow does not include deductions for mandatory debt service other borrowing activity discretionary

dividends on the Companys common stock and business acquisitions among other items

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities $517 $544 $439

Less capital expenditures 95 66 60
Less capitalized software 46 21 20
Add taxes paid on CST/berger divestiture included in

operating cash flow 46

Free cash flow $422 $457 $359

Based on its demonstrated ability to generate cash flow from operations as well as its strong balance sheet and

credit position at January 2009 the Company believes over the long term it has the financial flexibility to

deploy capital to its shareholders advantage through combination of acquisitions dividends debt repayment

and potential future share repurchases If lower sales volumes and earnings pressures pertaining to the

weakened global economy persist free cash flow may decrease in 2009 although continued efforts to improve

working capital efficiency are expected to partially offset these headwinds As result of the recessionary

environment the Company anticipates that in 2009 it may have lower acquisition and share repurchase activity

and that free cash flow will likely be deployed for debt reduction to greater extent than in the past few years

In 2008 acquisition spending totaled $575 million mainly for the GdP Scan Modul Sonitrol and Xmark

businesses 2007 acquisition spending amounted to $643 million primarily pertaining to the HSM InnerSpace

and Bedcheck businesses Pursuant to its profitable growth strategy the Company will continue to assess its

current business portfolio for disposition opportunities and evaluate acquisition opportunities in favored

markets while minimizing the risk associated with large customer concentrations

Investing cash flows include $205 million in gross proceeds from sales of businesses after transaction costs

primarily pertaining to the divestiture of the CST/berger laser measuring tool business in July 2008 As

previously mentioned the $46 million of income taxes paid on the gain are reported as an operating cash

outflow and thus the total cash inflow from the 2008 divestitures amounts to $159 million

During 2006 the Company entered into sale-leaseback transaction of its corporate headquarters building

Under the terms of the transaction the Company received $23 million in cash proceeds reported in investing

cash flows and recorded deferred gain of $11 million which will be amortized over the 15 year operating

lease term The cash proceeds were utilized to pay down short-term borrowings

Financing Activities Payments on long-term debt amounted to $45 million in 2008 $228 million in 2007

and $4 million in 2006 Net repayments of short-term borrowings totaled $74 million in 2008 The Company
utilized the proceeds from the $250 million of long-term debt issued in September 2008 as well as the

$159 million in net proceeds from divestitures to repay
short-term borrowings which was partially offset by

the cash outflows for business acquisitions and other matters Net proceeds from short-term borrowings totaled

$192 million in 2007 and the cash inflows were used to fund acquisitions and repurchases of common stock

Repayments of short-term borrowings amounted to cash outflow of $66 million in 2006 as commercial paper

was paid down utilizing portion of the strong operating cash flows

On February 27 2008 the Company amended its credit facility to provide for an increase and extension of its

committed credit facility to $800 million from $550 million In May 2008 the Companys commercial paper

program was also increased to $800 million The credit facility is diversified amongst thirteen financial

institutions The credit facility is designated as liquidity back-stop for the Companys commercial paper

program The amended and restated facility expires in February 2013 As of January 2009 there were no

outstanding loans under this facility and the Company had $206 million of commercial paper outstanding In

addition the Company has uncommitted short-term lines of credit with numerous foreign banks aggregating

$246 million of which $234 million was available at January 2009 Short-term arrangements are reviewed

annually for renewal Aggregate credit lines amount to $1 .046 billion
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The Companys debt is currently rated by Standard Poors SP Moodys Investor Service Moodys
and Fitch Ratings Fitch As of January 2009 the ratings for senior unsecured debt were A2 and by

SP Moodys and Fitch respectively each with stable outlook on the Company The short-term debt or

commercial paper ratings are A-i P-I and Fl by SF Moodys and Fitch respectively On January 22

2009 Moodys placed the Companys debt under review for possible downgrade Failure to maintain the

current ratings level could adversely affect the Companys cost of funds liquidity and access to capital

markets but would not have an adverse effect on the Companys ability to access the previously discussed

$800 million committed credit facility

On September 29 2008 the Company issued $250.0 million of unsecured Term Notes maturing October

2013 the 2013 Term Notes with fixed interest payable semi-annually in arrears at rate of 6.15% per

annum The 2013 Term Notes rank equally with all of the Companys existing and future unsecured and

unsubordinated debt The Company received net proceeds of $248.0 million which includes discount of

$0.5 million to achieve 6.15% interest rate and $1.5 million of fees associated with the transaction The

proceeds were utilized to repay
short-term borrowings

The Company increased its cash dividend per common share to $1.26 in 2008 Dividends per common share

increased 3.3% in 2008 3.4% in 2007 and 3.5% in 2006

The Company repurchased 2.2 million shares of its common stock in 2008 for $103 million an average cost

of $46.21 In 2007 the Company repurchased 3.8 million shares of its common stock for $207 million an

average of $54.64 per share and in 2006 it repurchased 4.0 million shares for $202 million an average of

$50.07 per share

The Company initially funded the $546 million HSM acquisition with combination of short-term borrowings

and cash $500 million 364-day revolving credit bridge facility was entered into on January 2007 of

which $130.0 million was utilized to acquire HSM the remainder of the HSM purchase price was funded

through commercial paper borrowings and cash

On March 20 2007 the Company completed two security offerings Equity Units which consisted of

$330 million of five-year convertible notes and $330 million of three-year forward stock purchase contracts

and $200 million of unsecured three-year fixed-rate term notes With respect to the $860 million in offerings

the Company will not receive the cash pertaining to the forward stock purchase contracts until May 2010 The

$488 million net cash proceeds of these offerings and the related equity instruments described below were

used to pay
down the short-term bridge facility and commercial paper borrowings

In November 2008 the Company repurchased $10 million of the Equity Units for $5.3 million in cash To

properly account for the transaction the Equity Unit elements were bifurcated as essentially the Company paid

$10 million to extinguish the convertible notes and received $4.7 million from the seller to settle its obligation

under the forward stock purchase contracts to purchase shares of the Companys common stock at minimum

purchase price of approximately $54.45 per share on May 17 2010 At the repurchase date the Companys

common stock had closing market value of $25.38 The remaining liability for fees payable associated with

the $10 million of settled forward stock purchase contracts was reversed resulting in an increase to equity of

$0.7 million The related $10 million in convertible note hedges and stock warrants which are described

further below were unwound with nominal impact to equity As result of the various elements associated

with the $10 million Equity Unit repurchase transaction there was an insignificant gain recorded in earnings

and net increase in equity of $5.4 million

The convertible notes are pledged and held as collateral to guarantee the Equity Unit investors obligation to

purchase shares in May 2010 under the stock purchase contracts The convertible notes reflect conversion

price of approximately $64.80 or 19% premium as of the date of issuance At maturity the Company must

repay the convertible note principal in cash Additionally to the extent that the conversion option is in the

money the Company at its election will deliver either cash or shares of common stock based on conversion

rate and the applicable market value of the Companys common stock at that time maximum of

approximately 5.9 million shares may be issued in May 2010 under the stock purchase contracts essentially at

the higher of approximately $54.45 or market value at that time
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The Company simultaneously entered into related convertible note hedge and stock warrant transactions with

financial institutions Share dilution pertaining to the conversion option of the convertible notes will occur in

interim periods if the share price exceeds approximately $64.80 At maturity in 2012 the convertible note

hedge will offset the potentially dilutive impact of the conversion option aspect of the convertible notes

Because the convertible note hedge is anti-dilutive it will not be included in any diluted shares outstanding

computation prior to its maturity However at maturity the aggregate effect of the convertible notes and the

convertible note hedge is that there will be no net increase in the Companys common shares The Company
also issued 4.9 million of unregistered stock warrants that are exercisable during the period August 17 2012

through September 28 2012 with strike price of $87.12 subject to standard anti-dilution protection for

increases in the dividend rate stock splits etc. In the event the stock warrants become in the money during

their year term due to the market value of the Companys common stock exceeding the strike price there

will be related increase in diluted shares outstanding utilized in the determination of diluted earnings per

share

The combined terms of the convertible note hedge stock warrants and convertible notes in substance re

establish the conversion option aspect of the convertible notes at 60% above the $54.45 market value of the

Companys common stock at inception such that in effect the Company will retain the benefits of share price

appreciation if any up to market value equal to the stock warrant strike price Additionally the Company
will retain benefits of share price appreciation if any through the maturity of the stock purchase contract

element of the Equity Units that will entail issuance of $320 million of common shares at the higher of

approximately $54.45 or market price in May 2010 Refer to Note Long-Term Debt and Financing

Arrangements for further detail

Contractual Obligations The following summarizes the Companys significant contractual obligations and

commitments that impact its liquidity

Payments Due by Period

Millions of Dollars
Total 2009 20102011 2012 2013 Thereafter

Long-term debt $1433 $14 $213 $791 $415

Interest payments on long-term debtt 256 65 102 65 24

Operating leases 130 34 46 22 28

Derivatives 52 50

Equity purchase contract fees 25 17

Material purchase commitments 15 13

Deferred compensation 21 12

Outsourcing and other obligations 27 13 14

Pension funding obligations 20 20
___________

Total contractual cash obligations $1979 $181 $438 $881 $479

Future interest payments on long-term debt reflect the applicable fixed interest rate or the variable rate in effect at January 2009

for floating rate debt

Future cash flows on derivative financial instrunients reflect the fair value as of January 2009 The ultimate cash flows on these

instruments will differ perhaps significantly based on applicable market interest and foreign currency rates at their maturity

To the extent the Company can reliably determine when payments will occur pertaining to unrecognized tax benefit liabilities the

related amount will be included in thc table aboe However due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of
potential

future cash flows associated with the S43 million of such liabilities at January 2009 the Company is unable to make reliable

estimate of when if at all amounts may be paid to the respective taxing authorities

The Company anticipates that funding of its pension and post-retirement benefit plans in 2009 will approximate S20 million That

amount principally represents contributions either required by regulations or laws or with respect to unfunded plans necessary to

fund current benefits The Company has not presented estimated pension and post-retirement funding in the table above beyond 2009

as funding can vary significantly from year to year based upon changes in the fair value of the plan assets actuarial assumptions

and curtailment/settlement actions
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Aside from debt payments for which there is no tax benefit associated with repayment of principal and the

equity purchase contract fees payment of the above contractual obligations will typically generate cash tax

benefit such that the net cash outflow will be lower than the gross amounts indicated

Other Commercial Commitments

Amounts of Commitments Expiration Per Period

Millions of Dollars
Total 2009 2010 2011 20122013 Thereafter

U.S lines of credit $800 $800

Short-term borrowings long-term debt and lines of credit are explained in detail within Note Long-Term

Debt and Financing Arrangements of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Operating leases

and other commercial commitments are further detailed in Note Commitments and Guarantees of the Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential economic loss that may result from adverse changes in the fair value of financial

instruments currencies commodities and other items traded in global markets The Company is exposed to

market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates interest rates stock prices and commodity

prices Exposure to foreign currency risk results because the Company through its global businesses enters

into transactions and makes investments denominated in multiple currencies The Companys predominant

exposures are in European Canadian British Australian and Asian currencies including the Chinese

Renminbi RMB and the Taiwan Dollar Certain cross-currency trade flows arising from sales and

procurement activities as well as affiliate cross-border activity are consolidated and netted prior to obtaining

risk protection through the use of various derivative financial instruments including purchased basket options

purchased options and currency forwards The Company is thus able to capitalize on its global positioning by

taking advantage of naturally offsetting exposures and portfolio efficiencies to reduce the cost of purchasing

derivative protection At times the Company also enters into forward exchange contracts and purchased

options to reduce the earnings and cash flow impact of non-functional currency denominated receivables and

payables predominately for affiliate transactions Gains and losses from these hedging instruments offset the

gains or losses on the underlying net exposures assets and liabilities being hedged Management determines

the nature and extent of currency hedging activities and in certain cases may elect to allow certain currency

exposures to remain unhedged The Company has also entered into cross-currency swaps to provide partial

hedge of the net investments in certain subsidiaries and better match the cash flows of operations to debt

service requirements Management estimates the foreign currency impact from these financial instruments at

the end of 2008 would have been approximately $9 million pre-tax loss based on hypothetical 10% adverse

movement in all derivative currency positions this effect would occur from an appreciation of the foreign

currencies relative to the U.S dollar The Company follows risk management policies in executing derivative

financial instrument transactions and does not use such instruments for speculative purposes The Company

does not hedge the translation of its non-U.S dollar earmngs in foreign subsidiaries

As mentioned above the Company routinely has cross-border trade and affiliate flows that cause transac

tional impact on earnings from foreign exchange rate movements The Company is also exposed to currency

fluctuation volatility from the translation of foreign earnings into U.S dollars as previously discussed It is

more difficult to quantify the transactional effects from currency fluctuations than the translational effects

Aside from the use of derivative instruments which may be used to mitigate some of the exposure

transactional effects can potentially be influenced by actions the Company may take for example if an

exposure occurs from European entity sourcing product from U.S supplier it may be possible to change to

European supplier As articulated in the Companys fourth quarter earnings release filed on Form 8-K on

January 28 2009 if the U.S dollar were to remain at levels prevailing in mid-January throughout fiscal 2009

including euro 1.34 Canadian $0.84 Pound Sterling 1.50 and Australian $0.69 then the combined

unfavorable currency effect from both the translational and transactional aspects
would be approximately $0.50
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in lower diluted earnings per share as compared with 2008 In that event the unfavorable impact would occur

largely in the first half of 2009 Management estimates the combined translational and transactional impact of

10% overall movement in exchange rates is approximately $0.30 per diluted share With respect to

transactional foreign currency market risk the Company sources significant products from China and other

Asian low cost countries for resale in other regions To the extent the RMB or these other currencies

appreciate with respect to the U.S dollar the Company may experience cost increases on such purchases

While the 7% appreciation of the RMB during 2008 has not as yet generated material cost increases for

products sourced from China further significant appreciation of the RMB or other currencies in countries

where the Company sources product could adversely impact profitability In the event significant RMB or

other currency appreciation occurs the Company would initiate customer pricing or other actions in an effort

to mitigate the related cost increases but it is possible such actions would not fully offset the potential

unfavorable impact

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk results from its outstanding debt obligations short-term

investments and derivative financial instruments employed in the management of its debt portfolio The debt

portfolio is managed to achieve capital structure targets and reduce the overall cost of borrowing by using

combination of fixed and floating rate debt as well as interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps The

Companys primary exposure to interest rate risk comes from its floating rate debt in the U.S and Europe and

is fairly represented by changes in LIBOR and EURIBOR rates At January 2009 the impact of

hypothetical 10% increase in the interest rates associated with the Companys floating rate derivative and debt

instruments would have an immaterial effect on the Companys financial position and results of operations

The Company has exposure to commodity prices in many businesses particularly brass nickel resin

aluminum copper zinc steel and energy used in the production of finished goods Generally commodity

price exposures are not hedged with derivative financial instruments but instead are actively managed through

customer product and service pricing actions procurement-driven cost reduction initiatives and other produc

tivity improvement projects In 2008 the Company experienced approximately $140 million of commodity

energy and wage inflation most of which was recovered through favorable pricing actions Such inflation

increased costs by approximately $67 million in 2007 and $45 million in 2006 which management mitigated

through various customer pricing actions and cost reduction initiatives If commodity prices further increase

the Companys exposure could increase from the expected levels for 2009 as previously discussed

Fluctuations in the fair value of the Companys common stock affect domestic retirement plan expense as

discussed in the ESOP section of Managements Discussion and Analysis Additionally the Company has

$14 million in unfunded defined contribution plans for certain U.S employees for which there is mark-to-

market exposure

The assets held by the Companys defined benefit plans are exposed to fluctuations in the market value of

securities primarily global stocks and fixed-income securities The funding obligations for these plans would

increase in the event of adverse changes in the plan asset values although such funding would occur over

period of many years This is exemplified by the fact that while there was $71 million loss on pension plan

assets in 2008 associated with volatile financial markets the Company expects funding obligations on its

defined benefit plans will modestly increase to approximately $20 million in 2009 as compared with

$18 million in 2008 The Company employs diversified asset allocations to help mitigate this risk

Management has worked to minimize this exposure by freezing and terminating defined benefit plans where

appropriate

The Company has access to financial resources and borrowing capabilities around the world There are no

instruments within the debt structure that would accelerate payment requirements due to change in credit

rating The Company has the flexibility to elect deferral of interest payments on its ETPS obligation for up to

years While there can be no guarantee of the future the Company has an investment-grade credit rating and

has enjoyed uninterrupted access to the commercial paper and bank markets throughout the credit crunch that

has recently arisen Further the Company has not encountered liquidity difficulties historically when similar

credit tightening has occurred due to macro-economic issues Moreover the Companys existing credit

facilities and sources of liquidity including operating cash flows are considered adequate to conduct business
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as normal Accordingly based on present conditions and past history management believes it is unlikely that

operations will be materially affected by any potential further deterioration of the general credit markets that

may occur The Company believes that its strong financial position operating cash flows committed long-term

credit facilities and borrowing capacity and ready access to equity markets provide the financial flexibility

necessary to continue its record of annual dividend payments to invest in the routine needs of its businesses

to make strategic acquisitions and to fund other initiatives encompassed by its growth strategy

OTHER MATTERS

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN As detailed in Note Employee Benefit Plans of the Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements the Company has an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ESOP
under which the ongoing U.S Cornerstone and 40 1K defined contribution plans are funded Overall ESOP

expense is affected by the market value of Stanley stock on the monthly dates when shares are released among

other factors Net ESOP expense amounted to $11 million in 2008 and was $2 million in both 2007 and 2006

The increase in expense was mostly attributable to the average market value of shares released which

decreased from $49.28 in 2006 to $43.65 in 2008 as well as increased benefits pertaining to the headcount

expansion from acquisitions ESOP expense could increase in the future if the market value of the Companys

common stock declines However the Company has discontinued these benefits for 2009 as part of the cost

actions taken and thus there will be reduction in
expense

in fiscal 2009

CUSTOMER-RELATED RISKS The Company has significant customers particularly home centers and

major retailers though individually there are none that exceed 6% of consolidated sales The loss or material

reduction of business from any such significant customer could have material adverse impact on the

Companys results of operations and cash flows until either such customers were replaced or the Company

made the necessary adjustments to compensate for the loss of business

There are no individually material credit exposures from particular customers While the Company has strong

credit policies and disciplined management of receivables due to weak economic conditions or other factors it

is reasonably possible that certain customers creditworthiness may decline and losses from receivable write

offs may increase

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS Refer to Note Significant Accounting Policies of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of new accounting pronouncements and the potential

impact to the Companys consolidated results of operations and financial position

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES Preparation of the Companys Consolidated Financial State

ments requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

liabilities revenues and expenses Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Consolidated

Financial Statements are described in Note Significant Accounting Policies Management believes the most

complex and sensitive judgments because of their significance to the Consolidated Financial Statements result

primarily from the need to make estimates about the effects of matters with inherent uncertainty The most

significant areas involving management estimates are described below Actual results in these areas could

differ from managements estimates

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS The Companys estimate for its allowance for doubtful

accounts related to trade receivables is based on two methods The amounts calculated from each of these

methods are combined to determine the total amount reserved First specific reserve is established for

individual accounts where information indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial

obligations In these cases management uses its judgment based on the surrounding facts and circumstances

to record specific reserve for those customers against amounts due to reduce the receivable to the amount

expected to be collected These specific reserves are reevaluated and adjusted as additional information is

received Second reserve is determined for all customers based on range of percentages applied to

receivables aging categories These percentages are based on historical collection and write-off experience
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If circumstances change for example the occurrence of higher than expected defaults or significant adverse

change in major customers ability to meet its financial obligation to the Company estimates of the

recoverability of receivable amounts due could be reduced

INVENTORIES LOWER OF COST OR MARKET SLOW MOVING AND OBSOLETE Inventories in

the U.S are predominantly valued at the lower of LIFO cost or market while non-U.S inventories are valued

at the lower of FIFO cost or market The calculation of LIFO reserves and therefore the net inventory

valuation is affected by inflation and deflation in inventory components The Company ensures all inventory
is valued at the lower of cost or market and continually reviews the carrying value of discontinued product
lines and stock-keeping-units SKIJs to determine that these items are properly valued The Company also

continually evaluates the composition of its inventory and identifies obsolete and/or slow-moving inventories

Inventory items identified as obsolete and/or slow-moving are evaluated to determine if reserves are required
The Company assesses the ability to dispose of these inventories at price greater than cost If it is determined

that cost is less than market value cost is used for inventory valuation If market value is less than cost the

Company writes down the related inventory to that value If write down to the current market value is

necessary the market value cannot be greater than the net realizable value or ceiling defined as selling price

less costs to sell and dispose and cannot be lower than the net realizable value less normal profit margin
also called the floor If the Company is not able to achieve its expectations regarding net realizable value of

inventory at its current value reserves would have to be adjusted accordingly

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT The Company generally values Property Plant and EquipmentPPE at historical cost less accumulated depreciation Impairment losses are recorded when indicators of

impairment such as plant closures are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by

those assets are less than the carrying amount The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying

amount of the assets to the weighted average discounted cash flows which consider various possible outcomes

for the disposition of the assets i.e sale leasing etc. Primarily as result of plant rationalization certain

facilities and equipment are not currently used in operations The Company recorded $14 million in asset

impairment losses in 2008 primarily as result of key restructuring programs and such losses may occur in

the future

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS The Company completed acquisitions in 2008 and 2007 valued

at $572 million and $646 respectively The assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are recorded at fair

value at the date of acquisition Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying

net assets of acquired businesses The Company reported $1747 billion of goodwill and $300 million of

indefinite-lived trade names at January 2009

In accordance with SFAS No 142 goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not

amortized but are subject to annual impairment testing The identification and measurement of goodwill and

unamortized intangible asset impairment involves the estimation of fair value Impairment testing of goodwill

also requires the identification and valuation of reporting units The estimates of fair value of goodwill
indefinite-lived intangible assets and related reporting units are based on the information available at the date

of assessment including management assumptions about future cash flows discount rates and royalty rates

which are utilized to estimate the present value of future cash flows to be generated by the indefinite-lived

assets Future cash flows can be affected by changes in industry or market conditions or the rate and extent to

which anticipated synergies or cost savings are realized with acquired entities While the Company has not

recorded goodwill or other intangible asset impairment losses in many years it is possible impairments may
occur in the future in the event expected profitability cash flows or trade name usage change from current

estimates This is particularly the case with respect to the convergent security solutions reporting unit which

encompasses many recent acquisitions and the fastening systems reporting unit which continues to rationalize

its cost structure Deteriorating global economic conditions increase the risk that impairment losses may occur

in the future

ENVIRONMENTAL The Company incurs costs related to environmental issues as result of various laws

and regulations governing current operations as well as the rernediation of previously contaminated sites
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Future laws and regulations are expected to be increasingly stringent and will likely increase the Companys

expenditures related to routine environmental matters

The Companys policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and remediation costs for identified sites when

it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated The

liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each individual site and

includes such factors as existing technology presently enacted laws and regulations and prior experience in

remediation of contaminated sites As assessments and remediation progress at individual sites the amounts

recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal information that

becomes available As of January 2009 the Company had reserves of $29 million for remediation activities

associated with Company-owned properties as well as for Superfund sites for losses that are probable and

estimable The range of environmental remediation costs that is reasonably possible is $19 million to

$51 million which is subject to change in the near term The Company may be liable for environmental

remediation of sites it no longer owns Liabilities have been recorded on those sites in accordance with this

policy While the Company believes the $29 million liability recorded for environmental matters is adequate it

is possible that future developments may require charges for environmental exposures in excess of this reserve

INCOME TAXES The future tax benefit arising from net deductible temporary differences and tax loss

carry-forwards is $102 million at January 2009 The Company believes earnings during the periods when

the temporary differences become deductible will be sufficient to realize the related future income tax

benefits For those jurisdictions where the expiration date of tax loss carry-forwards or the projected operating

results indicate that realization is not likely valuation allowance is provided The valuation allowance as of

January 2009 amounted to $25 million

In assessing the need for valuation allowance the Company estimates future taxable income considering the

feasibility of ongoing tax planning strategies and the realizability of tax loss carry-forwards Valuation

allowances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to tax laws changes to statutory tax rates

and future taxable income levels In the event the Company were to determine that it would not be able to

realize all or portion of its deferred tax assets in the future the unrealizable amount would be charged to

earnings in the period in which that determination is made By contrast if the Company were to determine

that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net carrying amounts it would

decrease the recorded valuation allowance through favorable adjustment to earnings in the period in which

that determination is made The Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies for all tax years

still under audit based on the most current available information When it is deemed probable that an

adjustment will be asserted the Company accrues its best estimate of the tax liability inclusive of related

interest charges See Note Income Taxes of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further

discussion

RISK INSURANCE To some extent the Company self insures for various business exposures For domestic

workers compensation automobile and product liability the Company generally purchases outside insurance

coverage only for severe losses stop loss insurance The two risk areas involving the most significant

accounting estimates are workers compensation and product liability liability for alleged injuries associated

with the Companys products Actuarial valuations performed by an outside risk insurance consultant form the

basis for workers compensation and product liability loss reserves recorded The actuary contemplates the

Companys specific loss history actual claims reported and industry trends among statistical and other factors

to estimate the range of reserves required Risk insurance reserves are comprised of specific reserves for

individual claims and additional amounts expected for development of these claims as well as for incurred but

not yet reported claims The specific reserves for individual known claims are quantified by third party

administrator specialists insurance companies for workers compensation and by in-house legal counsel in

consultation with outside attorneys for automobile and product liability The cash outflows related to risk

insurance claims are expected to occur over approximately to 10 years and the present value of expected

future claim payments is reserved The Company believes the liability recorded for such risk insurance

reserves as of January 2009 is adequate but due to judgments inherent in the reserve estimation process
it

is possible the ultimate costs will differ from this estimate
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WARRANTY The Company provides product and service warranties which vary across its businesses The

types of warranties offered generally range from one year to limited lifetime while certain products carry no

warranty Further the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its products in connection with

product performance issues Historical
warranty and service claim experience forms the basis for warranty

obligations recognized Adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new information becomes

available The Company believes the $66 million reserve for expected warranty claims as of January 2009

is adequate but due to judgments inherent in the reserve estimation process including forecasting future

product reliability levels and costs of repair as well as the estimated age of certain products submitted for

claims the ultimate claim costs may differ from the recorded warranty liability

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENT

SYNTHETIC LEASES The Company is party to synthetic leasing programs for one of its major
distribution centers and certain U.S personal property predominately vehicles and equipment The programs

qualify as operating leases for accounting purposes such that only the monthly rent expense is recorded in the

Statement of Operations and the liability and value of the underlying assets are off-balance sheet These lease

programs are utilized primarily to reduce overall cost and to retain flexibility The cash outflows for lease

payments approximate the $16 million of rent expense recognized in fiscal 2008 As of January 2009 the

estimated fair value of assets and remaining obligations for these properties were $68 million and $58 million

respectively

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM
ACT OF 1995

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including but not limited to the statements

regarding the Companys ability to achieve higher working capital turns decrease cycle times reduce

complexity in operations and increase customer services levels ii realize favorable carryover effect from

previous customer pricing actions of approximately $30-SO million in 2009 iii generate pre-tax benefit

from cost actions implemented at mid-year 2008 and in conjunction with the restructuring announced on

December 11 2008 of approximately $195 million or $1.75 per diluted share in 2009 with an additional

$0.24 per share benefit in 2010 iv limit 2009 restructuring and related charges for certain productivity

initiatives and the continued rationalization of the Companys manufacturing footprint to approximately $40-

50 million pre-tax limit inflation-related cost increases in the first half of 2009 to $30 million vi continue

to make acquisitions and dispositions and vii limit funding obligations on the Companys defined benefit

plans to approximately $20 million in 2009 are forward-looking statements and are based on current

expectations These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks uncertainties

and assumptions that are difficult to predict There are number of risks uncertainties and important factors

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements In

addition to any such risks uncertainties and other factors discussed elsewhere herein the risks uncertainties

and other factors that could cause or contribute to actual results differing materially from those expressed or

implied in the forward looking statements include without limitation those set forth under Item 1A Risk

Factors hereto those contained in the Companys other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

and those set forth below

The Companys ability to deliver the results described above the Results is dependent upon the

Companys ability to implement the cost savings measures discussed in its December 11 2008 press release

within anticipated time frames and to limit associated costs ii the Companys ability to identify appropriate

acquisition and disposition opportunities and to complete such acquisitions and dispositions iii the

Companys ability to successfully integrate recent acquisitions including iidP Sonitrol Xmark and Scan

Modul as well as future acquisitions while limiting associated costs iv the success of the Companys
efforts to manage freight costs steel and other commodity costs the success of the Companys efforts to

sustain or increase prices in order to among other things offset or mitigate the impact of steel freight energy
non-ferrous commodity and other commodity costs and any inflation increases vi the Companys ability to

identify and effectively execute productivity improvements and cost reductions while minimizing any
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associated restructuring charges vii the continued ability of the Company to access credit markets under

satisfactory terms and viii the Companys ability to negotiate satisfactory payment terms under which the

Company buys and sells goods materials and products

The Companys ability to deliver the Results is also dependent upon the continued success of the

Companys marketing and sales efforts ii the ability of the Company to maintain or improve production rates

in the Companys manufacturing facilities respond to significant changes in product demand and fulfill

demand for new and existing products and iii the Companys ability to continue improvements in working

capital

The Companys ability to achieve the Results will also be affected by external factors These external factors

include pricing pressure and other changes within competitive markets the continued consolidation of

customers particularly in consumer channels inventory management pressures on the Companys customers

the impact the tightened credit market may have on the Company or its customers or suppliers the extent to

which the Company has to write off accounts receivable or assets in connection with bankruptcy filings by

customers or suppliers increasing competition changes in laws regulations and policies that affect the

Company including but not limited to trade monetary tax and fiscal policies and laws the timing and extent

of
any

inflation or deflation in 2009 currency exchange fluctuations the impact of dollar/foreign currency

exchange and interest rates on the competitiveness of products and the Companys debt program the strength

of the U.S and European economies the extent to which world-wide markets associated with homebuilding

and remodeling continue to deteriorate the impact of events that cause or may cause disruption in the

Companys manufacturing distribution and sales networks such as war terrorist activities or political unrest

and recessionary or expansive trends in the economies of the world in which the Company operates including

but not limited to the extent and duration of the current recession in the US economy

Unless required by applicable federal securities laws the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update

or revise any forward looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that may arise after the date hereof

Investors are advised however to consult any further disclosures made on related subjects in the Companys

reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

In addition to the foregoing some of the agreements included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-k

whether incorporated by reference to earlier filings or otherwise may contain representations and warranties

recitals or other statements that appear to be statements of fact These agreements are included solely to

provide investors with information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or

disclosure information about the Company or the other parties to the agreements Representations and

warranties recitals and other common disclosure provisions have been included in the agreements solely for

the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreements and often are used as means of allocating risk

among the parties Accordingly such statements should not be treated as categorical statements of fact

ii may be qualified by disclosures that were made to the other parties in connection with the negotiation of

the applicable agreements which disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement or included as

exhibits hereto iii may apply standards of materiality in way that is different from what may be viewed as

material by or to investors in or lenders to the Company and iv were made only as of the date of the

applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to more

recent developments

Accordingly representations and warranties recitals or other disclosures contained in agreements may not

describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time and should not be relied

on by any person other than the parties thereto in accordance with their terms Additional information about

the Company may be found in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Companys other public filings

which are available without charge through the SECs website at http//www.sec.gov

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company incorporates by reference the material captioned Market Risk in Item and the material in

Note Financial Instruments of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See Item 15 for an index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules Such Financial

Statements and Financial Statement Schedules are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The management of Stanley is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Management has assessed the effectiveness of Stanleys internal control over financial reporting

as of January 2009 In making its assessment management has utilized the criteria set forth by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control

Integrated Framework Management concluded that based on its assessment Stanleys internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of January 2009 Managements assessment of and conclusion on the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Sonitrol

Corporation Sonitrol which was acquired on July 18 2008 and Generale de Protection GdP which was

acquired on October 2008 Both Sonitrol and GdP are included in the 2008 consolidated financial

statements of The Stanley Works and constituted total assets of approximately $564 million at January 2009

and approximately $78 million of revenues for the year then ended Ernst Young LLP the auditor of the

financial statements included in this annual report has issued an attestation report on the registrants internal

control over financial reporting copy of which
appears on page 44

There has been no change in Stanleys internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended

January 2009 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect Stanleys internal

control over financial reporting

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the Companys Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President and Chief Financial Officer the Company has evaluated the

effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15e
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Based upon that evaluation as of the end of the period covered by
this Annual Report the Companys Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer have concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely

alerting them to material information relating to the Company including its consolidated subsidiaries required

to be included in its periodic Securities and Exchange Commission filings There have been no significant

changes in the Companys internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls

subsequent to the date of their evaluation

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

On February 23 2009 the Company entered into Change in Control Severance Agreement the Agree
ment with Donald Allan Jr and Mr Allan ceased to be participant in the Companys Special Severance

Plan The Agreement is in the same form as agreements previously executed by other senior executives and

provides for the following upon qualifying termination lump sum cash payment equal to 2.5 times

annual base salary ii cash payment equal to 2.5 times average annual bonus over the three years prior to

termination iii continuation of certain benefits and perquisites for 2.5 years or if shorter until similar

benefits are provided by Mr Allans new employer iv payment reflecting the actuarial value of an

additional 2.5 years of service credit for retirement pension accrual purposes under any defined benefit or

defined contribution plans maintained by Stanley and outplacement services with the cost to the Company
capped at $50000 Mr Allan also will be entitled to receive additional payments to the extent necessary to
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compensate him for any
excise taxes payable by him under the federal laws applicable to excess parachute

payments

The foregoing description does not purport to be complete statement of the parties rights and obligations

under the Agreement and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Agreement which is being filed as an

exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item except for certain information with respect to the Companys Code of

Ethics the executive officers of the Company and any material changes to the procedures by which security

holders may recommend nominees to the Companys board of directors as set forth below is incorporated

herein by reference to the information set forth in the section of the Companys definitive proxy statement

which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the close of

the Companys fiscal year under the headings Information Concerning Nominees for Election as Directors

Information Concerning Directors Continuing in Office Board of Directors and Section 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

In addition to Business Conduct Guidelines that apply to all directors and employees of the Company the

Company has adopted Code of Ethics that applies to the Companys chief executive officer and all senior

financial officers including the chief financial officer and principal accounting officer copy of the

Companys Code of Ethics is available on the Companys website at www.stanleyworks.com

The following is list of the executive officers of the Company as of February 25 2009

Date Elected to

Name Age Date of Birth Office Office

John Lundgren 57 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer President 03/01/04

09/03/51 European Consumer Products Georgia-Pacific

Corporation 2000

Donald Allan Jr 44 Vice President Chief Financial Officer since January 10/24/06

3/21/64 2009 Vice President Corporate Controller 2002

Corporate Controller 2000 Assistant Controller 1999

Jcffery Ansell 41 Vice President President Stanley Consumer Tools 02/22/06

1/05/68 Group President Consumer Tools and Storage 2004
President of Industrial Tools Storage 2002 Vice

President Global Consumer Tools Marketing 2001
Vice President Consumer Sales America 1999

Bruce Beatt 56 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since 10/09/00

07/24/52 October 2000

Brett Bontrager 46 President Convergent Security Solutions and Vice 04/25/07

10/27/62 President Business Development 2007 Vice President

Business Development 2004 Director Business

Development 2003

Justin Boswell 41 Vice President President Mechanical Access Solutions 07/26/05

12/03/67 since January 2007 President Stanley Securities

Solutions 2003 President Stanley Access Technologies

2000

Jeff Chen 50 Vice President President Asia Director Asia 04/27/05

08/22/58 Operations 2002 Managing Director Thailand 1999

Hubert Davis Jr 60 Senior Vice President Business Transformation since 05/25/04

08/28/48 2006 Vice President Chief Information Officer June

2000 Chief Information Officer and c-commerce Leader

2000
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Name Age Date of Birth Office
Date Elected to

Office

James Loree 50 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 07/19/99

06/14/58 since January 2009 Executive Vice President Finance

and Chief Financial Officer 1999

Mark Mathieu 57 Vice President Human Resources since September 1997 09/17/97

02/20/52

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under

the section entitled Executive Compensation of the Companys definitive proxy statement which will be

filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year

covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Items 20 1d and 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to

the information set forth under the sections entitled Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
Security Ownership of Directors and Officers Executive Compensation and 2009 LTIP Benefits of the

Companys definitive
proxy statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange

Act within 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Compensation plans under which the Companys equity securities are authorized for issuance at January

2009 follow

Number of securities

remaining available fo

future issuance under

Number of securities to equity compensation
be issued upon exercise of Weighted-average plans excluding

outstanding options exercise price of securities reflected in

Plan category and stock awards outstanding options column

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders 81328981 537.082 6278122

Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security_holders3

rotal 8132898 $37.08 6278122

Consists of shares underlying outstanding stock options whether vested or unvested shares underlying time-vesting restricted

stock units that have not yet vested and the maximum number of shares that will be issued pursuant to outstanding long term

performance awards if all established goals are met All stock-based compensation plans are discussed in Note Capital Stock

of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item

There is no cost to the recipient for shares issued pursuant to time-vesting restricted stock units or long term perforniance

awards Because there is no strike price applicable to these stock awards they are excluded from the weighted-average exercise

price
which

pertains solely to outstanding stock options

There is non-qualified deferred tax savings plan for highly compensated salaried employees which mirrors the qualified plan

provisions hut was not specifically approved by security
holders U.S employees are eligible to contribute from 1% to 15/o of

their salary to tax deferred savings plan as described in the ESOP section of Item Note Employee Benefit Plans to the

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K Prior to January 2009 the Company contributed an amount equal to

one-half of the employee contribution up to the first 7% of their salary The investment of the employees contribution and the
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Companys contribution was controlled by the employee participating
in the plan and may include an election to invest in Com

pany stock The same matching arrangement was provided fir highly compensated salaried employees in the non-qualified

plan except that the arrangement for these employees is outside of the ESOP and is not funded in advance of distributions

Shares of the Companys common stock may be issued at the time of distribution from the plan The number of securities

remaining available for issuance under the plan at January OO9 is not determinable since the plan does not authorize maxi

ilium number of securities

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Items 404 and 407a of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the

information set forth under the section entitled Board of Directors Related Party Transactions of the

Companys definitive proxy statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange

Act within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9e of Schedule 14A is incorporated herein by reference to the information

set forth under the section entitled Fees of Independent Auditors of the Companys definitive proxy

statement which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the

end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Index to documents filed as part of this report

and Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as separate section of this report beginning with an

index thereto on page 40

Exhibits

See Exhibit Index in this Form 10-K on page 85

Sec Exhibit Index in this Form 10-K on page 85

The response in this portion of Item 15 is submitted as separate section of this Form 10-K with an

index thereto beginning on page 40
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Company has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

THE STANLEY WORKS

By /s/ John Lundgren

John Lundgren Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer

Date February 25 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is John Lundgren Chairman and Chief Executive February 25 2009

John Lundgren Officer and Director

Is Donald Allan Jr Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 25 2009

Donald Allan Jr and Principal Accounting Officer

Director
February 25 2009

John Breen

Director
February 25 2009

Patrick Campbell

Director
February 25 2009

Carlos Cardoso

Director
February 25 2009

Virgis Colbert

Director
February 25 2009

Robert Coutts

Director
February 25 2009

Eileen Kraus

Director
February 25 2009

Marianne Parrs

Director
February 25 2009

Lawrence Zimmerman

By Is Bruce Beatt

Bruce Beatt

As Attorney-in-Fact
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FORM 10-K

ITEM 15a AND
THE STANLEY WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries is included in Item 15

page 41

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting page 42

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Financial Statement Opinion page 43

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Internal Control page 44

Consolidated Statements of Operations fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and

December 30 2006 page 45

Consolidated Balance Sheets January 2009 and December 29 2007 page 46

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and

December 30 2006 page 47

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners Equity fiscal years ended January 2009 Decem

ber 29 2007 and December 30 2006 page 48

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements page 49

Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited Page 84

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Report on Schedule Exhibit 23

All other schedules are omitted because either they are not applicable or the required information is shown in

the financial statements or the notes thereto
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Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

The Stanley Works and Subsidiaries

Fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

Millions of Dollars

ADDITIONS

Charged to Charged

Beginning Costs and To Other Ending
Description Balance Expenses Accounts Deductions Balance

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Year Ended 2008

Current $40.3 $17.5 $6.1 $24.1 $39.8

Non-current 0.8 0.1 0.4 0.5

Year Ended 2007

Current $33.3 $9.3 $5.5 $7.8 $40.3

Non-current 2.0 0.7 0.5 0.8

Year Ended 2006

Current $34.4 $3.8 $2.0 $6.9 $33.3

Non-current 2.3 0.3 2.0

Tax Valuation Allowance

Year Ended 2008 S27.3 $2.5 S2.1 $3.2 S24.5

Year Ended 2007 26.8 3.4 1.7 4.6 27.3

Year Ended 2006 27.2 2.6 2.8 5.8 26.8

With respect to the allowance for doubtful accounts represents amounts charged-off less recoveries of

accounts previously charged-off

Represents foreign currency
translation impact acquisitions and net transfers to from other accounts
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of The Stanley Works is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent

or detect misstatements Management has assessed the effectiveness of The Stanley Works internal control

over financial reporting as of January 2009 In making its assessment management has utilized the criteria

set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO of the Treadway Commission in Internal

Control Integrated Framework Management concluded that based on its assessment The Stanley Works

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 2009 Managements assessment of and

conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls

of Sonitrol Corporation Sonitrol which was acquired on July 18 2008 and Generale de Protection GdP
which was acquired on October 2008 Both Sonitrol and GdP are included in the 2008 consolidated

financial statements of The Stanley Works and constituted total assets of approximately $564 million at

January 2009 and approximately $78 million of revenues for the year then ended Ernst Young LLR the

auditor of the financial statements included in this annual report has issued an attestation report on the

registrants internal control over financial reporting copy of which appears on page 44

/s/ John Lundgren

John Lundgren Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Donald Allan Jr

Donald Allan Jr Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The Stanley Works

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of

January 2009 and December 29 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in

shareowners equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 2009

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries at January 2009 and December 29

2007 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in

the period ended January 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Financial Accounting

Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of

SFAS No 109 effective December 31 2006 As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial

statements the Company adopted SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and

Other Post-retirement PlansAn amendment to FASB Statement Nos 87 88 106 and 132R effective

December 30 2006

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States The Stanley Works internal control over financial reporting as of January 2009 based on

criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi

zations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 19 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Hartford Connecticut

February 19 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The Stanley Works

We have audited The Stanley Works internal control over financial reporting as of January 2009 based on

criteria established in Internal Control--lntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Stanley Works management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report

on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary

in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

As indicated in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

managements assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not

include the internal controls of Sonitrol Corporation Sonitrol and Generale de Protection GdP companies

acquired in 2008 which are included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of The Stanley Works and

constituted total assets of approximately $564 million at January 2009 and approximately $78 million of

revenues for the fiscal year then ended Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of The Stanley Works

also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Sonitrol and GdP

In our opinion The Stanley Works maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of January 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of January 2009

and December 29 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in shareowners equity

and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 2009 and our report dated

February 19 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Hartford Connecticut

February 19 2009

44



Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

In Millions of Dollars except per share amounts

2008 2007 2006

Net Sales $4426.2 $4360.5 $3897.3

Costs and Expenses

Cost of sales $2754.8 $2707.5 $2484.3

Selling general and administrative 1090.0 1029.1 928.5

Provision for doubtful accounts 17.6 9.3 3.8

Interest income 9.2 5.1 4.4
Interest expense 82.0 85.2 69.3

Other-net 104.2 87.1 54.3

Restructuring charges and asset impairments 85.5 12.8 13.8

$4124.9 $3925.9 $3549.6

Earnings from continuing operations before income

taxes 301.3 434.6 347.7

Income taxes 75.9 109.3 69.0

Net earnings from continuing operations $225.4 $325.3 $278.7

Earnings from discontinued operations before income

taxes 132.8 16.5 17.9

Income taxes on discontinued operations 44.9 5.2 7.1

Net earnings from discontinued operations $87.9 $1 1.3 $10.8

Net Earnings $313.3 $336.6 $289.5

Basic earnings per share of common stock

Continuing operations $2.86 $3.95 $3.40

Discontinued operations 1.11 0.14 0.13

Total basic earnings per share of common stock $3.97 $4.09 $3.54

Diluted earnings per share of common stock

Continuing operations $2.82 $3.87 $3.33

Discontinued operations 1.10 0.13 0.13

Total diluted earnings per share of common stock $3.92 $4.00 $3.46

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

January 2009 and December 29 2007

Millions of Dollars

2008 2007

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $211.6 $240.4

Accounts and notes receivable net 677.7 805.7

Inventories net 514.7 556.4

Deferred taxes 39.4 22.3

Assets held for sale 115.7

Other current assets 55.9 60.6

Total Current Assets 1499.3 1801.1

Property Plant and Equipment net 579.8 564.9

Goodwill 1747.4 1512.5

Customer Relationships net 482.3 321.4

Trade names net 333.6 332.2

Other Intangible Assets net 41.0 40.6

Other Assets 195.8 190.3

Total Assets $4879.2 $4763.0

Liabilities and Shareowners Equity

Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings $213.8 $282.5

Current maturities of long-term debt 13.9 10.3

Accounts payable 461.5 498.6

Accrued expenses 508.0 450.9

Liabilities held for sale
_______________

20.4

Total Current Liabilities 1197.2 1262.7

Long-Term Debt 1419.5 1212.1

Deferred Taxes 119.5 80.5

Other Liabilities 455.0 479.2

Shareowners Equity

Preferred stock without par value

Authorized and unissued 10000000 shares

Common stock par
value $2.50 per

share

Authorized 200000000 shares

Issued 92343410 shares in 2008 and 2007 233.9 233.9

Retained earnings 2269.5 2045.5

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 151.4 47.7

ESOP 87.2 93.8

2264.8 2233.3

Less cost of common stock in treasury 13467376 shares in 2008 and

11964623 shares in 2007 576.8 504.8

Total Shareowners Equity 1688.0 1728.5

Total Liabilities and Shareowners Equity $4879.2 $4763.0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal years
ended January 2009 December 29

Millions of Dollars

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2007 and December 30 2006

183.0

126.5

113.3

129.1

26.5

32.9
12.7

17.3

84.6

516.6

94.6

46.2
4.3

575.0
204.6

19.1

23.2

464.6

S3 36.6

162.2

48.8

316
47.4

34.9

47.9

14.4

21.7

544.1

65.5

21.4

7.6

642.5

5.1

71 6.9

227.6

529.9

49.3

192.3

12.1

10.4

206.9

96.5

99.8

2.0

210.6

26.0

63.8

176.6

$240.4

$289.5

1212

15

475

50.9

62.7

405

49.6

30.0

30.3

439.1

59.6

20.9

31.9

571.8

0.9

6.8

626.3

2008 2007 2006

Operating Activities

Net earnings $313.3

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided by

operating acti\ities

Depreciation and amortization

Pretax gain loss on sale of businesses

Other non-cash items

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Income taxes includes taxes on gain on sale of business

Other
_____________ _________ ___________

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures

Capitalized software

Proceeds from sales of assets

Business acquisitions

Proceeds from sales of businesses

Net investment hedge terminations

Other
__________ _______ ________

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities

Payments on long-term debt 44.9

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
249.7

Convertible notes hedge premium 0.1

Net proceeds repayments on short-term borrowings 73.5

Debt issuance costs and interest rate swap terminations 14.7

Stock purchase contract fees net of partial extinguishment 11.1

Purchase of common stock for treasury 103.3

Proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrants 19.1

Cash dividends on common stock 99.0

Other

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 48.2

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 32.6 _______ _________

Increase Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 28.8

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year
240.4

_______ _________

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $211.6
______ _________

4.2

66.4

5.9

201.6

64.4

96.1

298.0

4.0

481.2

657.8

$176.6
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Common Retained

Stock Earnings

Balance December 31 2005 $237.7 $1657.2

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Minimum pension liability net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declaredS 1.18 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 4026.224 shares

Minority interest common stock 3.8

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Adoption of SFAS No 158 net of tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit

Balance December 30 2006

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 336.6

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Change in pension net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared 1.22 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 3.786.8 13 shares

Adoption of FIN 48

Convertible notes hedge net of tax benefit

Issuance of stock warrants

Equity purchase contract and issuance costs

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit
__________ __________

Balance December 29 2007

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Change in pension net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declaredS .26 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 2240451 shares

Tax benefit on convertible notes hedge

Equity units repurchase
5.4

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit
__________

Balance January 2009
_________ _________

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

591.3 5108.2 5250.5 $1444.9

289.5

57.3 57.3

8.0

5.3

36t.I

96.1

69.3 62.5

201.6 201.6

3.8

29.4

61.1 61.1

8.1

_______________
7.3

_________
9.6

81.8 100.9 382.8 1552.0

336.6

102.1

t.7

26.7

466.1

99.8

84.9 68.6

206.9 206.9

13.5

36.3
18.8

56.7

14.1

12.8

_______________
7.1

_________
9.3

47.7 93.8 504.8 1728.5

313.3

158.0

0.3

40.8

114.2

99.0

31.3 5.3

103.3 103.3

.t

5.4

13.9

3.2

6.6
_________

8.8

$151.4 $87.2 S576.8 $1688.0

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners Equity

Fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Amounts

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

income Loss Esop

289.5

Treasury Shareossners

Stock Equity

5.3

96.1

6.8

29.4

8.1

2.3

233.9 1883.6

102.1

0.7

26.7

99.8

16.3

13.5

36.3

18.8

56.7

14.1

12.8

_________
2.2

233.9 2045.5

313.3

99.0

16.0

1.0

158.0

0.3

4t.8

13.9

3.2

2.2

$233.9 $2269.5
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICA1NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company

and its majority-owned subsidiaries which require consolidation after the elimination of intercompany

accounts and transactions The Companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to December There

were 53 weeks in the fiscal year 2008 and 52 weeks in both of the fiscal years 2007 and 2006

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses as well as certain financial statement disclosures While

management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are

appropriate actual results could differ from these estimates

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION For foreign operations with functional currencies other than the

U.S dollar asset and liability accounts are translated at current exchange rates income and expenses are

translated using weighted-average exchange rates Resulting translation adjustments are reported in separate

component of shareowners equity Exchange gains and losses on transactions are included in earnings and

amounted to net gain of $2.0 million for 2008 and net losses of $1.4 million and $3.8 million tbr 2007 and

2006 respectively

CASH EQUIVALENTS Highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or lessare

considered cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE Trade receivables are stated at gross
invoice amount less

discounts other allowances and provision for uncollectible accounts

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOtJNTS The Company estimates its allowance fbr doubtful

accounts using two methods First specific reserve is established for individual accounts wherc information

indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations Second reserve is determined

for all customers based on range
of percentages applied to aging categories These percentages are based on

historical collection and write-off experience Actual write-offs are charged against the allowance when

internal collection efforts have been unsuccessful

INVENTORIES U.S inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of Last-In First-Out LIFO cost or

market because the Company believes it results in better matching of costs and revenues Other inventories are

valued at the lower of First-In First-Out FIFO cost or market primarily because LIFO is not permitted for

statutory reporting outside the U.S See Note Inventory for quantification of the LIFO impact on

inventory valuation

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT The Company generally values property plant and equipment

PPE including capitalized software on the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the assets useful lives are

expensed as incurred Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods over the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

Useful Life

Years

Land improvements 10 20

Buildings 40

Machinery and equipment 15

Computer software

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease

The Company assesses its long-lived assets for impairment when indicators that the carrying values may not

be recoverable are present In assessing long-lived assets for impairment the Company groups its long-lived

assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are generated asset
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group and estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be

generated from the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group If the carrying value is greater than the

undiscounted cash flows an impairment loss must be determined and the asset group is written down to fair

value The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated

fair value which is determined using weighted-average discounted cash flows that consider various possible

outcomes for the disposition of the asset group During 2008 asset impairments totaled $13.6 million related

to the Companys restructuring actions which are described further in Note Restructuring and Asset

Impairments PPE impairment losses were minor in 2007 and 2006

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values

assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses Intangible assets acquired are recorded at

estimated fair value Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are

tested for impairment annually during the third quarter and at any time when events suggest an impairment

may have occurred To assess goodwill for impairment the Company determines the fair value of its reporting

units which are primarily determined using managements assumptions about future cash flows based on long-

range strategic plans This approach incorporates many assumptions including future growth rates discount

factors and tax rates In the event the carrying value of reporting unit exceeded its fair value an impairment

loss would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill exceeded the

implied fair value of the goodwill Indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment

by comparing to current fair market value usually determined by the estimated cost to lease the asset from

third parties Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally

using an accelerated method Under this accelerated method intangible assets are amortized reflecting the

pattern over which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed Definite-lived intangible

assets are also evaluated for impairment when impairment indicators are present If the carrying value exceeds

the total undiscounted future cash flows discounted cash flow analysis is performed to determine the fair

value of the asset If the carrying value of the asset were to exceed the fair value it would be written down to

fair value No goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded during 2008 2007 or 2006

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Derivative financial instruments are employed to manage risks including

foreign currency and interest rate exposures and are not used for trading or speculative purposes The

Company recognizes all derivative instruments such as interest rate swap agreements foreign currency

options and foreign exchange contracts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Changes in the fair

value of derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or in Shareowners Equity as component

of other comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument is undesignated or

qualifies for hedge accounting and if so whether it qualifies as fair value cash flow or net investment

hedge Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in earnings along

with the changes in the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk Gains and losses on

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective are recorded in other comprehen

sive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset the impact of the hedged items when they

occur In the event it becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which cash flow hedge relates will not

occur the derivative would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income would generally be

recognized in earnings Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign

operations are reported in other comprehensive income Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated

as hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and any portion of hedge that is considered ineffective

are reported in earnings in either Cost of sales for those derivatives relating to inventory purchases or

Other-net for all other derivatives

The net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as interest expense Gains and losses

resulting from the early termination of interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as

adjustments to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered by the terminated

swap

REVENUE RECOGNITION General Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete

collectibility is reasonably assured and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer
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which generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product but sometimes is upon delivery to customer

facilities Provisions for customer volume rebates product returns discounts and allowances are recorded as

reduction of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded

Multiple Element Arrangements In 2008 approximately $975 million in revenues were generated by multiple

element arrangements primarily in the Security segment These sales contracts typically consist of products

sold and installed by the Company at the customer location Revenue from equipment sales is generally

recognized ortce installation is complete Certain sales agreements also include maintenance and monitoring

services pertaining to the installed equipment Service revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term as

services are rendered

Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for monitoring services not yet rendered are deferred

The associated deferred revenue is included in Accrued expenses
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the

extent that customers have paid in advance of equipment or service delivery

When sales agreement involves multiple elements deliverables are separately identified and consideration is

allocated based on their relative fair values in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 00-21

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables Fair value is generally determined by reference to the

prices charged in standalone transactions

ADVERTISING COSTS Television advertising is expensed the first time the advertisement airs whereas

other advertising is expensed as incurred Advertising costs are classified in SGA and amounted to

$39.3 million in 2008 $42.1 million in 2007 and $42.1 million in 2006 Cooperative advertising expense

reported as deduction in net sales was $29.0 million in 2008 $28.0 million in 2007 and $25.8 million in

2006

ACQUISITION COSTS Certain costs directly related to acquisitions including legal audit and other fees

were recorded to goodwill for all accluisitions consummated during 2008 and earlier years as required under

SFAS No 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141 Beginning in fiscal 2009 all such costs associated

with new business acquisitions will be expensed as incurred Refer to the section entitled New Accounting

Standards also included within Note for further details

SALES TAXES Sales and value added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental

authorities are excluded from net sales reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS The Company generally does not bill customers for freight

Shipping and handling costs associated with inbound freight are reported in cost of sales Shipping costs

associated with outbound freight are reported as reduction of net sales and amounted to SI 29.7 million

$130.1 million and $124.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Distribution costs are classified as

SGA and amounted to $122.2 million $128.7 million and $118.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Compensation cost relating to stock-based compensation grants is

recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period which is generally four years The expense for stock

options and restricted stock units awarded to retirement eligible employees those aged 55 and over and with

10 or more years of service is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible

INCOME TAXES Income tax expense
is based on reported earnings before income taxes Interest and

penalties related to income taxes are classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for

financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes and are measured by applying

enacted tax rates in effect in years
in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance is

recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized

EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic earnings per share equals net earnings divided by weighted-average shares

outstanding during the year
Diluted earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using

the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners Equity

Fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Amounts

Accumulated Other

Common Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareossners

Stock Earnings Income Loss ESOP Stock Equity

Balance December 31 2005 S237.7 $1657.2 591.3 5108.2 5250.5 Sl.444.9

Comprehensive income

Net earnings
289.5 289.5

Currency translation adjustment and other 57.3 57.3

Cash flow hedge net of tax 8.0 8.0

Minimum pension liability net of tax 5.3 5.3

Total comprehensive income 360.1

Cash dividends declared$l.18 per share 96.1 96.1

Issuance of common stock 69.3 62.5

Repurchase of common stock 4026224 shares 201.6 201.6

Minority interest common stock 3.8 3.8

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax 29.4 29.4

Adoption of SFAS No 158 net of tax 61.1 61.1

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 8.1 8.1

and related tax benefit
_________

2.3
________________

7.3
_________

9.6

Balance December 30 2006 233.9 1883.6 81.8 100.9 382.8 1552.0

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 336.6 336.6

Currency translation adjustment and other 102.1 102.1

Cash flow hedge net of tax 0.7 0.7

Change in pension net of tax 26.7 26.7

Total comprehensive income 466.1

Cash dividends declaredS 1.22 per share 99.8 99.8

Issuance of common stock 16.3 84.9 68.6

Repurchase of common stock 3786813 shares 206.9 206.9

Adoption of FIN 48 13.5 13.5

Convertible notes hedge net of tax benefit 36.3 36.3

Issuance of stock warrants 18.8 18.8

Equity purchase contract and issuance costs 56.7 56.7

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax
14.1 14.1

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 12.8 12.8

and related tax benefit
__________

2.2
_________________

7.1
__________

9.3

Balance December 29 2007 233.9 2045.5 47.7 93.8 504.8 1728.5

Comprehensive income

Net earnings
313.3 313.3

Currency translation adjustment and other 158.0 158.0

Cash flow hedge net of tax 0.3 0.3

Change in pension net of tax 40.8 40.8

Total comprehensive income 114.2

Cash dividends declared--SI.26 per share 99.0 99.0

Issuance of common stock 16.0 31.3 15.3

Repurchase of common stock 2240451 shares 103.3 103.3

Tax benefit on convertible notes hedge 1.0

Equity units repurchase
5.4 5.4

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax
13.9 13.9

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 3.2 3.2

and related tax benefit
__________

2.2 6.6
__________

8.8

Balance January 2009 8233.9 $2269.5 8151.4 887.2 8576.8 $1688.0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company

and its majority-owned subsidiaries which require consolidation afler the elimination of intercompany

accounts and transactions The Companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to December 31 There

were 53 weeks in the fiscal year 2008 and 52 weeks in both of the fiscal years 2007 and 2006

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses as well as certain financial statement dsclosures While

management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are

appropriate actual results could differ from these estimates

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION For threign operations with functional currencies other than the

U.S dollar asset and liability accounts are translated at current exchange rates income and expenses are

translated using weighted-average exchange rates Resulting translation adjustments are reported in separate

component of shareowners equity Exchange gains and tosses on transactions are included in earnings and

amounted to net gain of $2.0 million for 2008 and net losses of $1.4 million and S3.8 million for 2007 and

2006 respectively

CASH EQUIVALENTS Highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are

considered cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE Trade receivables are stated at gross invoice amount less

discounts other allowances and provision for uncotlectible accounts

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful

accounts using two methods First specific reserve is established for individual accounts where information

indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations Second reserve is determined

for all customers based on range of percentages applied to aging categories These percentages are based on

historical collection and write-off experience Actual write-offs are charged against the allo\\ance when

internal collection efforts have been unsuccessful

INVENTORIES U.S inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of Last-In First-Out LIFO cost or

market because the Company believes it results in better matching of costs and revenues Other inventories are

valued at the lower of First-In First-Out FIFO cost or market primarily because LIFO is not permitted for

statutory reporting outside the U.S See Note Inventory for quantification of the LIFO impact on

inventory valuation

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT The Company generally values property plant and equipment

PPE including capitalized software on the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the assets useful lives are

expensed as incurred Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods over the

estimated usefi.il lives of the assets as follows

Useful l.il

Years

Land improvements 10 20

Buildings 40

Machinery and equipment IS

Computer software --

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease

The Company assesses its tong-lived assets for impairment when indicators that the carrying values may not

be recoverable are present In assessing long-lived assets for impairment the Company groups its long-lived

assets with ott-icr assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are generated asset
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group and estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be

generated froni the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group If the carrying value is greater than the

undiscounted cash flows an impairment loss must be determined and the asset group is written down to fair

value The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated

fair value which is determined using weighted-average discounted cash flows that consider various possible

outcomes for the disposition of the asset group During 2008 asset impairments totaled S13.6 million related

to the Companys restructuring actions which are described further in Note Restructuring and Asset

Impairments PPE impairment losses were minor in 2007 and 2006

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values

assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses Intangible assets acquired are recorded at

estimated fair value Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are

tested for impairment annually during the third quarter and at any time when events suggest an impairment

may have occurred To assess goodwill for impairment the Company determines the fair value of its reporting

units which are primarily determined using managements assumptions about future cash flows based on long-

range strategic plans This approach incorporates many assumptions including future growth rates discount

factors and tax rates In the event the carrying value of reporting unit exceeded its fair value an impairment

loss would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill exceeded the

implied fair value of the goodwill Indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment

by comparing to current fair market value usually determined by the estimated cost to lease the asset from

third parties Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally

using an accelerated method Under this accelerated method intangible assets are amortized reflecting the

pattern over which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed Definite-lived intangible

assets are also evaluated for impairment when impairment indicators are present If the carrying value exceeds

the total undiscounted future cash flows discounted cash flow analysis is performed to determine the fair

value of the asset If the carrying value of the asset were to exceed the fair value it would be written down to

fair value No goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded during 2008 2007 or 2006

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Derivative financial instruments are employed to manage risks including

foreign currency and interest rate exposures and are not used for trading or speculative purposes The

Company recognizes all derivative instruments such as interest rate swap agreements foreign currency

options and foreign exchange contracts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Changes in the fair

value of derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or in Shareowners Equity as component

of other comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument is undesignated or

qualifies for hedge accounting and if so whether it qualifies as fair value cash flow or net investment

hedge Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in earnings along

with the changes in the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk Gains and losses on

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective are recorded in other comprehen

sive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset the impact of the hedged items when they

occur In the event it becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which cash flow hedge relates will not

occur the derivative would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income would generally be

recognized in earnings Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign

operations are reported in other comprehensive income Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated

as hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and any portion of hedge that is considered ineffective

are reported in earnings in either Cost of sales for those derivatives relating to inventory purchases or

Other-net for all other derivatives

The net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as interest expense Gains and losses

resulting from the early termination of interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as

adjustments to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered by the terminated

swap

REVENUE RECOGNITION General Revenue is recognized when the earnings process
is complete

collectibility is reasonably assured and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer
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which generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product but sometimes is upon delivery to customer

facilities Provisions for customer volume rebates product returns discounts and allowances are recorded as

reduction of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded

Multiple Element Arrangements In 2008 approximately $975 million in revenues were generated by multiple

element arrangements primarily in the Security segment These sales contracts typically consist of products

sold and installed by the Company at the customer location Revenue from equipment sales is generally

recognized once installation is complete Certain sales agreements also include maintenance and monitoring

services pertaining to the installed equipment Service revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term as

services are rendered

Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for monitoring services not yet rendered are deferred

The associated deferred revenue is included in Accrued expenses
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the

extent that customers have paid in advance of equipment or service delivery

When sales agreement involves multiple elements deliverables are separately identified and consideration is

allocated based on their relative fair values in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 00-2

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables Fair value is generally determined by reference to the

prices charged in standalone transactions

ADVERTISING COSTS Television advertising is expensed the first time the advertisement airs whereas

other advertising is expensed as incurred Advertising costs are classified in SGA and amounted to

$39.3 million in 2008 $42.1 million in 2007 and $42.1 million in 2006 Cooperative advertising expense

reported as deduction in net sales was $29.0 million in 2008 $28.0 million in 2007 and $25.8 million iii

2006

ACQUISITION COSTS Certain costs directly related to acquisitions including legal audit and other fees

were recorded to goodwill for all acquisitions consummated during 2008 and earlier years as required under

SFAS No 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141 Beginning in fiscal 2009 all such costs associated

with new business acquisitions will be expensed as incurred Refer to the section entitled Ixew Accounting

Standards also included within Note for further details

SALES TAXES Sales and value added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental

authorities are excluded from net sales reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS The Company generally does not bill customers ftr freight

Shipping and handling costs associated with inbound freight are reported in cost of sales Shipping costs

associated with outbound freight are reported as reduction of net sales and amounted to $129.7 million

$130.1 million and $124.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Distribution costs are classified as

SCIA and amounted to $122.2 million $128.7 million and $118.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Compensation cost relating to stock-based compensation grants is

recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period which is generally four years The expense thr stock

options and restricted stock units awarded to retirement eligible employees those aged 55 and over and with

10 or more years of service is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible

INCOME TAXES Income tax expense is based on reported earnings before income taxes Interest and

penalties related to income taxes are classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabiJities recognized tbr

financial reporting purposes
and such amounts recognized for tax purposes and are measured by applying

enacted tax rates in effect in years
in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance is

recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized

EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic earnings per share equals net earnings divided by weighted-average shares

outstanding during the year
Diluted earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using

the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive
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Balance December 31 2005

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Minimum pension liability net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared $1.18 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 4026224 shares

Minority interest common stock

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Adoption of SFAS No 158 net of tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit

Balance December 30 2006

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Change in pension net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared $1.22 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 3786813 shares

Adoption of FIN 48

Convertible notes hedge net of tax benefit

Issuance of stock warrants

Equity purchase contract and issuance costs

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit

Balance December 29 2007

Comprehensive income

Net earnings

Currency translation adjustment and other

Cash flow hedge net of tax

Change in pension net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared 1.26 per share

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock 2241451 shares

Tax benefit on convertible notes hedge

Equity units repurchase

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised

ESOP and related tax benefit

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

289.5

57.3

8.0

360.1

96.1

69.3 62.5

201.6 201.6

3.8

336.6

102.1

0.7

26.7

466.1

99.8

84.9 68.6

206.9 206.9

13.5

36.3

18.8

56.7

14.1

12.8

9.3

504.8 1728.5

313.3

158.0

0.3

40.8

114.2

99.0

31.3 15.3

103.3 103.3

1.0

5.4

3.9

3.2

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners Equity

Fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Amounts

Accumulated Other

Comprehensiie

Income I.oss

Treasury Shareowners

ESOP Stock Equity

591.3 $108.2 $250.5 $1444.9

57.3

8.0

5.3

7.3
__________

100.9 382.8

29.4

61.1

8.1

9.6

1552

Common Retained

Stock Earnings __________________ ___________

S237.7 $1657.2

289.5

96.1

6.8

3.8

29.4

61.1

8.1

2.3
________________ _________

233.9 1883.6 81.8

336.6

102.1

0.7

26.7

99.8

16.3

13.5

36.3

18.8

56.7

14.1

12.8

2.2
_____________

7.1

233.9 2045.5 47.7 93.8

313.3

158.0

0.31

40.8

99.0

16.0

1.0

5.4

13.9

3.2

2.2
________________ _________

__________
S2269.5

_________________ __________
Balance January 2009 $233.9

_______________
6.6

_________
8.8

151.4 587.2 5576.8 $1688.0
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company
and its majority-owned subsidiaries which require consolidation after the elimination of intercompany

accounts and transactions The Companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to December There

were 53 weeks in the fiscal year 2008 and 52 weeks in both of the fiscal years 2007 and 2006

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses as well as certain financial statement disclosures While

management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are

appropriate actual results could differ from these estimates

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION For foreign operations with functional currencies other than the

U.S dollar asset and liability accounts are translated at current exchange rates income and expenses are

translated using weighted-average exchange rates Resulting translation adjustments are reported in separate

component of shareowners equity Exchange gains and losses on transactions are included in earnings and

amounted to net gain of $2.0 million for 2008 and net losses of $1.4 million and $3.8 million tor 2007 and

2006 respectively

CASH EQUIVALENTS Highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are

considered cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE Trade receivables are stated at gross invoice amount less

discounts other allowances and provision for uncollectible accounts

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful

accounts using two methods First specific reserve is established for individual accounts where information

indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations Second reserve is determined

for all customers based on range of percentages applied to aging categories These percentages are based on

historical collection and write-off experience Actual write-offs are charged against the allowance when

internal collection efforts have been unsuccessful

INVENTORIES U.S inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of Last-In First-Out LIFO cost or

market because the Company believes it results in better matching of costs and revenues Other inventories are

valued at the lower of First-In First-Out FIFO cost or niarket primarily because LIFO is not permitted for

statutory reporting outside the U.S See Note Inventory for quantification of the LIFO impact on

inventory valuation

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT The Company generally values property plant and equipmentPPE including capitalized software on the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the assets useful lives are

expensed as incurred Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods over the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

Useful Life

Oars

Land improvements 10 20

Buildings 40

Machinery and equipment

Computer sofi

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease

The Company assesses its long-lived assets for Impairment when indicators that the carrying values may not

be recoverable are present In assessing long-lived assets for impairment the Company groups its long-lived

assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows aie generated asset
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group and estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be

generated from the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group If the carrying value is greater than the

undiscounted cash flows an impairment loss must be determined and the asset group is written down to fair

value The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated

fair value which is determined using weighted-average discounted cash flows that consider various possible

outcomes for the disposition of the asset group During 2008 asset impairments totaled $13.6 million related

to the Companys restructuring actions which are described further in Note Restructuring and Asset

Impairments PPE impairment losses were minor in 2007 and 2006

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values

assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses Intangible assets acquired are recorded at

estimated fair value Goodwill and intangible assets deenied to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are

tested for impairment annually during the third quarter and at any time when events suggest an impairment

may have occurred To assess goodwill for impairment the Company determines the fair value of its reporting

units which are primarily determined using managements assumptions about future cash flows based on long-

range strategic plans This approach incorporates many assumptions including future growth rates discount

factors and tax rates In the event the carrying value of reporting unit exceeded its fair value an impairment

loss would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill exceeded the

implied fair value of the goodwill Indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment

by comparing to current fair market value usually determined by the estimated cost to lease the asset from

third parties Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally

using an accelerated method Under this accelerated method intangible assets are amortized reflecting the

pattern over which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed Definite-lived intangible

assets are also evaluated for impairment when impairment indicators are present If the carrying value exceeds

the total undiscounted future cash flows discounted cash flow analysis is performed to determine the fair

value of the asset If the carrying value of the asset were to exceed the fair value it would be written down to

fair value No goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded during 2008 2007 or 2006

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Derivative financial instruments are employed to manage risks including

foreign currency and interest rate exposures and are not used for trading or speculative purposes The

Company recognizes all derivative instruments such as interest rate swap agreements foreign currency

options and foreign exchange contracts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Changes in the fair

value of derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or in Shareowners Equity as component

of other comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument is undesignated or

qualifies for hedge accounting and if so whether it qualifies as fair value cash flow or net investment

hedge Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in earnings along

with the changes in the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk Gains and losses on

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective are recorded in other comprehen

sive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset the impact of the hedged items when they

occur In the event it becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which cash flow hedge relates will not

occur the derivative would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income would generally be

recognized in earnings Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign

operations are reported in other comprehensive income Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated

as hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and any portion of hedge that is considered ineffective

are reported in earnings in either Cost of sales for those derivatives relating to inventory purchases or

Other-net for all other derivatives

The net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as interest expense Gains and losses

resulting from the early termination of interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as

adjustments to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered by the terminated

swap

REVENUE RECOGNITION General Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete

collectibility is reasonably assured and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer
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which generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product but sometimes is upon delivery to customer

facilities Provisions for customer volume rebates product returns discounts and allowances are recorded as

reduction of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded

Multiple Element Arrangements In 2008 approximately $975 million in revenues were generated by multiple

element arrangements primarily in the Security segment These sales contracts typically consist of products

sold and installed by the Company at the customer location Revenue from equipment sales is generally

recognized once installation is complete Certain sales agreements also include maintenance and monitoring

services pertaining to the installed equipment Service revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term as

services are rendered

Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for monitoring services not yet rendered are deferred

The associated deferred revenue is included in Accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the

extent that customers have paid in advance of equipment or service delivery

When sales agreement involves multiple elements deliverables are separately identified and consideration is

allocated based on their relative fair values in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 00-21

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables Fair value is generally determined by refrcnce to the

prices charged in standalone transactions

ADVERTISING COSTS Television advertising is expensed the first time the advertisement airs whereas

other advertising is expensed as incurred Advertising costs are classified in SGA and amounted to

$39.3 million in 2008 $42.1 million in 2007 and $42.1 million in 2006 Cooperative advertising expense

reported as deduction in net sales was $29.0 million in 2008 $28.0 million in 2007 and $25.8 million in

2006

ACQUISITION COSTS Certain costs directly related to acquisitions including legal audit and other fees

were recorded to goodwill for all acquisitions consummated during 2008 and earlier years as required under

SFAS No 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141 Beginning in fiscal 2009 all such costs associated

with new business acquisitions will be expensed as incurred Refer to the section entitled New Accounting

Standards also included within Note for further details

SALES TAXES Sales and value added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental

authorities are excluded from net sales reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS The Company generally does not bill customers for freight

Shipping and handling costs associated with inbound freight are reported in cost of sales Shipping costs

associated with outbound freight are reported as reduction of net sales and amounted to $129.7 million

Sl30.l million and $124.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Distribution costs are classified as

SGA and amounted to $122.2 million $128.7 million and $118.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Compensation cost relating to stock-based compensation grants is

recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period which is generally four years The expense for stock

options and restricted stock units awarded to retirement eligible employees those aged 55 and over and with

10 or more years of service is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible

INCOME TAXES Income tax expense
is based on reported earnings before income taxes Interest and

penalties related to income taxes are classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for

financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes and are measured by applying

enacted tax rates in effect in years in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance is

recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized

EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic earnings per
share equals net earnings divided by weighted-average shares

outstanding during the year Diluted earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using

the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareowners Eqnity

Fiscal years
ended Jannary 2009 December 29 2007 and December 30 2006

Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Amonnts

Accumulated Other

Cummon Retained Compreheusive Treasury Shareowuers

Stuck Earnings Income Loss ESOP Stock Equity

Balance December 31 2005 $237.7 $1657.2 $91.3 $008.2 $250.5 $1444.9

Comprehensive income

Net earnings
289.5 289.5

Currency translation adjustment and other 57.3 57.3

Cash flow hedge net of tax
8.0 8.0

Minimum pension liability net of tax 5.3 5.3

Total comprehensive income
360.1

Cash dividends declared$l.l8 per share 96.1 96.1

Issuance of common stock 6.8 69.3 62.5

Repurchase of common stock 4026224 shares
201.6 201.6

Minority interest common stock 3.8 3.8

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax 29.4 29.4

Adoption of SFAS No 158 net of tax 61.1 61.1

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 8.1
8.1

ESOP and related tax benefit
_________

2.3
________________

7.3
_________

9.6

Balance December 30 2006 233.9 1883.6 81.8 100.9 382.8 1552.0

Comprehensive income

Net earnings
336.6 336.6

Currency translation adjustment and other 102.1 102.1

Cash flow hedge net of tax
0.7 0.7

Change in pension net of tax 26.7 26.7

Total comprehensive income
466.1

Cash dividends declared$ 1.22 per share 99.8 99.8

Issuance of common stock 16.3 84.9 68.6

Repurchase of common stock 3786813 shares 206.9 206.9

Adoption of FIN 48 13.5 13.5

Convertible notes hedge net of tax benefit 36.3 36.3

Issuance of stock warrants 18.8 18.8

Equity purchase contract and issuance costs 56.7 56.7

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax
14.1 14.1

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 12.8 12.8

ESOP and related tax benefit
_________

2.2
_______________

7.1
_________

9.3

Balance December 29 2007 233.9 2045.5 47.7 93.8 504.8 1728.5

Comprehensive income

Net earnings
313.3 313.3

Currency translation adjustment and other 158.0 158.0

Cash flow hedge net of tax 0.3 0.3

Change in pension net of tax 40.8 40.8

Total comprehensive income
114.2

Cash dividends declared$ 1.26 per share 99.0 99.0

Issuance of common stock 16.0 31.3 15.3

Repurchase of common stock 2240451 shares 103.3 103.3

Tax benefit on convertible notes hedge
1.0

1.0

Equity units repurchase
5.4 5.4

Other stock-based compensation related net of

tax 13.9 13.9

Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 3.2 3.2

ESOP and related tax benefit
_________

2.2
________________

6.6
_________

8.8

Balance January 2009 $233.9 $2269.5 $151.4 $87.2 $576.8 $1688.0

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company
and its majority-owned subsidiaries which require consolidation after the elimination of intercompany

accounts and transactions The Companys fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to December There

were 53 weeks in the fiscal year 2008 and 52 weeks in both of the fiscal years 2007 and 2006

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses as well as certain financial statement disclosures While

management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are

appropriate actual results could differ from these estimates

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION For foreign operations with functional currencies other than the

U.S dollar asset and liability accounts are translated at current exchange rates income and expenses are

translated using weighted-average exchange rates Resulting translation adjustments are reported in separate

component of shareowners equity Exchange gains and losses on transactions are included in earnings and

amounted to net gain of $2.0 million for 2008 and net losses of $1.4 million and $3.8 million for 2007 and

2006 respectively

CASH EQUIVALENTS Highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are

considered cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE Trade receivables are stated at gross invoice amount less

discounts other allowances and provision for uncollectible accounts

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful

accounts using two methods First specific reserve is established for individual accounts where information

indicates the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations Second reserve is determined

for all customers based on range of percentages applied to aging categories These percentages are based on

historical collection and write-off experience Actual write-offs are charged against the allowance when

internal collection efforts have been unsuccessful

INVENTORIES U.S inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of Last-In First-OLLt LIFO cost or

market because the Company believes it results in better matching of costs and revenues Other inventories are

valued at the lower of First-In First-Out FIFO cost or market primarily because LIFO is not permitted for

statutory reporting outside the U.S See Note Inventory for quantification of the LIFO impact on

inventory valuation

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT The Company generally values property plant and equipmentPPE including capitalized software on the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the assets useful lives are

expensed as incurred Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods over the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

Useful LiU

Years

Land improvements 10 20

Buildings 40

Machinery and equipment IS

Computer software

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease

The Company assesses its long-lived assets for impairment when indicators that the carrying values may not

be recoverable are present In assessing long-lived assets for impairment the Company groups its long-lived

assets with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are generated asset
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group and estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be

generated from the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group If the carrying value is greater than the

undiscounted cash flows an impairment loss must be determined and the asset group is written down to fair

value The impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated

fair value which is determined using weighted-average discounted cash flows that consider various possible

outcomes for the disposition of the asset group During 2008 asset impairments totaled $13.6 million related

to the Companys restructuring actions which are described further in Note Restructuring and Asset

Impairments PPE impairment losses were minor in 2007 and 2006

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Goodwill represents costs in excess of fair values

assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses Intangible assets acquired are recorded at

estimated fair value Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are

tested for impairment annually during the third quarter and at any time when events suggest an impairment

may have occurred To assess goodwill for impairment the Company determines the fair value of its reporting

units which are primarily determined using managements assumptions about future cash flows based on long-

range strategic plans This approach incorporates many assumptions including future growth rates discount

factors and tax rates In the event the carrying value of reporting unit exceeded its fair value an impairment

loss would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill exceeded the

implied fair value of the goodwill Indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment

by comparing to current fair market value usually determined by the estimated cost to lease the asset from

third parties Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives generally

using an accelerated method Under this accelerated method intangible assets are amortized reflecting the

pattern over which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are consumed Definite-lived intangible

assets are also evaluated for impairment when impairment indicators are present If the carrying value exceeds

the total undiscounted future cash flows discounted cash flow analysis is performed to determine the fair

value of the asset If the carrying value of the asset were to exceed the fair value it would be written down to

fair value No goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded during 2008 2007 or 2006

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Derivative financial instruments are employed to manage risks including

foreign currency and interest rate exposures and are not used for trading or speculative purposes The

Company recognizes all derivative instruments such as interest rate swap agreements foreign currency

options and foreign exchange contracts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Changes in the fair

value of derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or in Shareowners Equity as component

of other comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative financial instrument is undesignated or

qualifies for hedge accounting and if so whether it qualifies as fair value cash flow or net investment

hedge Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in earnings along

with the changes in the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk Gains and losses on

derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to the extent they are effective are recorded in other comprehen

sive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset the impact of the hedged items when they

occur In the event it becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which cash flow hedge relates will not

occur the derivative would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income would generally be

recognized in earnings Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign

operations are reported in other comprehensive income Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated

as hedges under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended and any portion of hedge that is considered ineffective

are reported in earnings in either Cost of sales for those derivatives relating to inventory purchases or

Other-net for all other derivatives

The net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as interest expense Gains and losses

resulting from the early termination of interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as

adjustments to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered by the terminated

swap

REVENUE RECOGNITION General Revenue is recognized when the earnings process is complete

collectibility is reasonably assured and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer
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which generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product but sometimes is upon delivery to customer

facilities Provisions for customer volume rebates product returns discounts and allowances arc recorded as

reduction of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded

Multiple Element Arrangements In 2008 approximately $975 million in revenues were generated by multiple

element arrangements primarily in the Security segment These sales contracts typically consist of products

sold and installed by the Company at the customer location Revenue from equipment sales is generally

recognized once installation is complete Certain sales agreements also include maintenance and monitoring

services pertaining to the installed equipment Service revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term as

services are rendered

Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for monitoring services aot yet rendered are deterred

The associated deferred revenue is included in Accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the

extent that customers have paid in advance of equipment or service delivery

When sales agreement involves multiple elements deliverables are separately identified and consideration is

allocated based on their relative fair values in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 00-21

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables Fair value is generally cktermincd by refCrence to the

prices charged in standalone transactions

ADVERTISING COSTS Television advertising is expensed the first tune the advertisement airs whereas

other advertising is expensed as incurred Advertising costs are classified in SGA and amounted to

$39.3 million in 2008 842.1 million in 2007 and $42.1 million in 2006 Cooperative advertising expense

reported as deduction in net sales was 829.0 million in 2008 828.0 million in 2007 and S25.8 million in

2006

ACQUISITION COSTS Certain costs directly related to acquisitions including legal audit and other fees

were recorded to goodwill for all acquisitions consummated during 2008 and earlier years as required under

SEAS No 141 Business Combinations SEAS 141 Beginning in fiscal 2009 all such costs associated

with new business acquisitions will he expensed as incurred Refer to the section entitled New Accounting

Standards also included within Note for further details

SALES TAXES Sales and value added taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental

authorities are excluded from net sales reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS The Company generally does not bill customers for freight

Shipping and handling costs associated with inbound freight are reported in cost of sales Shipping costs

associated with outbound freight are reported as reduction of net sales and amounted to $129.7 million

$130.1 million and $124.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Distribution costs are classified as

SGA and amounted to $122.2 million $128.7 million and $1 18.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Compensation cost relating to stock-based compensation grants is

recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period which is generally four years The expense for stock

options and restricted stock units awarded to retirement eligible employees those aged 55 and over and with

10 or more years of service is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible

INCOME TAXES Income tax expense is based on reported earnings before income taxes Interest and

penalties related to income taxes are classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between assets and liabilities recognized for

financial reporting purposes
and such amounts recognized for tax purposes and are measured by applying

enacted tax rates in effect in years
in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance is

recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized

EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic earnings per share equals net earnings divided by weighted-average shares

outstanding during the year Diluted earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using

the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Implemented In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS
No 157 Fair Value Measurements .SEAS 157 SFAS 157 establishes single definition of fair value and

framework for measuring fair value sets out fair value hierarchy to be used to classify the source of

information used in fair value measurements and requires new disclosures of assets and liabilities measured at

fair value based on their level in the hierarchy SFAS 157 indicates that an exit value selling price should be

utilized in fair value measurements rather than an entrance value or cost basis and that performance risks

such as credit risk should be included in the measurements of fair value even when the risk of non-

performance is remote SFAS 157 also clarifies the principle that fair value measurements should be based on

assumptions the marketplace would use when pricing an asset whenever practicable rather than company-

specific assumptions In February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Positions FSP5 No 157-I and No 157-2

which respectively remove leasing transactions from the scope of SFAS 157 and defer its effective date for

one year relative to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually Accordingly in fiscal

2008 the Company has applied SFAS 157 guidance to all applicable financial assets and liabilities and

ii nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Companys financial

statements on recurring basis at least annually The adoption of SFAS 157 for these items did not have

material affect on the Company The remaining assets and liabilities to which the FSP 157-2 deferral relates

will be measured at fair value as applicable beginning in fiscal 2009 This deferral relates to such items as

impairment testing for goodwill other intangible and long-lived assets and nonfinancial assets and nonfinan

cial liabilities initially measured at fair value in business combination Refer to Note for disclosures

required by this pronouncement

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities SFAS 159 This statement became effective for the Company at the beginning of 2008

SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair

value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value The Company did not elect to utilize

voluntary fair value measurements as permitted by the standard

Not Yet Implemented In May 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position Accounting Principles Board APB
14-I Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion Including

Partial Cash Settlement FSPAPB 14-I FSPAPB 14-1 applies to convertible debt instruments that have

net settlement feature permitting settlement partially or fully in cash upon conversion The guidance

requires issuers of such convertible debt securities to separately account for the liability and equity components

in manner that reflects the issuers nonconvertible unsecured debt borrowing rate The FSP requires

bifurcation of component of the debt into equity representative of the approximate fair value of the

conversion feature at inception and the amortization of the resulting debt discount to interest expense
in the

Consolidated Statement of Operations The Company is in the process
of assessing the impact of FSP APB

14-I but estimates that approximately $55 million of Long-term debt will be reclassified to equity as of the

inception of the S330.0 million of convertible notes issued in March 2007 The estimated $55 million debt

discount will be amortized to interest expense resulting in the recognition of approximately $8 S12 million

of additional non-cash interest expense annually This non-cash interest expense is expected to total approxi

mately $11 million in 2009 The non-cash interest recognized will gradually increase over time using the

effective interest method FSPAPB 14-1 will become effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter

of 2009 and is required to be applied retrospectively with early adoption prohibited

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 14 1R
SFAS 141R requires the acquiring entity in business combination to recognize the full fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction whether full or partial acquisition establishes the

acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed and

requires the acquirer to disclose the information needed to evaluate and understand the nature and effect of the

business combination This statement applies to all transactions or other events in which the acquirer obtains

control of one or more businesses including those sometimes referred to as true mergers or mergers of

equals and combinations achieved without the transfer of consideration for example by contract alone or
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through the lapse of minority veto rights For new acquisitions made following the adoption of SFAS 14 1R
significant costs directly related to the acquisition including legal audit and other fees as well as most

acquisition-related restructuring will have to be expensed as incurred rather than recorded to goodwill as is

generally permitted under SFAS 141 Additionally contingent purchase p1-ice arrangements also known as

earn-outs will be re-measured to estimated fair value with the impact reported in earnings whereas under

present rules the contingent purchase consideration is recorded to goodwill when determined SFAS 14 1R
applies prospectively for the Company to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or aller

January 2009

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statementsan amendment of ARB No 51 SFAS 160 SFAS 160 requires reporting entities to present

non-controlling minority interests as equity as opposed to liability or mezzanine equity and provides

guidance on the accounting for transactions between an entity and non-controlling interests SFAS 160 will

apply prospectively and is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2009 except for the presentation and

disclosure requirements which will be applied retrospectively for all periods presented upon adoption The

Company has determined that the adoption of SFAS 160 will have minimal impact on its iesults of

operations and financial position

In June 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB Staff Position TSP
Emerging Issues Task Force EITF No 03-6-1 Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based

Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities Under the FSP unvested share-based payment awards that

contain rights to receive nonforfeitable dividends whether paid or unpaid are participating securities and

should be included in the two-class method of computing EPS The FSP is effective for fiscal years beginning

after December 15 2008 and interim periods within those
years

with retrospective application required It is

not expected to have significant impact on the Companys calculation of earnings per share

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Fledging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 which is effective for fiscal years and interim

periods beginning after November 15 2008 Upon adoption in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 the statement

will require enhanced disclosures related to the Companys derivative instruments and will not impact the

accounting for derivative instruments

RECLASSIFECATIONS The assets and liabilities of discontinued operations have been reclassified as held

for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and earnings from discontinued operations have been reclassified

within the Consolidated Statement of Operations Certain other prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Millions of Dollars 2008 2007

Trade accounts and notes receivable $682.2 $802

Other receivables 35 439

Gross accounts and notes receivable 7I7 846.0

Allowance for doubtful accounts 39.8 40.3

Net accounts and notes receivable $677.7 $805.7

Trade receivables are dispersed among large number of retailers distributors and industrial accounts in many

countries Adequate reserves have been established to cover anticipated credit losses

Previously the Company had agreements to sell on revolving basis undivided interests in defined pools of

accounts receivable to Qualified Special Purpose Entity QSPE The entity was designed to facilitate the

securitization of certain trade accounts receivable and was used as an additional source of liquidity In June

2008 the Company acquired third partys interest in the QSPE As result the entity became non-qualified

The net assets of this entity which consisted of accounts receivable of $17.3 million were consolidated in the

Companys balance sheet Net cash flows between the Company and the entity totaled $43.2 million in 2008
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and 18.0 million in 2007 Such activity primarily related to receivable sales collections on receivables and

servicing fees In November 2008 this entity was dissohed There were no gains or losses upon the acquisition

of the third party interest or upon dissolution of the entity The amounts deducted from receivables in the

December 29 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet under this arrangement was $42.3 million

INVENTORY

Millions of Dollars

2008 2007

Finished products
$365.0 $392.1

Work in
process

58.2 57.4

Raw materials 91.5 106.9

Total
$514.7 $556.4

Net inventories in the amount of $159.2 million at January 2009 and $204.7 million at December 29 2007

were valued at the lower of LIFO cost or market If the LIFO method had not been used inventories would

have been $76.0 million higher than reported at January 2009 and $66.0 million higher than reported at

December 29 2007

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of fair value less cost to sell or carrying value At December 29

2007 SI 15.7 million of assets were classified as held for sale including $91.4 million in assets of the CST/

berger business and three other small businesses as more fully discussed in Note Discontinued Operations

Additionally at December 29 2007 $24.3 million of financing lease receivables generated by the Blick

business within the Security segment were classified as held for sale These receivables were sold for an

amount approximating net book value There are no assets held for sale in the January 2009 balance sheet

as all sales were completed during the current year

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Millions of Dollars

2008 2007

Land $42.9 $41.9

Land improvements
19.4 17.2

Buildings
277.9 273.2

Leasehold improvements
24.7 23.6

Machinery and equipment 900.3 937.4

Computer software 192.8 155.7

Gross PPE $1458.0 $1449.0

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 878.2 884.1

Total $579.8 $564.9

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with PPE was as follows

Millions of Dollars

2008 2007 2006

Depreciation
$74.0 $66.1 $69.4

Amortization 18.5 17.1 12.2

Depreciation and amortization expense
$92.5 $83.2 $81.6

The amounts above are inclusive of depreciation and amortization expense for discontinued operations

amounting to $0.5 million in 2008 $0.9 million in 2007 and $1.4 million in 2006

ACQUISITIONS

The Company completed 30 acquisitions during 2008 2007 and 2006 These businesses were acquired

pursuant to the Companys growth and portfolio repositioning strategy The acquisitions were accounted for by
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the purchase method in accordance with SEAS 141 and their results are included in the Companys
consolidated operating results from the respective acquisition dates All of the acquisitions have resulted in the

recognition of goodwill Goodwill reflects the future earnings and cash flow potential of the acquired business

in excess of the fair values that are assigned to all other identifiable assets and liabilities Goodwill arises

because the purchase price paid reflects numerous factors including the strategic fit and expected synergies

these targets bring to existing operations the competitive nature of the bidding process and the prevailing

market value for comparable companies SFAS 141 requires all identifiable assets and liabilities acquired to be

reported at fair value and the excess is recorded as goodwill The Company obtains information during due

diligence and from other sources which forms the basis for the initial allocation of purchase price to the

estimated fair value of assets and liabilities acquired In the months following an acquisition intangible asset

valuation reports asset appraisals and other data are obtained in order for management to finalize the fair

values assigned to acquired assets and liabilities

Integration of certain acquisitions requires reduction of redundant personnel closure of facilities and other

restructuring actions related to the acquired businesses In such cases restructuring accrual is recorded for

actions identified in integration strategy plans initially developed by the Company as of the acquisition date

with resulting increase to goodwill As integration strategies are executed the Company monitors the

previously established restructuring accruals and makes adjustments to the extent actual expenditures differ

from the estimated accruals Adjustments recorded to previously established restructuring accruals until the

time integration plans are fully executed riot to exceed one year from the date of original acquisition are

reflected in the final goodwill amount included in the purchase price allocation Adjustments made subsequent

to the finalization of integration strategies or after one year from the date of original acquisition are

appropriately reflected in earnings if increases to the originally established accruals are required while

accruals that are not fully utilized are recorded as reduction of goodwill

2008 ACQUISITIONS In July 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of Sonitrol Corporation

Sonitrol for $282 million in cash Sonitrol is market leader in North American commercial security

monitoring services access control and fire detection systems with annual revenues of approximately

Sl 10 million The acquisition will complement the product offering of the pre-existing security integration

businesses including HSM acquired in early 2007

Also in July 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of Xmark Corporation Xmark br $47.1 million

in cash Xrnark headquartered in Canada markets and sells radio frequency identification-based systems used

to identify locate and protect people and assets with annual revenues of approximately $30 million The

acquisition expands the Companys personal security business

In October of 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of ienerale de Protection GdP ftr

$168.6 million in cash Gdl headquartered in Vitrolles France is leading provider of audio and video

security monitoring services primarily for small and mid-sized businesses located in France and l-3elgium

GdPs annual revenues are approximately $87 million

The Company also made eleven small acquisitions relating to its mechanical access systems convergent

security solutions industrial healthcare storage and fastening businesses during 2008 These eleven acquisitions

were completed for combined purchase price of $74.6 million

The total purchase price of $572.4 million reflects transaction costs and is net of cash acquired amounts

allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on their estimated fiiir values at the

acquisition dates Goodwill associated with the 2008 acquisitions that is deductible for income tax purposes

amounts to $40.7 million The purchase price allocations of these acquisitions are preliminary mainly with

respect to the finalization of intangible asset valuations related deferred taxes and certain other items



The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets acquired and liabilities assumed for

the 2008 acquisitions in the aggregate

Millions of Dollars
2008

Current assets primarily accounts receivable and inventories 72.3

Property plant and equipment 10.4

Goodwill 329.3

Trade names 21.1

Customer relationships 239.5

Technology 14.1

Other intangible assets 1.4

Other assets 8.7

Total assets 696.8

Current liabilities 74.4

Deferred tax liabilities and other 50.0

Total liabilities 124.4

The weighted average
useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets identified above are trade names

10 years customer relationships 13 years technology years and other intangible assets year

2007 ACQUISITIONS The Company completed the acquisition of FISM Electronic Protection Services Inc

HSM on January 16 2007 for $546.1 million which was financed with debt and equity units as more fully

described in Note Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements HSM is market leader in the North

American commercial security monitoring industry with annual revenues of approximately $200 million HSM

has stable customer base an extensive North American field network and the second largest market share in

the U.S commercial monitoring market The acquisition has served as growth platform in the monitoring

sector of the security industry

The Company also made eight small acquisitions relating to its hydraulic access technologies industrial

healthcare storage mechanical access solutions and security integration businesses during 2007 for combined

purchase price of $100.1 million Goodwill associated with the 2007 acquisitions that is deductible for tax

purposes
amounted to $104.9 million

The total purchase price of $646.2 million for the 2007 acquisitions reflects transaction costs and is net of

cash acquired Amounts allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on their estimated

fair values at the acquisition dates Adjustments to reflect the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed are complete for all 2007 acquisitions

The following table summarizes the fair values of major assets acquired and liabilities assumed for all 2007

acquisitions

Millions of Dollars

2007

Current assets primarily accounts receivable and inventories $44.9

Property plant and equipment 10.7

Goodwill 386.4

Trade names 13.1

Customer relationships
227.3

Technology 1.9

Other intangible assets .0

Other assets
22.6

Total assets $707.9

Current liabilities $59.0

Deferred tax liabilities and other 2.7

Total liabilities $61.7
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The weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets identified above are trade names

years customer relationships 15
years technology years and other intangible assets years

PRO FORMA EARNINGS FOR ACQUISITIONS The information for 2008 2007 and 2006 set forth

below reflects the pro forma consolidated results as if the 2008 2007 and 2006 acquisitions had occurred at

the beginning of 2006 Non-recurring expenses of the acquired companies have been eliminated while the

effects of the Companys inventory step-up charges increased intangible asset amortization expense taxes and

interest have been added to the results below

Operating results for the acquisitions during these pre-acquisition periods were not necessari indicative of

future results

Millions of Dollars except per share amounts Unaudited
2008 2007 2006

Net sales $4659.5 5472 .6 $4480.7

Net earnings $319.6 $340.4 $293.7

Diluted earnings per share $4.00 $4.05 S3.5l

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTAN ASSETS

GOODWILL The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment are as follows

Millions of Dollars
Security Industrial CDIV lotal

Balance December 29 2007 $911.1 $387.3 $214.1 SI .512.5

Acquisitions during the year 324.5 4.8 329.3

Foreign currency translation and other 69.5 17.8 7.1 94.4

Balance January 2009 $1166.1 $374.3 $207.0 $1747.4

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Other intangible assets at January 2009 and December 29 2007 were

as follows

2008 2007

Cross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Millions of Dollars
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized Intangible Assets

Definite lives

Patents and copyrights $50.4 $33.3 $57.0 S32
Trade names 60.0 26.2 41.2 20.7

Customer relationships 661.6 179.3 446.9 125.5

Other intangible assets 54.1 30.2 4L9 26.2

Total $826.1 $269.0 $587.1 S24.5

Total indefinite-lived trade names are $299.8 million at January 2009 and $31 1.7 million at December 29

2007 The decrease is attributable to foreign currency fluctuations

Aggregate other intangible assets amortization expense by segment was as follows

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Security $79.6 $65.5 $28.5

Industrial 8.0 5.0

CDIY 2.9 6.7 6.1

Consolidated $90.5 S79 $39.6

Future amortization expense in each of the next five years amounts to $101.7 million for 2009 $86.1 million

for 2010 $72.5 million for 2011 $59.1 million for 2012 and $49.4 million for 2013
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ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at January 2009 and December 29 2007 were as follows

Millions of Dollars

2008 2007

Payroll and related taxes $107.6 102.6

Restructuring costs 67.9 23.7

Trade allowances 65.0 79.3

Income and other taxes 40.6 39.1

Deferred revenue 34.7 33.6

Insurance and benefits 33.3 29.7

Other 158.9 142.9

Total $508.0 $450.9

LONG-TERM DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Long-term debt and financing arrangements at January 2009 and December 29 2007 follow

Millions of Dollars

Interest Rate 2008 2007

U.K loan notes payable on demand UK Libor less 0.5% $0.7 $1.3

ESOP loan guarantees payable in varying monthly

installments through 2009 6.1% 1.3 4.2

Industrial Revenue Bonds due in 2010 6.3-6.8% 5.6

Notes payable due in 2010 5.0% 199.9 199.8

Notes payable due in 2012 4.9% 208.4 200.0

Notes payable due in 2013 6.15% 257.2

month LtBOR less

Convertible notes payable due in 2012 3.5% 320.0 330.0

Notes payable due in 2045 subordinated 5.9% 415.7 450.1

Other payable in varying amounts through 2013 0.0-6.6% 30.2 31.4

Total debt $1433.4 $1222.4

Less current maturities 13.9 10.3

Long-term debt $1419.5 $1212.1

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt for each of the years from 2009 to 2013 are $13.9 million

$207.2 million $5.7 million $532.1 million and S258.8 million respectively Interest paid during 2008 2007

and 2006 amounted to $78.9 million $85.0 million and $70.3 million respectively

On February 27 2008 the Company amended its credit facility to provide for an increase and extension of its

committed credit facility to $800.0 million from $550.0 million In May 2008 the Companys commercial

paper program was also increased to $800.0 million The credit facility is designated as liquidity back-stop

for the Companys commercial paper program The amended and restated facility expires in February 2013

Included in Short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 2009 and December 29

2007 is commercial paper of $205.7 million and $277.7 million respectively In addition the Company has

uncommitted short-term lines of credit with numerous banks aggregating $246.0 million of which $233.7 mil

lion was available at January 2009 Short-term arrangements are reviewed annually for renewal The

aggregate long-term and short-term lines amounted to $1046 billion The weighted average interest rates on

short-term borrowings at January 2009 and December 29 2007 were 2.4% and 4.6% respectively

On September 29 2008 the Company issued $250.0 million of unsecured Term Notes maturing October

2013 the 2013 Term Notes with fixed interest payable semi-annually in arrears at rate of 6.15% per

annum The 2013 Term Notes rank equally with all of the Companys existing and future unsecured and

unsubordinated debt The Company received net proceeds of $248.0 million which includes discount of

$0.5 million to achieve 6.15% interest rate and $1.5 million of fees associated with the transaction The
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Company used the net proceeds from the offering primarily to reduce borrowings under its existing

commercial paper program The $257.2 million of debt reported at January 2009 reflects the unamortized

balance of the $7.9 million gain from December 2008 swap termination This fixed-to-floating interest rate

swap was entered into upon issuance of the 2013 Term Notes as detailed in Note Financial Instruments The

2013 Term Notes include Change of Control Triggering Event that would apply should Change of Control

event as defined in the Indenture governing the 2013 Term Notes occur The Company would be required to

make an offer to repurchase in cash all of the outstanding 2013 Term Notes for purchase price at 101.0%

of the original principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest outstanding up to the purchase date

In May 2008 the Company entered into fixed-to-floating interest rate swap on its $200.0 million notes

payable due in 2012 The $8.4 million increase in the carrying value of the debt at January 2009 pertains to

the gain recognized upon termination of this swap in December 2008 as more fully discussed in Note

Financial Instruments

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

In November 2005 the Company issued $450.1 million of junior subordinated debt securities to The Stanley

Works Capital Trust the Trust with 40-year term and fixed initial coupon rate of 5.902% for the first

five years The Trust which was not consolidated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board

Interpretation No 46R Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an interpretation of ARB No 51
FIN 46R obtained the funds it loaned to the Company through the capital market sale of $450.0 million of

Enhanced Trust Preferred Securities ETPS and through the sale of $0.1 million in Trust Common

Securities to the Company The obligations tenor and terms of the ETPS mirrored those of the junior

subordinated debt securities The securities may be redeemed after five years without penalty If not redeemed

after years the coupon rate will reset quarterly to 1.4% plus the highest of 3-month LIBOR the 10-Year US

Treasury CMT or the 30-Year US Treasury CMT limited to maximum rate of 13.25% Net proceeds of the

issuance were used to partially finance the acquisitions of Facom January 2006 and National Novem
ber 30 2005

In October 2008 the Company repurchased $34.3 million of the ETPS for $24.9 million in cash and in

December 2008 the Trust was dissolved Upon the dissolution of the Trust the $0.1 million investment in the

unconsolidated Trust was unwound with corresponding reduction in debt Additionally the Company caused

the remaining $415.7 million of junior subordinated debt securities held by the Trust to be distributed to the

holders of ETPS in exchange for the ETPS upon dissolution of the Trust pre-tax gain of $9.4 million was

recognized in Other-net in the Statement of Operations pertaining to the partial extinguishment of this debt

Financing of the January 2007 HSM Acquisition

During 2007 the Company initially funded the $546.1 million HSM acquisition with combination of short-

term borrowings and cash $500.0 million 364-day revolving credit bridge facility was entered into on

January 2007 of which $130.0 million was utilized to acquire HSM the remainder of the HSM purchase

price was funded through commercial paper borrowings and cash

On March 20 2007 the Company completed two security offerings Equity Units which consisted of

$330.0 million of convertible debt and $330.0 million of forward stock purchase contracts and $200.0 million

of unsecured notes the 2010 Term Notes With respect to the $860.0 million in offerings the Company
will not receive the $330.0 million cash pertaining to the forward stock purchase contracts until May 2010
The $488.1 million net cash proceeds of these offerings and the related financial instruments described below

were used to pay down the short-term bridge facility and commercial paper borrowings

The 2010 Term Notes mature March 15 2010 with fixed interest payable semi-annually in arrears at rate of

5.0% per annum and rank equally with other unsecured and unsubordinated debt of the Company The

$199.7 million of debt recorded at issuance reflects $0.3 million discount to achieve 5.0% fixed interest

rate The Company received proceeds from the 2010 Term Notes of $198.9 million net of this discount and

underwriters fees this $1.1 million in discount and fees will be amortized to expense over the three year term
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The 2010 Term Notes include change in control provision Change in Control Provision that would apply

in the event there is Change in Control as defined in the Indenture governing the 2010 Term Notes and the

2010 Term Notes are rated below investment grade The Change in Control Provision provides investors with

the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part of their 2010 Term Notes in cash at price

equal to 100.0% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest

Equity Units On March 20 2007 the Company issued 330000 Equity Units each with stated value of

$1000 The Equity Units are comprised of senior convertible note Convertible Note and forward

common stock purchase contract an Equity Purchase Contract The Company received $320.1 million in

cash proceeds from the Equity Units offering net of underwriting fees and recorded $330.0 million in long-

term debt for the Convertible Notes These proceeds were used to repay
short-term borrowings and along with

$18.8 million in proceeds from the sale of stock warrants to fund the $49.3 million cost of the convertible

notes hedge as more fully described below

In November 2008 the Company repurchased $10.0 million of the Equity Units for $5.3 million in cash the

$10 Million Repurchase To properly account for the transaction the Equity Unit elements were bifurcated

as essentially the Company paid $10.0 million to extinguish the Convertible Notes and received $4.7 million

from the seller to settle its obligation under the Equity Purchase Contracts As further detailed below the

Equity Purchase Contracts obligated the holder to purchase shares of the Companys common stock at

minimum purchase price of approximately $54.45 per
share on May 17 2010 At the repurchase date the

Companys common stock had closing market value of $25.38 The remaining liability for Contract

Adjustment Payment fees associated with the $10.0 million of settled Equity Purchase Contracts was reversed

resulting in an increase to equity of $0.7 million The related $10.0 million in Convertible Note Hedges the

Bond Hedge and Stock Warrants were unwound with nominal impact to equity As result of the $10

Million Repurchase there was an insignificant gain recorded in earnings and net increase in equity of

$5.4 million

Equity Purchase Contracts

The Equity Purchase Contracts obligate the holders to purchase on May 17 2010 newly issued shares of the

Companys common stock for $320.0 million in cash maximum of 5.9 million shares of common stock may

be issued on the May 17 2010 settlement date subject to adjustment for standard anti-dilution provisions

Equity Purchase Contract holders may elect to settle their obligation early in cash The Convertible Notes

described further below are pledged as collateral to guarantee the holders obligations to purchase common

stock under the terms of the Equity Purchase Contracts The agreed upon number of shares that each Equity

Purchase Contract holder must purchase is called the settlement amount The settlement amount is equal to

the sum of the daily settlement amounts determined over 20 consecutive trading day period the observation

period ending on and including the third trading day prior to the purchase contract settlement date The

settlement amount may be affected by standard anti-dilution protection provisions in the Equity Purchase

Contracts or cash merger In effect the Company will receive minimum purchase price from investors of

approximately $54.45 per share The daily settlement amount for each trading day during the observation

period is calculated as follows

if the applicable market value of the Companys common stock on that trading day is less than or

equal to $54.45 the reference price the daily settlement amount for that trading day will be

0.9 183 shares of the Companys common stock and

if the applicable market value of the Companys common stock on that trading day is greater than the

reference price the daily settlement amount for that trading day will be number of shares of the

Companys common stock equal to $50 divided by the applicable market value rounded to the

nearest ten thousandth share

Holders of the Equity Purchase Contract are paid quarterly contract adjustment payment Contract

Adjustment Payment of 5.125% per annum and the first payment thereof was made August 17 2007 The

$49.6 million present value of the Contract Adjustment Payments reduced Shareowners Equity at inception

As each quarterly Contract Adjustment Payment is made the related liability will be relieved with the
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difference between the cash payment and the present value of the Contract Adjustment Payment recorded as

interest expense at inception approximately $3.9 million accretion over the three year term Due to the $10

Million Repurchase $0.7 million in remaining liability for the related Contract Adjustment Payments was

reversed At January 2009 the liability reported for the Contract Adjustment Payments amounted to

$22.9 million

Convertible Notes

The $320.0 million Convertible Notes currently outstanding have five-year maturity and are due May 17

2012 At maturity the Company is obligated to repay the principal in cash and may elect to settle the

conversion option value if any as detailed further below in either cash or shares of the Companys common

stock The Convertible Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 3-month LIBOR minus 3.5% reset quarterly

but never less than zero and initially set at 1.85% Interest is payable quarterly commencing August 17

2007 The Convertible Notes are unsecured general obligations and rank equally with all of the Companys
other unsecured and unsubordinated debt The Convertible Notes are pledged as collateral to guarantee the

holders obligations to purchase common stock under the terms of the Equity Purchase Contract described

above

The Company is obligated to remarket the Convertible Notes commencing on May 10 2010 to the extent that

holders of the Convertible Note element of an Equity Unit or holders of separate Convertible Notes elect to

participate in the remarketing Holders of Equity Units who elect to have the Convertible Note element of

these units not participate in the remarketing must create Treasury Unit replace the Convertible Notes with

zero-coupon U.S Treasury security as substitute collateral to guarantee their performance under the Equity

Purchase Contract settle the Equity Purchase Contract early or settle it in cash prior to May 17 2010 Upon
successful remarketing the proceeds will be utilized to satisfy in full the Equity Unit holders obligations to

purchase the Companys common stock under the Equity Purchase Contract In the event the remarketing of

the Convertible Notes is not successful the holders may elect to pay cash or to deliver the Convertible Notes

to the Company as consideration to satisfy their obligation to purchase common shares under the Equity

Purchase Contract

The conversion premium for the Convertible Notes is 19.0% equivalent to the initial conversion price of

$64.80 based on the $54.45 value of the Companys common stock at the date of issuance Upon conversion

on May 17 2012 or cash merger event the Company will deliver to each holder of the Convertible Notes

$1000 cash for the principal amount of the note Additionally at conversion to the extent if any that the

conversion option is in the money the Company will deliver at its election either cash or shares of the

Companys common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 15.4332 shares equivalent to the initial

conversion price set at $64.80 and the applicable market value of the Companys common stock The ultimate

conversion rate may be increased above 15.4332 shares in accordance with standard anti-dilution provisions

applicable to the Convertible Notes or in the event of cash merger An increase in the ultimate conversion

rate will apply if the Company increases the
per

share common stock dividend rate during the five year term

of the Convertible Notes accordingly such changes to the conversion rate are within the Companys control

under its discretion regarding dividends it may declare Also the holders may elect to accelerate conversion

and make whole adjustments to the conversion rate may apply in the event of cash merger or

fundamental change Subject to the foregoing if the market value of the Companys common shares is

below the conversion price at conversion initially set at rate equating to $64.80 per share the conversion

option would be out of the money and the Company would have no obligation to deliver any consideration

beyond the $1000 principal payment required under each of the Convertible Notes To the extent if any that

the conversion option of the Convertible Notes becomes in the money in any interim period prior to

conversion there will be related increase in diluted shares outstanding utilized in the determination of the

Companys diluted earnings per share in accordance with the treasury stock method prescribed by

SFAS No 128 Earnings Per Share

Convertible Notes Hedge In order to offset the common shares that may be deliverable pertaining to the

previously discussed conversion option feature of the Convertible Notes the Company entered into Bond

Hedges with certain major financial institutions The Company paid the financial institutions premium of
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$49.3 million for the Bond Hedge which was recorded net of $14.0 million of anticipated tax benefits as

reduction of Shareowners Equity The terms of the Bond Hedge mirror those of the conversion option feature

of the Convertible Notes such that the financial institutions may be required to deliver shares of the Companys

common stock to the Company upon conversion at its exercise in May 2012 To the extent if any that the

conversion option feature becomes in the money during the five year term of the Convertible Notes diluted

shares outstanding will increase accordingly Because the Bond Hedge is anti-dilutive it will not be included

in any diluted shares outstanding computation prior to its maturity However at maturity of the Convertible

Notes and the Bond Hedge in 2012 the aggregate effect of these instruments is that there will be no net

increase in the Companys common shares

Stock Warrants Simultaneously the Company issued 5092956 of unregistered common stock warrants

Stock Warrants to financial institutions for $18.8 million The cash proceeds received were recorded as an

increase to Shareowners Equity The Stock Warrants are exercisable during the period August 17 2012

through September 28 2012 and have strike price of $87.12 established at 160.0% of the market value of

$54.45 on the issuance date The Stock Warrants will be net share settled and are deemed to automatically be

exercised at their expiration date if they are in the money and were not previously exercised The strike

price for the Stock Warrants may be adjusted for increases to the Companys dividend rate per share or special

dividends if any that occur during their five year term consistent with the standard anti-dilution provisions

discussed earlier with respect to the conversion spread on the Convertible Notes In the event the Stock

Warrants become in the money during their five year term due to the market value of the Companys

common stock exceeding the $87.12 strike price there will be related increase in diluted shares outstanding

utilized in the determination of the Companys diluted earnings per share In November 2008 154332 Stock

Warrants were repurchased from the financial institutions at cost of 5.15 per warrant pertaining to the

previously mentioned $10 Million Repurchase As result there were 4938624 Stock Warrants Outstanding

as of January 2009

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Companys objectives in using debt and foreign currency related financial instruments are to obtain the

lowest cost source of funds within targeted range of variable to fixed-rate debt proportions to better match

financial obligations to sources of operating cash flows and to minimize the foreign exchange risks arising

from cross-border cash flows To meet these risk management objectives the Company enters into interest rate

swap and currency swap agreements purchased currency options and foreign exchange contracts Derivative

instruments are not employed for speculative purposes
and are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

at fair value If the Company elects to do so hedge accounting is applied based on the criteria specified in

SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesas amended whereby

management designates its derivative instruments as cash flow hedges fair value hedges or net investment

hedges

CASH FLOW HEDGES Foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge multi-currency inter

company and trade cash flows expected to occur generally over twelve to eighteen month period The

objective of these instruments is to minimize the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on operating results

In addition interest rate swaps are utilized to manage the mix of fixed versus floating rate liabilities

Forward con tracts The Company has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts denominated in

Australian dollars Canadian dollars Chinese renminbi euros Great Britain pounds Polish zloty Taiwanese

dollars and Thai bhat At January 2009 and December 29 2007 the notional value of forward contracts

designated as cash flow hedges and hedging inter-company transactions totaled $85.9 million and $206.3 mil

lion respectively The aggregate fair value of these contracts is loss of $1.5 million that is recorded in Other

current assets and Accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheet The pre-tax amount recorded in

Accumulated other comprehensive income related to forwards designated as cash flow hedges as of January

2009 is $5.3 million These amounts are expected to be reclassified into earnings over the next 12 months as

the underlying hedged transactions affect earnings
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Interest rate swaps In December 2008 the Company terminated its lease and purchased one of its major

distribution centers In conjunction with the termination of the lease the Company also terminated the interest

rate swap used to exchange the floating rate rental liability to fixed rental liability The interest rate swap

had notional amount of $14.9 million and resulted in an immaterial gain upon termination

In March 2007 concurrent with the issuance of the Equity Units the Company executed interest rate swaps

with an aggregate notional amount of $330.0 million to convert the floating rate coupon on the Convertible

Notes LIBOR less 350 basis points to fixed rate coupon 1.43% for period of three years In November

2008 the Company repurchased $10 million of the Equity Units and reduced the amount of the interest rate

swap by the corresponding amount to ensure that the notional amounts of the derivative and the underlying

continued to match At January 2009 the aggregate fair value of the outstanding interest rate swaps is net

loss of $6.6 million as reflected in Accrued expenses and Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

In 2005 the Company entered into thirty year floating to fixed interest rate swap with notional value of

$150.0 million The swap hedged the interest rate exposure associated with the forecasted refinancing of the

$150.0 million 3.5% bonds maturing November 2007 During 2006 the swap was terminated resulting in

$5.9 million gain before tax The termination of this financial instrument was consistent with the Companys
risk management objective to obtain the lowest cost source of funds within targeted range of variable to

fixed rate interest rate proportions The gain arising from the swap termination was reflected in Accumulated

other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheet during 2006 In November 2007 upon the

maturity of the bonds linked to the associated hedged interest rate exposure $5.0 million of the gain was

reclassified out of Accumulated other comprehensive income and recorded as gain in Other-net in the

Consolidated Statement of Operations The remaining $0.9 million in Accumulated other comprehensive

income will be amortized as reduction to interest
expense through May 2012

Cross currency swaps The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into various inter-company transac

tions whereby the notional values are denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the

party executing the trade United States dollar and euro In order to better match the cash flows of its inter

company obligations with cash flows from operations the Company enters into cross currency swaps At

January 2009 the aggregate fair value of the Companys cross currency swaps that were designated as cash

flow hedges was net loss of $21.4 million as reflected in Accrued expenses and Other liabilities in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet The swaps have an aggregate United States dollar notional value of $150.0 million

and maturity dates in November 2010 In December 2008 the Company made payment of $13.4 million

related to the termination of $90.5 million cross currency swap hedging an affiliate loan The termination

had nominal impact to the Companys earnings

For derivative instruments that are so designated at inception and qualify as cash flow hedges the Company
records the effective portions of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument in Accumulated other

comprehensive income separate component of Shareowners Equity and subsequently reclassifies these

amounts into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings The

ineffective portion of the gain or loss if any is immediately recognized in the same caption where the hedged

items are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations generally Other-net There is $4.8 million

after-tax gain reported for cash flow hedge effectiveness in Accumulated other comprehensive income as of

January 2009 Of this amount $4.6 million is expected to be reclassified to earnings as the hedged

transactions occur or as amounts are amortized within the next 12 months with the remainder through 2010

The ultimate amount recognized will vary based on fluctuations of the hedged currencies Australian dollar

Canadian dollar Chinese renminbi euro Great Britain pound Polish zloty Taiwanese dollar Thai baht and

United States dollar through the maturity dates During 2008 2007 and 2006 $42.9 million $31.7 million

and $25.7 million respectively pertaining to cash flow hedges was reclassified from Accumulated other

comprehensive income into earnings during the periods in which the underlying hedged transactions affected

earnings due to the effectiveness of these instruments in matching the underlying on net basis there was no

significant earnings impact

63



FAIR VALUE HEDGES For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges the

Company recognizes the gain or loss on the derivative instrument in earnings in the same caption where the

offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item is recognized in the current period

Interest rate swaps In an effort to continue to optimize the mix of fixed versus floating rate debt in the

Companys capital structure in May 2008 and November 2008 the Company entered into interest rate swaps

with notional values which equaled the Companys $200.0 million 4.9% notes due November 2012 and

S250.0 million 6.l5% notes due 2013 The interest rate swaps effectively converted the Companys fixed rate

debt to floating rate debt based on LIBOR thereby hedging the fluctuation in the fair value resulting from

changes in interest rates The changes in fair value of the interest rate swaps were recognized in earnings as

well as the offsetting changes in fair value of the underlying notes

In December 2008 the Company terminated both interest rate swaps resulting in pre-tax gains of $16.5 million

which was offset by the fair value adjustment to the carrying value of the underlying notes At January

2009 the carrying amounts of the $200.0 million and $250.0 million notes were increased by $8.4 million and

S7.7 million respectively related to this adjustment and will be amortized over the remaining term of the notes

as reduction of interest expense The swaps were highly effective and accordingly no amount is recorded for

ineffectiveness in the Consolidated Statement of Operations

Cross currency swaps During 2008 the Company elected to discontinue the practice of designating cross

currency swaps as fair value hedges Previously designated cross currency swaps were dedesignated and new

cross currency swaps are undesignated There was minimal impact to the Companys financial statements

resulting from this policy change

NET INVESTMENT HEDGE The Company utilizes net investment hedges to offset the translation

adjustment arising from remeasuring its investment in the assets liabilities revenues and expenses of its

foreign subsidiaries For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as net investment hedges the

Company records the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument in Accumulated other

comprehensive income The Company had cross currency swaps and foreign exchange contracts denominated

in Great Britain pounds and euro with an aggregate United States dollar notional value of $281.6 million to

hedge its net investments of certain Great Britain pound and euro denominated assets During the fourth

quarter 2008 these contracts were terminated and resulted in gains of 19 million that will remain in

Accumulated other comprehensive income until the underlying assets arc disposed of In order to continue to

offset the translation adjustment of its net investment in euro assets in December 2008 the Company entered

into foreign exchange contract to hedge its net investment on euro assets The contract has notional value

$223.4 million United States dollars and maturity of February 2010 At January 2009 the fair value of

this contract was loss of $20.7 million and is recorded in Other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

and the pre-tax loss on the net investment hedge included in Accumulated other comprehensive income is

$20.7 million

UNDESIGNATED HEDGES Cross currency swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts are used to

reduce exchange risks arising from the change in fair value of certain foreign currency denominated assets and

liabilities i.e affiliate loans payables receivables The objective of these practices is to minimize the impact

of foreign currency fluctuations on operating results

At January 2009 and December 29 2007 the notional amount of forward contracts hedging inter-company

transactions totaled S203.9 million These foreign exchange forward contracts are denominated in the

Australian dollar Canadian dollar Czech koruna Danish krone euro Japanese yen Great Britain pound

Mexican peso New Zealand dollar Polish zloty South African rand Swiss franc Swedish krona Taiwanese

dollar and Thai baht The contracts mature in less than one year The aggregate fair value of these forward

contracts is $3.8 million gain that is recorded in Other current assets and Accrued expenses
in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet

At January 2009 the notional amount of cross currency swaps hedging inter-company transactions totaled

$259.3 million These swaps are denominated in Canadian dollars euros Great Britain pounds and United

States dollars The contracts have maturities ranging January 2009 to September 2010 The aggregate fair
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value of these contracts is net loss of $6.0 million that is recorded in Other currents assets Accrued

expenses Other assets and Other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEDGE EFFECTIVEIESS For forward contracts and cross currency swaps designated as cash flow fair

value or net investment hedges the Company measures hedge effectiveness by comparing the cumulative

change in the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the hedged item both of which are based on

forward rates The ineffective portion if any of the hedge is recognized in earnings immediately Hedge

ineffectiveness was negligible for 2008 2007 and 2006

For interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges the Company measures the hedge etThctiveness by

offsetting the change in the variable portion of the interest rate swap with the change in the expected interest

flows due to fluctuations in the LIBOR based interest rate

The counterparties to all of the above mentioned financial instruments are major international financial

institutions The Company is exposed to credit risk for net exchanges under these agreements hut not for the

notional amounts The risk of default is considered remote

The carrying values and fair values of the Companys financial instruments at January 2009 and

December 29 2007 follow

2008 2007

Carrying Carrying Fair

Millions of Dollars asset/liability
Value Fair Value Valu_ Value

Long Term Debt Including Current Portion $1433.4 $1106.5 $1222.4 $1152.0

Undesignated Hedges

Forward Contracts 3.8 3.8 0.9 0.9

Cross currency swaps 6.0 6.0

Cash Flow Hedges

Forward contracts 1.5 1.5 5.4 5.4

Interest rate swaps 6.6 6.6 6.1 6.1

Cross currency swaps 21.4 21.4 68.0 68.0

Fair Value Hedges

Cross currency swaps 0.8 0.8

Net Investment Hedges

Cross currency swaps 14.5 14.5

Forward contracts 20.7 20.7

Total Financial Instruments $1485.8 $1158.9 $1303.9 Sl233.5

The fair values of long-term debt instruments are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the

Companys marginal borrowing rates The fair values of foreign currency and interest rate swap agreements

are based on current settlement values The carrying amount of cash equivalents and short-term borrowings

approximates fair value

CAPITAL STOCK

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING Weighted-average shares outstanding used to calculate

basic and diluted earnings per share for each year were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Basic earnings per share weighted-average shares

outstanding 78897131 82312724 81866241

Dilutive effect of stock options and awards 977017 l73248 1838131

Diluted earnings per share weighted-average shares

outstanding 79874148 84045572 83704372

As further detailed in Note Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements in March 2007 the Company

issued warrants to purchase up to 5092956 shares of its common stock with strike price of $87.12 which
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are anti-dilutive since the strike price of the warrants is greater than the market price of the Companys

common stock There were 4938624 warrants outstanding at January 2009 reflecting cancellations

pertaining to the 810.0 million of Equity Units repurchased in November 2008

The following weighted-average stock options and warrants to purchase the Companys common stock were

not included in the computation of diluted shares outstanding because the effect would be anti-dilutive

2008 2007 2006

Number of stock options in thousands 2101 824 738

Number of stock warrants in thousands 5069 3918

COMMON STOCK SHARE ACTIVITY Common stock share activity for 2008 2007 and 2006 was as

follows

2008 2007 2006

Outstanding beginning of
year 80378787 81841627 83791129

Issued from treasury 737698 2323973 2076722

Returned to treasury 2240451 3786813 4026224

Outstanding end of year 78876034 80378787 81841627

COMMON STOCK RESERVED Common stock shares reserved for issuance under various employee and

director stock plans at January 2009 and December 29 2007 are as follows

2008 2007

Employee stock purchase plan 3216631 3278892

Other stock-based compensation plans 3061491 3894296

Total 6278122 7173188

PREFERRED STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS Each outstanding share of common stock has one share

purchase right Each purchase right may be exercised to purchase one two-hundredth of share of Series

Junior Participating Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $220.00 subject to adjustment The rights which

do not have voting rights expire on March 10 2016 and may be redeemed by the Company at price of

$0.01 per right at any time prior to the tenth day following the public announcement that person has

acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock In the event that

the Company is acquired in merger or other business combination transaction provision shall be made so

that each holder of right other than holder who is 14.9%-or-more shareowner shall have the right to

receive upon exercise thereof that number of shares of common stock of the surviving Company having

market value equal to two times the exercise price of the right Similarly if anyone becomes the beneficial

owner of more than 15% of the then outstanding shares of common stock except pursuant to an offer for all

outstanding shares of common stock which the independent directors have deemed to be fair and in the best

interest of the Company provision will be made so that each holder of right other than holder who is

14.9%-or-more shareowner shall thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise thereof common stock or
in certain circumstances cash property or other securities of the Company having market value equal to

two times the exercise price of the right At January 2009 there were 78876034 outstanding rights

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS The Company has stock-based compensation plans for

salaried employees and non-employee members of the Board of Directors The plans provide for discretionary

grants of stock options restricted stock units and other stock-based awards The plans are generally

administered by the Compensation and Organization Committee of the Board of Directors consisting of non

employee directors

Stock Options Stock options are granted at the fair market value of the Companys stock on the date of

grant and have 10 year term Generally stock option grants vest ratably over four years from the date of

grant

The following describes how certain assumptions affecting the estimated fair value of stock options are

determined the dividend yield is computed as the annualized dividend rate at the date of grant divided by the
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strike price of the stock option expected volatility is based on an average of the market implied volatility and

historical volatility for the year expected life the risk-free interest rate is based on U.S Treasury securities

with maturities equal to the expected life of the option and an eight percent forfeiture rate is assumed The

Company uses historical data in order to estimate exercise termination and holding period behavior for

valuation purposes

The number of stock options and weighted-average exercise prices follows

2008 2007 2006

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding beginning of year 7053899 $37.83 8456508 $36.3 9559.604 $34.06

Granted 849360 33.73 743000 53.11 934000 50.44

Exercised 400972 31.44 1820355 36.10 1817.695 31.44

Forfeited 420063 48.31 325254 42.99 219401 37.71

Outstanding end of year 7082224 $37.08 7053899 S37.83 8456508 $36.31

Exercisable end of year 5368989 $35.30 5114357 $33.46 5619112 $32.88

At January 2009 the range of exercise prices on outstanding stock options was $19.34 to $63.04 Stock

option expense was $4.9 million S8.6 million and $8.2 million for the years ended January 2009

December 29 2007 and December 30 2006 respectively

The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively dividend yield of 3.8% 2.4% and 2.4% expected volatility of 45.0% 28.0% 26.0% and risk-

free interest rates of 1.8% 3.6% 4.2% An expected life of years was used in each period and weighted

average vesting period of 2.0 years in 2008 2.5 years in 2007 and 2.3 years
in 2006 The weighted average

fair value of stock options granted in 2008 2007 and 2006 was $9.25 $12.15 and $12.03 respectively

At .lanuary 2009 the Company had $15.3 million of unrecognized pre-tax compensation expense for stock

options This expense will be recognized over the remaining vesting periods which are 2.0 years on weighted

average basis

During 2008 the Company received $12.6 million in cash from the exercise of stock options The related tax

benefit from the exercise of these options is $2.5 million During 2008 2007 and 2006 the total intrinsic value

of options exercised was $6.8 million $37.9 million and $35.5 million respectively When options are

exercised the related shares are issued from treasury stock

SFAS 123R requires the benefit arising from tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to he

classified as financing cash flow rather than as an operating cash flow as all such tax benefits were

classified under earlier accounting guidance To quantify the recognized compensation cost on which the

excess tax benefit is computed both actual compensation expense recorded following the adoption of

SFAS 23R and pro-forma compensation cost reported in disclosures under the previous SFAS 23 standard in

earlier periods is considered An excess tax benefit is generated on the extent to which the actual gain or

spread an optionee receives upon exercise of an option exceeds the fair value determined at the grant date

that excess spread over the fair value of the option times the applicable tax rate represents the excess tax

benefit In 2008 and 2007 the Company reported $3.8 million and $8.6 million respectively of excess tax

benefits as financing cash flow
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Outstanding and exercisable stock option information at January 2009 follows

Exercisable Stock Options

Weighted-

average

Exercise Price Ranges
_____________ __________________ ____________________ _____________

Exercise Price

$30.00 and below $22.39

$30.01 45.00 34.45

$45.01 higher _________ ____________ ______________ _________ 49.32

__________ ______________ ________________ ___________
$35.30

Compensation cost for new grants is recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period The expense

for retirement eligible employees those aged 55 and over and with 10 or more years of service is recognized

by the date they became retirement eligible as such employees may retain their options for the 10 year

contractual term in the event they retire prior to the end of the vesting period stipulated in the grant

Employee Stock Purchase Plan The Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP enables substantially all

employees in the United States and Canada to subscribe at any time to purchase shares of common stock on

monthly basis at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the shares on the grant date $48.85 per share

for fiscal year 2008 purchases or 85% of the fair niarket value of the shares on the last business day of each

month maximum of 6000000 shares arc authorized for subscription Dunng 2008 2007 and 2006 shares

totaling 62261 68848 and 64590 respectively were issLied under the plan at average prices of $37.31

$44.33 and $39.26 per share respectively and the intrinsic value of the ESPP purchases was $0.4 million

$0.8 million and $0.6 million respectively For 2008 the Company received $2.3 million in cash from ESPP

purchases and there is no related tax benefit The fair value of ESPP shares was estimated using the Black

Scholes option pricing model ESPP compensation cost is recognized ratably over the one year term based on

actual employee stock purchases under the plan The fair value of the employees purchase rights under the

ESPP was estimated using the following assumptions ftr 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively dividend yield of

3.7% 2.2% and 2.4% expected volatility of 28.0% 22.0% and 23.0% risk-free interest rates of 0.3% 4.4%

and 4.3% and expected lives of one year The weighted average fair value of those purchase rights granted in

2008 2007 and 2006 was $6.59 $10.95 and $9.70 respectively

Restricted Share Units Compensation cost for restricted share units including restricted shares granted to

French employees in lieu of RSUs collectively RSUs granted to employees is recognized ratably over the

vesting term which varies but is generally years RSU grants totaled 241 036 shares 228125 shares and

169675 shares in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The weighted-average grant date fair value of RSUs

granted in 2008 2007 and 2006 was $35.28 $49.13 and S49.28 per share respectively Total compensation

expense recognized for RSUs amounted to S6.3 million $7.6 million and $4.1 million respectively and the

related tax benefit recorded was S2.l million $2.2 million and $1.0 respectively in 2008 2007 and 2006 As

of January 2009 unrecognized compensation expense for RSUs amounted to 15.8 million and this cost

will be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.9 years

summary of non-vested restricted stock unit activity as of January 2009 and changes during the twelve

month period then ended is as follows

Non-vested at December 29 2007

Granted

Vested

Forfeited
_______________ __________________

Non-vested at January 2009
_______________ __________________

The total fair value of shares vested market value on the date vested during 2008 2007 and 2006 was

$4.4 million $5.1 million and S5.2 million respectively

Outstanding Stock Options

Weighted-average

Remaining

Options Contractual L.ife

831592

4380.690

869942

7082224

1.51

4.65

7.80

5.12

%\eighted-average

Exercise Price

$22.39

34.25

50.26

$37.08

Options

831592

3555330

982067

5368989

Restricted Share

Units

406723

241036

122043

44845

480871

Vseighted Average

Grant

Date Fair \alue

$48.68

35.28

47.46

47.17

S42.55
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Additionally non-employee members of the Board of Directors received restricted share-based grants which

must be cash settled and accordingly mark-to-market accounting is applied The after-tax expense recognized

for such grants amounted to $0.2 million in 2008 $0.4 million in 2007 and $0.5 million in 2006

Long-Term Performance Awards

Ciclical 3-iear Plans The Company has granted Long Term Performance Awards LTIPs under its 1997

and 2001 Long Term Incentive Plans to senior management employees for achieving Company performance

measures specifically earnings per share and return on capital employed Awards are payable in shares of

common stock which may be restricted if the employee has not achieved certain stock ownership levels and

generally no award is made if the employee terminates employment prior to the payout date There are three

award cycles in progress one for the three year period ending in December 2008 the second 6w the three

year period ending in December 2009 and the third for the three year period ending in December 2010 The

ultimate issuance of shares if any is determined based on performance in the final year
ui the cycle Based

on performance in fiscal 2008 total of 27031 shares will be issued to senior management in 2009

Special Bonus Program In 2007 the Company adopted special bonus program under its 1997 L.ong Term

Incentive Plan The program provides senior managers the opportunity to receive stock in the event certain

working capital turn objectives are achieved by December 2009 and sustained for period of at least six

months The ultimate issuances of shares if any will be determined based on performance during the

performance period

Expense recognized for the various performance-contingent grants amounted to $1.9 million in 2008

$1.5 million in 2007 and $7.4 million in 2006 In the event performance goals are not met no compensation

cost is recognized and any previously recognized compensation cost is reversed summary of the activity

pertaining to the maximum number of shares that may be issued under both the Cyclical 3..year Plans and the

Special Bonus Program is as follows

\eighted Average

ra iii

Share Units Date Fair Value

Non-vested at December 29 2007 4725 19 S48 14

Granted 238068 44.22

Vested 110033 4.61

Forfeited 30751 50.25

Non-vested at January 2009 569803 S490

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss at the end of each fiscal year was as follows

Millions of Iollars
2008 2007 2006

Currency translation adjustment $66.6 $99.3 8.3

Pension loss net of tax 83.0 42.2 68.9

Fair value of net investment hedge effectiveness net of tax 6.6 14.5 9.0

Fair value of cash flow hedge effectiveness net of tax 4.8 4.4

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss $151.4 S47.7 $8

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN ESOP Substantially all U.S employees may contribute

from 1% to 15% of their eligible compensation to tax-deferred 401k savings plan subject to restrictions

under tax laws Employees generally direct the investment of their own contributions into \arious investment

funds An employer match benefit is provided under the plan equal to one-half of each employees tax-detrred

contribution up to the first 7% of their compensation Participants direct the entire employer match benefit

such that no participant is required to hold the Companys common stock in their 401k account The
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employer match benefit totaled 10.4 million S8.4 million and S7.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

In addition approximately 4100 U.S salaried and non-union hourly employees receive non-contributory

benefit under the Cornerstone plan Cornerstone benefit allocations range from 3% to 9% of eligible employee

compensation based on age Approximately 300 U.S employees receive an additional average .7%

contribution actuarially designed to replace previously curtailed pension benefits Allocations for benefits

earned under the Cornerstone plan were $15.6 million in 2008 $13.8 million in 2007 and $13.2 million in

2006 Assets held in participant Cornerstone accounts are invested in target date retirement funds which are

age-based mix of investments

Shares of the Companys common stock held by the ESOP were purchased with the proceeds of external

borrowings in 1989 and borrowings from the Company in 1991 1991 internal loan The external ESOP

borrowings are guaranteed by the Company and are included in long-term debt Shareowners equity reflects

reduction equal to the cost basis of unearned unallocated shares purchased with the internal and the external

borrowings

The Company accounts for the ESOP under Statement of Position SOP 76-3 Accounting Practices for

Certain Employee Stock Ownership Plans as affected by the Emerging Issues Task Force EITF 89-8

Expense Recognition for Employee Stock Ownership Plans Net ESOP activity recognized is comprised of

the cost basis of shares released the cost of the aforementioned Cornerstone and 401k match defined

contribution benefits interest expense on the external 1989 borrowing less the fair value of shares released

and dividends on unallocated ESOP shares Net ESOP expense was 10.6 million in 2008 $1.6 million in

2007 and $2.4 million in 2006 ESOP expense is affected by the market value of the Companys common

stock on the monthly dates when shares are released The market value of shares released averaged $43.65 per

share in 2008 $56.04 per share in 2007 and $49.28 in 2006

Unallocated shares are released from the trust based on current period debt principal and interest payments as

percentage of total future debt principal and interest payments Dividends on both allocated and unallocated

shares may be used for debt service and to credit participant accounts for dividends earned on allocated shares

Dividends paid on the shares acquired with the 1991 internal loan were used solely to pay internal loan debt

service in all periods Dividends on ESOP shares which are charged to shareowners equity as declared were

$9.7 million in 2008 $11.0 million in 2007 and $11 .7 million in 2006 Dividends on ESOP shares were

utilized entirely for debt service in all years Interest costs incurred by the ESOP on the 1989 external debt in

2008 2007 and 2006 were $0.2 million $0.3 million and S0.3 million respectively Interest costs incurred by

the ESOP on the 1991 internal loan which have no earnings impact were S8.4 million $8.7 million and

$9.2 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Both allocated and unallocated ESOP shares are treated as

outstanding for purposes of computing earnings per share As of JanLiary 2009 the number of ESOP shares

allocated to participant accounts was 363t455 and the number of unallocated shares was 4704184 At

January 2009 there were 30475 released shares in the ESOP trust holding account pending allocation The

Company made cash contributions to the ESOP totaling $1 5.6 million in 2008 $11.7 million in 2007 and

$11.2 million in 2006

PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS The Company sponsors pension plans covering most domestic

hourly and certain executive employees and approximately 4300 foreign employees Benefits are generally

based on salary and years of service except for U.S collective bargaining employees whose benefits are based

on stated amount for each year of service

The Company contributes to multi-employer plans for certain collective bargaining U.S employees In

addition various other defined contribution plans are sponsored worldwide The expense for such defined

contribution plans aside from the earlier discussed ESOP plans follows

1iIIions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Multi-employer plan expense
$0.6 $0.5 $0.5

Other defined contribution plan expense
$5.0 $6.5 $4.7
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The components of net periodic pension expense are as follows

Millions of Dollars

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost

Transition amount amortization

Actuarial loss amortization

Settlement curtailment loss

20062008

2.7 2.7 2.6

9.8 9.0 8.1

10.3 9.8 7.9
1.4 1.5 1.4

0.6 1.1

2008 2006

4.7 4.4 5.9

15.4 15.0 13.8

19.0 18.2 16.9

0.1 0.1 0.2

0.1 0.1

3.9 6.3 6.4

1.0 0.6 6.1

Net periodic pension expense 3.6 4.0 5.3 6.2 8.3 15.5

The Company provides medical and dental benefits for certain retired employees in the United States In

addition certain U.S employees who retire from active service are eligible for life insurance benefits

Approximately 7500 participants are covered under these plans Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense

was Sl.9 million in 2008 $2.2 million in 2007 and $2.7 million in 2006

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income in 2008 are as

follows

Millions of Dollars
2008

Current year actuarial loss $85.9

Amortization of actuarial loss 3.6

Amortization of prior service costs 1.3

Amortization of transition obligation 0.1

Currency other 21.7

Total loss recognized in other comprehensive income pre-tax $59.2

The amounts in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss expected to he recognized as components of net

periodic benefit costs during 2009 total $6.3 million representing amortization of $5.1 million of actuarial

loss $1.1 million of prior service cost and $0.1 million of transition obligation

on-t

U.S Plans Plans

2007 2007
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The Company uses fiscal year end date to value all its plans The changes in the pension and other post-

Balance Sheets are shown below

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at end of prior year

Service cost

Interest cost

Settlements curtailments

Actuarial gain loss

Plan amendments

Foreign currency exchange rates

Participant contributions

Acquisitions divestitures and other

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year

Actual return loss on plan assets

Participant contributions

Employer contributions

Settlements

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Acquisitions divestitures and other

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of plan year

Funded status assets less than benefit

obligation

Unrecognized prior service cost credit

Unrecognized net actuarial loss gain

Unrecognized net transition liability

Net amount recognized

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets

Prepaid benefit cost non-current

Current benefit liability

Non-current benefit liability

Net liability recognized

Accumulated other comprehensive loss pre

tax
Prior service cost credit

Actuarial gain loss

Transition liability

Net amount recognized

retirement benefit obligations fair value of plan assets as well as amounts recognized in the Consolidated

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

2908 2007

Other Benefits

2008 20072008 2007

$155.5 $148.2 $299.5 $312.9 24.5 27.5

2.7 2.7 4.7 4.4 1.0 1.1

9.8 9.0 15.4 15.0 1.4 1.4

1.3 5.3

8.4 7.9 22.4 26.4 1.0 3.4

1.1 0.4

64.0 14.3

0.1 0.1

13.1 0.2 0.5

10.6 9.6 15.0 16.0 2.9 2.1

$166.9 $155.5 $217.2 $299.5 23.0 24.5

$129.0 $112.2 $281.4 $267.1

34.7 10.4 36.6 13.1

0.1 0.1

6.8 4.0 8.6 10.0 2.9 2.1

1.8 4.8

59.4 11.6

12.0 2.4 0.3

10.6 9.6 15.0 16.0 2.9 2.1

90.5 $129.0 $174.9 $281.4

$76.4 $26.5 $42.3 $l8.1 $23.0 $24.5

6.5 6.7 0.4 1.1 1.0 1.2
47.5 5.9 65.7 58.3 0.3 1.0

0.7 0.9

$22.4 $25.7 24.5 42.2 $23.7 $24.7

16.5 4.2 16.0

2.8 2.8 1.7 1.4 2.0 2.1

73.6 40.2 44.8 32.7 21.0 22.4

$76.4 $26.5 $42.3 $18.1 $23.0 $24.5

6.5 6.7 0.4 1.1 1.0 1.2

47.5 5.9 65.7 58.3 0.3 1.0

0.7 0.9

54.0 0.8 66.8 60.3 0.7 0.2

$22.4 $25.7 24.5 42.2 $23.7 $24.7

In 2008 the reduction of the projected benefit obligation for actuarial gains primarily pertains to increased

discount rates used to measure the pension liabilities
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $366.3 million at January

2009 and $427.1 million at December 29 2007 Information regarding pension plans in which accumulated

benefit obligations exceed plan assets follows

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans

\Iillions of Dollars
2008 2007 2008 2007

Projected benefit obligation $166.9 $58.6 $184.4 S56.2

Accumulated benefit obligation $163.9 $55.7 $172.5 $50.0

Fair value of plan assets $90.5 $15.6 $138.0 $22.2

Information regarding pension plans in which projected benefit obligations inclusive of anticipated future

compensation increases exceed plan assets follows

U.S Plans Non-IS Plans

\Iillioris of Dolla rs
2008 2007 200% 2007

Projected benefit obligation $166.9 $58.6 $185.0 $56.9

Accumulated benefit obligation $163.9 $55.7 $173.0 $50.5

Fair value of plan assets $90.5 $15.6 $138.5 $22.7

The Conipanr adopted SE4S 158 us of December 30 2006 The impact from recognizing the funded status

of the defined benefit plans representing the fair value of the plan assets versus the projected benefit

obligation was decrease to Shareowners Equity of $61.1 million net of $26.7 million tax benefit

The major assumptions used in valuing pension and postretirement plan obligations and net costs were as

follows

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans U.S Plans

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 200.5 2007 2006

Weighted-average assumptions used

to determine benefit obligations

at ear end

Discount rate 6.0% 6.5% 5.75% 6.0% 5.5% 4.75% 6.25% 6.25% 5.75%

Rate of compensation increase 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 3.5% 3.75% 3.75% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Weighted-average assumptions used

to determine net periodic benefit

cost

Discount rate 6.5% 5.75% 5.5% 5.5% 4.75% 5.0% 6.25% 5.75% 5.5%

Rate of compensation increase 6.0% 6.0% 5.5% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Expected return on plan assets 8.0% 8.0% 7.75% 7.5% 7.0% 7.5%

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the returns projected for the

various asset classes and the relative weighting for each asset class as reflected in the target asset allocation

below In addition the Company considers historical performance the opinions of outside actuaries and other

data in developing the return assumption The Company expects to use weighted-average long-term rate of

return assumption of 7.5% tor the IJ.S plans and 7.0% for the non-I/S plans in the determination of fiscal

2009 net periodic benefit expense

PENSION PLAN ASSETS Plan assets are invested in equity securities bonds and other fised income

securities money market instruments and insurance contracts The Companys weighted-average worldwide

actual asset allocations at January 2009 and December 29 2007 by asset category are as tollows

Plan Assets
Target

Asset Category
2008 2007_ Allocation

Equity securities 58% 65% 50 70%

Fixed income securities 35% 3o% 20 40%

Other 7% 10%

fotal 100% 00% 00%
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The Companys investment strategy for pension plan assets includes diversification to minimize interest and

market risks and generally does not involve the use of derivative financial instruments Plan assets are

rebalanced periodically to maintain target asset allocations Maturities of investments are not necessarily

related to the timing of expected future benefit payments but adequate liquidity to make immediate and

medium term benefit payments is ensured

CONTRIBUTIONS The Companys funding policy for its defined benefit plans is to contribute amounts

determined annually on an actuarial basis to provide for cLirrent and future benefits in accordance with federal

law and other regulations The Company expects to contribute approximately S20 million to its pension and

other post-retirement benefit plans in 2009

EXPECTED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS Benefit payments inclusive of amounts attributable to

estimated future employee service are expected to be paid as follows over the next 10 years

.liIIions of Doiiar
lotal Year \car Year Year %car %ears 6-10

Future payments $288.2 $23.9 S24.6 S25.4 $26.8 S3l.4 $156.1

These benefit payments will be funded through combination of existing plan assets and amounts to be

contributed in the futLire by the Company

HEALTH CARE COST TRENDS The weighted average annual assumed rate of increase in the per-capita

cost of covered benefits i.e health care cost trend rate is assumed to be 9.5% for 2009 reducing gradLially

to 6% by 2015 and remaining at that level thereafter one percentage point change in the assumed health

care cost trend rate would have an immaterial effect on the net periodic post-retirement benefit cost and the

post-retirement benefit obligation as of January 2009

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As discussed in Note the Company adopted SFAS 157 as impacted by FSPs 157-1 and 157-2 in 2008

with respect to all applicable financial assets and liabilities and ii nonfinancial assets and liabilities that

are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Companys financial statements on recurring basis at least

annually SFAS 157 defines fair value establishes consistent framework for measuring fair value and

expands disclosure requirements about fair value SFAS 157 requires the Company to maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value Observable inputs

reflect market data obtained from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect the Companys

market assumptions These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy

Level Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs and

significant value drivers are observable

Level Instruments that are valued using unobservable inputs

The Company holds various derivative financial instruments that are employed to manage risks including

foreign currency and interest rate exposures These financial instruments are carried at fair value and are

included within the scope of SFAS 157 The Company determines the fair value of derivatives through the use

of matrix or model pricing which utilizes verifiable inputs such as market interest and currency rates When

determining the fair value of these financial instruments for which Level evidence does not exist the

Company considers various factors including the following exchange or market price quotations of similar

instruments time value and volatility factors the Companys own credit rating and the credit rating of the

counterparty
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The following table presents the fair value and the hierarchy level for financial assets and liabilities that arc

measured at fair value as of January 2009 in millions

lotal Carring Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Value at Active Markets Obsersabte Inputs nobsersable Inputs

January 2009 1evel tesel l.esel

Derivative assets S3 1.8 831.8

Derivative liabilities S84.2 884.2

As indicated in Note the remaining aspects of SFAS 157 for which the effective date for the Company was

deferred under FSP 157-2 until fiscal 2009 relate to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are

measured at fair value but are recognized or disclosed on nonrecurring basis This deferral relates to such

items as impairment testing for goodwill other intangible and longlived assets and nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities initially measured at fair value in business combination

OTHER COSTS AND EXPENSES

Other-net is primarily comprised of intangible asset amortization expense gains and losses on asset

dispositions currency impact environmental expense and net expenses related to the Mac Tools extended

financing programs mainly financing receivable losses and interest income

Research and development costs were S25.4 million $24.5 million and S22 million for fiscal scars 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively

RESTRUCTURING AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

At January 2009 the restructuring reserve balance was $67.9 million sunlinary of the restructuring

reserve activity and related charges from December 29 2007 to January 2009 is as folloss

Acquisition Net

Millions of Dollars
12129107 Acci ual Additions sge Curt enc\ 1/3/09

Acquisitions

Severance and related costs $18.8 $5.3 812.8 S0.5 $10.8

Facility closure 1.6 1.1 0.9 1.8

Other 1.0
________ ________

1.0 ______ _______

Subtotal acquisitions 21.4 6.4
________

14.7 0.5 12.6

2008 Actions

Severance and related costs 70.0 15.5 0.4 54.1

Asset impairments 13.6 13.6

Facility closure 0.7 0.7
Other

______ ________
1.2

_______ ______ 1.2

Subtotal 2008 actions
_________ __________

85.5 29.8 0.4 55.3

Pre-2008 Actions 2.3
________

2.3

Total $23.7 $6.4 $85.5 S46.8 80.9 567.9

200S Actions During 2008 the Company initiated cost reduction initiatives in order to maintam its cost

competitiveness large portion of these actions were initiated in the ffiurth quarter as the Company

responded to deteriorating business conditions resulting from the recessionary U.S economic weakness and

slowing global demand primarily in its CDIY and Industrial segments Seerance charges of S70.0 million

have been recorded relating to the reduction of approximately 2700 employees In addition to scerance

$13.6 million in charges were recognized pertaining to asset impairments for production assets and real estate

and S0.7 million for facility closure costs The $1.2 million in other charges stemmed from the termination of

service contracts Of the amount recorded in 2008 S29.8 million has been utilized to date lor remaining

reserve as of January 2009 of $55.3 million The Company will utilize majority of these reserves in 2009

and estimates approximately 3Oo will be expended in 2010 primarily pertaining to the timing olapproals

from uropean governmental agencies

75



Pre-2008 Actions During 2007 the Company initiated $11 .8 million of cost reduction actions in various

businesses These actions were comprised of severance for 525 employees and the exit of leased facility The

remaining reserves were fully utilized in 2008

.4cquisition Related During 2008 $6.4 million of reserves were established related to the Companys current

year acquisitions Of this amount $5.3 million was for severance and related costs for approximately

200 employees and $1.1 million related to the closure of nine branch facilities As of January 32009

$2.2 million has been utilized leaving $4.2 million remaining The Company also utilized $12.5 million of

restructuring reserves during 2008 established for various prior year acquisitions principally Facom and HSM
As of January 2009 S8.4 million in accruals remain for the prior year acquisitions Of this balance

approximately $7 million pertains to Facom for which the timing of payments depends upon the actions of

certain European governmental agencies

Restructuring and asset impairment charges by segment were as follows

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Security $13.8 $5.3 $5.9

Industrial 29.7 1.5 1.6

CDIY 35.6 5.6 5.3

Non-operating
6.4 0.4 1.0

Consolidated $85.5 $12.8 $13.8

Of the $35.6 million of restructuring and asset impairment charges noted above for the CDIY segment

$13.6 million is for asset impairments related to the current and planned closure of several facilities There

were no asset impairments for the Security and Industrial segments in 2008 Fair value for impaired production

assets was based on the present value of discounted cash flows This included an estimate for future cash flows

as production activities are phased out as well as auction values prices for similar assets for assets where use

has been discontinued or future cash flows are minimal Real estate values are based on estimates of the

Companys anticipated sales values less costs to sell which have been based on sales of comparable

properties and estimates from third party brokers

BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

The Security segment is provider of access and security solutions primarily for retailers educational

financial and healthcare institutions as well as commercial governmental and industrial customers The

Company provides an extensive suite of mechanical and electronic security products and systems and variety

of security services These include security integration systems software related installation maintenance

monitoring services automatic doors door closers exit devices hardware and locking mechanisms Security

products are sold primarily on direct sales basis and in certain instances through third party distributors The

Industrial segment manufactures and markets professional industrial and automotive mechanics tools and

storage systems engineered healthcare storage systems hydraulic tools and accessories plumbing heating and

air conditioning tools assembly tools and systems and specialty tools These products are sold to industrial

customers and distributed primarily through third party
distributors as well as through direct sales forces The

Construction and Do-It-Yourself CDlY segment manufactures and markets hand tools consumer mechanics

tools storage systems and pneumatic tools and fasteners as these products are principally utilized in

construction and Do-It-Yourself projects These products are sold to professional end users as well as

consumers and are distributed through retailers including home centers mass merchants hardware stores and

retail lumber yards

The Company utilizes segment profit which is defined as net sales minus cost of sales and SGA inclusive

of the provision for doubtful accounts aside from corporate overhead expense and segment profit as

percentage of net sales to assess the profitability of each segment Segment profit excludes the corporate

overhead expense element of SGA interest income interest expense other-net inclusive of intangible asset

amortization expense restructuring and income tax expense Refer to Note Restructuring and Asset

Impairments for the amount of restructuring charges and asset impairments by segment and to Note
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for intangible amortization expense by segment Corporate overhead is

comprised of world headquarters facility expense cost for the executive management team and cost for certain

centralized functions that benefit the entire Company but are not directly attributable to the businesses such as

legal and corporate finance functions Transactions between segments are not matenal Segment assets

primarily include accounts receivable inventory other current assets property plant and equipi1ent intangible

assets and other miscellaneous assets Corporate assets and unallocated assets are cash and deferred income

taxes Geographic net sales and long-lived assets are attributed to the geographic regions based on the

geographic location of each Company subsidiary

The following information excludes the CST/herger laser leveling and measuring business as well as three

other smaller businesses which are classified as discontinued operations as disclosed in Note Discontinued

Operations unless otherwise noted

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

\I illions of 1ollars
2008 2007 2006

Net Sales

Security $1497.2 51399.5 $1127.4

Industrial 1273.5 1245.8 1129.4

CDIY 1655.5 l7l5 1640.5

Consolidated $4426.2 .$436ft5 53897.3

Segment Profit

Security $268.7 $239.9 Sl69.2

Industrial 164.2 82.7 22.9

CDIY 190.7 254.2 251.9

Segment Profit 623.6 676.8 544.0

Corporate overhead 59.8 622 63.3

Total 563.8 614.6 480.7

Restructuring charges and asset impairments 85.5 12 .8 13 .8

Interest income 9.2 5.1 4.4

Interest expense 82.0 85.2 69.3
Other-net 104.2 87.1 54.3

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes $301.3 5434.6 $347.7

Segment Assets

Security $2378.6 $1950.5 $1347.7
Industrial 1227.2 1.31 2.2 121 .0

CDIY 959.6 10971 1064.2

4565.4 4359.7 3622.9

Discontinued operations 91.4 98.6

Corporate assets 313.8 31 1.9 21 3.9

Consolidated $4879.2 S4763.0 $3935.4

Capital and Software Expenditures

Security $52.6 $27.1 S28.7

Industrial 38.5 9.5 15.4

CDIY 49.3 39.3 35.3

Discontinued operations 0.4 1.0

Consolidated S140.8 S89 $80.5

Depreciation and Amortization

SecLirity $108.6 $90 546.6

Industrial 30.3 25.9 25.7

CDIY 42.2 42.8 44.8

Discontinued operations 1.9 3.5

Consolidated $183.0 $162.2 SI 21 .2
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In connection with its acquisitions the Company recorded $21.6 million in cost of sales inventory step-up

amortization during 2006 related to the initial turn of acquired inventory which was written-up in purchase

accountiig to its fair market value This noncash inventory stepup amortization ainounted to SO million in

the Security segment S8.2 million in the CDIY segment $13.3 million in the Industrial segment Inventory

step-up amortization was not significant in 2008 and 2007

Sales to The Home Depot were 13% l6/ and 18% of the CDIY segment net sales in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Milflons of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net Sales

United States $2514.3 S2.535.O $2304.9

Other Americas 420.4 394.8 357.5

France 571.5 520.7 457.1

Other Europe 680.9 664.5 580.5

Asia 239.1 245.5 197.3

Consolidated $4426.2 5436ft5 $3897.3

Long-Lived Assets

United States $1799.6 $1519.8 $919.2

Other Americas 195.2 179.9 164.3

France 675.2 512.4 479.7

Other Europe 414.6 456.3 426.5

Asia 232.4 244.3 240.4

Consolidated $3317.0 $2912.7 $2230.1

INCOME TAXES

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of each fiscal year were

as follows

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation
$62.4 S75.8

Amortization of Intangibles
149.0 76.5

Inventories 3.1 4.8

Other 8.4 2.9

Total deferred tax liabilities $222.9 160.0

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefit plans
$96.0 S87.0

Doubtful accounts 12.8 9.4

Accruals 13.0 11.0

Restructuring charges
16.0 1.3

Operating loss carryforwards
27.9 44.2

Other 50.4 21.4

Total deferred tax assets $216.1 $174.3

Net Deferred Tax Assets Liabilities before

Valuation Allowance $6.8 $l4.3

Valuation allowance $24.5 $27.3

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities after Valuation Allowance $31.3 $13.0

Valuation allowances reduced the deferred tax asset attributable to foreign and state loss carry-forwards to the

amount that based upon all available evidence is more likely than not to be realized Reversal of the valuation
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allowance is contingent upon the recognition of future taxable income and capital gains in specific threign

countries and specific states or changes in circumstances which cause the recognition of the benefits to

become more likely than not The LS federal foreign and state loss carry-forwards expire in various years

beginning in 2009 or have indefinite carry-forwards

The classification of deferred taxes as of January 2009 and December 29 2007 is as follows

2008 2007

letred
Deferred Deferred lekrred Tax

Tax Asset Tax L.iabilit lax Asset Liability

Current $39.4 $14.1 S22.3 $4.0

Non-current 62.9 119.5 49.2 80.5

Total $102.3 $133.6 S71.5 $84.5

Income tax expense benefit attributable to continuing operations consisted of the following

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal $27.0 $52.1 S26.2

Foreign 37.6 13.4 25.4

State 8.7
______

13.4 8.0

Total current $73.3 $78.9 $59.6

Deferred Benefit

Federal $2.4 $7.0 $6.7

Foreign 2.8 27.8 18.2

State 2.6 4.4 2.1

Total deferred 2.6
______

30.4 9.4

Total $75.9 $109.3 $69.0

Income taxes paid during 2008 2007 and 2006 were $134.4 million $102.9 million and $104.5 million

respectively During 2008 the Company had tax holidays with Thailand and China Tax ho resulted in

reduction of tax expense amounting to $2.7 million in 2008 S4.3 million in 2007 and $3.1 million in 2006

The tax holiday in Thailand is in place until 2010 while the tax holiday in China expires between 2009 and

2015

The reconciliation of federal income tax at the statutory federal rate to income tax at the effective rate for

continuing operations is as follows

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Tax at statutory rate $105.4 $152.1 $121 .6

State income taxes iiet of federal benefits 5.5 4.2 3.7

Difference between foreign and federal income tax 33.9 37.1 36.3
Extraterritorial income exclusion 2.0
Branch activity 1.8 0.5 1.2

Tax accrual reserve 0.5
U.S audit settlement 16.6
Dividends 0.5 0.3 3.7
FAS 109 tax rate change 0.4 3.4
Other-net 2.5 ______8 2.2

Income taxes $75.9 $l09 $69.0
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The components of earnings from continuing operations before income taxes consisted of the following

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

lJnited States $84.3 S193.4 $131.3

Foreign 217.0 241.2 216.4

Total pre-tax earnings $301.3 $434.6 $347.7

The Companys future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated

in countries where the statutory rates are lower The Company is subject to the examination of its income tax

returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities The Company evaluates the likelihood of

unfavorable adjustments arising from the examinations and believes adequate provisions have been made in

the income tax provision

Undistributed foreign earnings of $737.9 million at January 2009 are considered to be invested indefinitely

or will be remitted substantially free of additional tax Accordingly no provision has been made for taxes that

might be payable upon remittance of such earnings nor is it practicable to determine the amount of this

liability

As of the beginning of the 2007 fiscal year the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of SFAS 109 The unrecognized tax benefits at January

2009 and December 29 2007 relate to U.S and various foreign jurisdictions

The following table summarizes the activity related to the unrecognized tax benefits

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007

Balance at beginning of year
$49.1 $54.0

Additions based on tax positions related to current year
5.6 8.1

Additions based on tax positions related to prior years
3.0 .8

Reductions based on tax positions related to prior years 5.9 7.3

Settlements 2.6

Expirations of the statute of limitations 8.7 4.9

Balance at end of year
$43.1 $49.1

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $43.1 million at January 32009 and $49.1 million at

December 29 2007 were S37.7 million and $41.7 million of tax benefits that if recognized would impact the

annual effective tax rates The accrual for potential penalties and interest related to these unrecognized tax

benefits was increased by $1.3 million in tax year 2008 and $1.5 million in tax year 2007 and in total

liability for potential penalties and interest of $5.5 million and $4.4 million has been recorded in tax years

2008 and 2007 respectively The Company classifies all tax-related interest and penalties as income tax

expense

It is reasonably possible the Company may recognize up to $8 -$12 million of currently unrecognized tax

benefits over the next 12 months pertaining primarily to expiration of statutes of limitations in various

jurisdictions

The Company files U.S. state and foreign income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of

limitations Tax years 2005 and forward remain subject to federal examination while tax years 2005 and

forward generally remain subject to examination by most state tax authorities In significant foreign

jurisdictions tax years 2003 and forward generally remain subject to examination by their respective tax

authorities

COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

COMMITMENTS The Company has non-cancelable operating lease agreements principally related to

facilities vehicles machinery and equipment Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum

sublease rentals of $3.8 million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases In addition the Company is

party to synthetic lease which qualifies as an operating lease for one of its major distribution centers
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Rental expense net of sublease income for operating leases was S66.4 million in 2008 $62.2 million in 2007

and S49.9 million in 2006

Outsourcing and other commitments are comprised of $6.9 million fbr outsourcing arrangements primarily

related to information systems and telecommunications and $20.3 million in marketing obligations

The following is summary of the future commitments for operating lease obligations maLerial purchase

commitments outsourcing and other arrangements

Millions of Dollars
Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Ihereafter

Operating lease obligations $130.0 $33.8 S26.3 $20.0 $12.5 $9.5 S27.9

Material purchase commitments 14.9 12.9 2.0

Outsourcing and other 27.2 13.4 12.5 1.3
________

Total $172.1 $60.1 S4.8 $21.3 $12.5 $9.5 $27.9

The company has numerous assets predominantly vehicles and equipment under one-year term U.S master

personal property lease Residual value obligations under this master lease were $27.9 million at January

2009 while the fair value of the underlying assets was approximately $32.1 million The U.S master personal

pioperty lease obligations are not reflected in the future minimum lease payments since the initial and

remaining term does not exceed one year The Company routinely exercises various lease reneal options and

from time to time purchases leased assets for fair value at the end of lease terms

The Company is party to synthetic lease for one of its major distribution centers The program qualifies as

an operating lease for accounting purposes where only the monthly lease cost is recorded in earnings and the

liability and value of underlying assets are offbalance sheet As of January 2009 the estimated fair value

of assets and remaining obligation for the property were $36.0 million and $29.9 million respectively

GUARANTEES The following is summary of guarantees as of January 2009

Maximum arrving
Potential mou ut of

Millions of Dollars
Term Payment 1iahilit

Financial guarantees as of January 2009

Guarantees on the residual values of leased

properties Through 2009 $57.8

Standby letters of credit Generally year 35.1

Guarantee on the external Employee Stock

Ownership Plan borrowings Through 2009 .3 .3

Commercial customer financing arrangements Up to years 16.2 15.2

Total $1 1ft4 $16.5

The Company has guaranteed portion of the residual value arising from its previously mentioned synthetic

lease and U.S master personal property lease programs The lease guarantees aggregate $57.8 million while

the fur value of the underlying assets is estimated at $68.1 million The related assets would be available to

satisfy the guarantee obligations and therefore it is unlikely The Company will incur any tijiure lossissciatel

with these lease guarantees

The Company has issued $35.1 million in standby letters of credit that guarantee future payments which may

he required under certain insurance programs Shares of the Companys common stock held by the ESOP were

purchased with the proceeds of external borrowings in the 1980s and borrowings from the Company in 1991

The external ESO1 borrowings are guaranteed by the Company and are included in the current maturities of

long-term debt Shareowners equity reflects reduction for the internal and external borrowings The

Coiiipany has sold various businesses and properties over many years and provided standard indemnification to

the purchasers with respect to any unknown liabilities such as environmental which may arise in the future

that are attributable to the time of the Companys ownership No liabilities have been recorded fir these

general indernnifications since there are no identified exposures The Company provides various limited and

fi.ill recourse guarantees to financial institutions that provide financing to U.S and Canadian Mac lool
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distributors for their initial purchase of the inventory and truck necessary to function as distributor In

addition the Company provides full recourse guarantee to financial institution that extends credit to certain

end retail customers of its U.S Mac Tool distributors The gross amount guaranteed in these arrangements is

16.2 million and the 15.2 million fair value of the guarantees issued is recorded in debt and other liabilities

as appropriate in the consolidated balance sheet

The Company provides product and service warranties which vary across its businesses The types of

warranties offered generally range from one year to limited lifetime while certain products carry no warranty

Further the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its products in connection with product

performance issues Historical warranty and service claim experience forms the basis for warranty obligations

recognized Adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new information becomes available

Eollowing is summary of the warranty liability activity for the years ended January 2009 and December 29

2007

.IiIIions of Iollars
2008 2007

Beginning balance $63.7 S66.8

Warranties and guarantees issued 21.8 23.2

Warranty payments 22.8 1.5

Acquisitions and other 2.9 4.5

Ending balance $65.6 S63.7

CONTLNGENCIES

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings relating to environmental issues employiTient product

liability workers compensation claims and other matters The Company periodically reviews the status of

these proceedings with both inside and outside counsel as well as an actuary for risk insurance Management

believes that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have material adverse effect on operations or

financial condition taken as whole

The Company recognizes liabilities for contingent exposures when analysis indicates it is both probable that an

asset has been impaired or that liability has been incurred and the amount of impairment or loss can

reasonably be estimated When range of probable loss can be estimated the Company accrues the most

likely amount In the event that no amount in the range of probable loss is considered most likely the

minimum loss in the range is accrued

In the normal course of business the Company is involved in various lawsuits and claims In addition the

Company is party to number of proceedings before federal and state regulatory agencies relating to

environmental remediation Also the Company along with many other companies has been named as

potentially responsible party PRP in number of administrative proceedings for the rernediation of varioLis

waste sites including IS active Superfund sites Current laws potentially impose joint and several liabilities

upon each PRP In assessing its potential liability at these sites the Company has considered the following

whether responsibility is being disputed the terms of existing agreements experience at similar sites and the

Companys volumetric contribution at these sites

The Companys policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and remediation costs for identified sites when

it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated The

amount of liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts with respect to each

individual site and includes such factors as existing technology presently enacted laws and regulations and

prior experience in remediation of contaminated sites The liabilities recorded do not take into account any

claims for recoveries from insurance or third parties As assessments and remediation progress at individual

sites the amounts recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal

information that becomes available As of JanLiary 2009 and December 29 2007 the Company had reserves

of $28.8 million and $30 million respectively for remediation activities associated with Company-owned

properties as well as for Superfund sites for losses that are probable and estimable Of the 2008 amount

$7.1 million is classified as current and $21 .7 million as long-term which is expected to be paid over the next



ten years
The

range
of environmental reniediation costs that is reasonably possible is $19.1 million to

S5 1.3 million which is subject to change in the near term The Company inay be liable for environmental

remediation of sites it no longer owns Liabilities have been recorded on those sites in accordance with policy

The environmental liability for certain sites that have cash payments beyond the current year that are fixed or

reliably determinable have been discounted using rate of 3.9% to 4.4% depending on the expected timing of

disbursements The discounted and undiscounted amount of the liability relative to these sites is $5.7 million and

$7.3 million respectively The payments relative to these sites are expected to be $0.8 million in 2009 $1.7 million

in 2010 $1.0 million in 201 $0.3 million in 2012 $0.3 million in 2013 and $3.2 million thereafier

The amount recorded for identified contingent liabilities is based on estimates Amounts recorded are revieved

periodically and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal information that becomes available Actual

costs to be incurred in future periods may vary from the estimates given the inherent uncertainties in evaluating

certain exposures Subject to the imprecision in estimating future contingent liability costs the Company does

not expect that any sum it may have to pay in connection with these matters in excess of the amounts recorded

will have materially adverse effect on its financial position results of operations or liquidity

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On July 25 2008 the Company sold its CST/berger laser leveling and measuring business to Robert Bosch

Tool Corporation The Company received cash proceeds of $196.7 million and recorded an $83.9 million

after-tax gain as result of the sale Additionally the Company sold three other smaller businesses for total

cash proceeds of $7.9 million and total after-tax loss of $0.3 million Total goodwill allocated to the disposal

of these businesses was $28.6 million The divestures of these businesses were made pursuant to the

Companys growth strategy which entails reduction of risk associated with certain large customer concentra

tions and better utilization of resources to increase shareowner value

CST/herger which was formally in the Companys CDIY segment manufactures and distributes surveying

accessories as well as building and construction instruments primarily in the Americas and Europe Two of the

small businesses that were sold were part of the Security segment while the third minor husness was part of

the Industrial segment

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-

Lived Assets the results of operations of CST/berger and the three small businesses have been reported as

discontinued operations The operating results of the four divested businesses are summarized as tbllows

Millions of Dollars
2008 2007 2006

Net sales $60.8 $123.4 133.4

Pretax earnings 132.8 16.5 17.9

Income taxes 44.9 5.2 7.1

Net earnings from discontinued operations $87.9 SI .3 $1 t.8

The assets and liabilities of the four divested businesses classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets at December 29 2007 are as follows

Millions of Dollars
2007

Accounts receivable $27
Inventories 10.9

Other assets 3.1

Property plant and equipment 4.5

Goodwill and other intangible assets 45.9

Total assets $91.4

Accounts payable $10.0

Accrued expenses 9.5

Other liabilities 0.9

Total liabilities $20.4
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS unaudited

Quarter
Millions of Dollars except per share amounts
2008

First Second Third Fourth Year

Net sales Sl071.0 $1151.7 $1117.6 $1085.9 $4426.2

Gross profit 405.9 441.6 431.4 392.5 1671.4

Selling general and administrative expenses 274.6 282.9 274.8 275.3 1107.6

Net earnings from continuing operations 65.6 75.7 78.7 5.4 225.4

Net earnings loss from discontinued

operations 2.4 3.9 85.9 4.3 87.9

Net earnings $68.0 $79.6 $164.6 $1.1 $313.3

Basic earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations $0.83 $0.96 $1.00 $0.07 $2.86

Discontinued operations 0.03 0.05 .09 0.06

Total basic earnings per common share $0.86 $1.01 $2.09 $0.01 $3.97

Diluted earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations $0.82 $0.95 $0.98 $0.07 $2.82

Discontinued operations 0.03 0.05 1.08 0.06 1.10

Total diluted earnings per common share $0.85 $1.00 $2.06 $0.01 $3.92

2007
First Second Third Fourth Year

Net sales $1032.9 Sl090.7 $1098.7 $1138.2 $4360.5

Gross profit 385.4 422.4 420.4 424.8 1653.0

Selling general and administrative expenses 253.8 262.9 251.8 269.9 1038.4

Net earnings from continuing operations 65.3 82.9 88.1 89.0 325.3

Net earnings from discontinued operations 2.3 2.4 3.3 3.3 1.3

Net earnings $67.6 $85.3 $91.4 $92.3 $336.6

Basic earnings per common share

Continuing operations S0.79 1.00 $1.07 $1.09 $3.95

Discontinued operations 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.14

Total basic earnings per common share $0.82 S1.03 $1.11 $1.13 $4.09

Diluted earnings per common share

Continuing operations $0.77 $0.98 $1.05 $1.07 $3.87

Discontinued operations 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.13

Total diluted earnings per common share $0.80 Sl.Ol $1.09 $1.11 $4.00

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recognized $60.5 million or $54 per diluted share of pre-tax restructuring and asset

impairment charges from continuing operations pertaining to cost actions taken in response to weak economic conditions
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EXHIBIT INDEX

TIlE STANLEY WORKS
EXHIBIT LIST

Some of the agreements included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K whether incorporated by

reference to earlier filings or otherwise may contain representations and warranties recitals or other

statements that appear to be statements of fact These agreements are included solely to provide investors with

information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information

about the Company or the other parties to the agreements Representations and warranties recitals and other

common disclosure provisions have been included in the agreements solely for the benefit of the other parties

to the applicable agreements and often are used as means of allocating risk among the parties Accordingly

such statements should not be treated as categorical statements of fact ii may be qualified by disclosures

that were made to the other parties in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreements which

disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement or included as exhibits hereto iii may apply

standards of materiality in way that is different from what may be viewed as material by or to investors in or

lenders to the Company and iv were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date

or dates as may he specified in the agreement and are subject to more recent developments

Accordingly representations and warranties recitals or other disclosures contained in agreements may not

describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time and should not he relied

on by any person other than the parties thereto in accordance with their terms Additional information about

the Company may he found in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Companys other pLiblic filings

which are available without charge through the SECs website at http//www.sec.gov

Restated Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3i to the Annual

Report on Form 10-K far the year ended January 1999

ii The Stanley Works By-laws as amended July 20 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 36
to Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 20 2007

Indenture dated as of November 12002 between the Company and The Bank ofew York

Mellon Trust Company N.A as successor trustee to JPMorgan Chase Bank defining the rights

of holders of 3V% Notes Due November 12007 4/% Notes due November 12012 and

6.15% Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4vi to the Annual Report on

Form 10-K far the year ended December 28 2002

Certificate of Designated Officers establishing Terms of 3Y% Series Senior Notes due

2007 4/iO/ Series Senior Notes due 2012 3//o Series Senior Notes due 2007 and

4/% Series Senior Notes due 2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4u to the

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27 2003

Officers Certificate relating to the 6.15% Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 29 2008

ii Indenture dated November 22 2005 between The Stanley Works and HSBC Bank USA
National Association as indenture trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated November 29 2005

iii First Supplemental Indenture dated November 22 2005 between The Stanley Works and HSI3C

Bank USA National Association as indenture trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6

to Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 29 2005

Form of 5.902% Fixed Rate/Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt Securities due

December 2045 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K

dated November 29 2005

85



iv Rights Agreement dated as of January 19 2006 by and between The Stanley Works and

Computershare Investor Services L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current

Report on Form 8-K/A dated February 22 2006

Purchase Contract and Pledge Agreement dated as of March 20 2007 between The Stanley

Works The Bank of New York Trust Company NA as Purchase Contract Agent and HSBC
Bank USA National Association as Collateral Agent and Securities Intermediary incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

vi Form of Corporate Units Certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

vii Form of Treasury Units Certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

viii Form of Unpledged Convertible Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

ix Form of Pledged Convertible Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Current Report on

Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

Form of Officers Certificate dated March 20 2006 relating to the 5.00% Notes due 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 23 2007

txi Form of 5.00% Notes due 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Current Report on

Forni 8-K dated March 23 2007

10
Note Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30 1998 between the Stanley Account Value Plan

Trust acting by and through Citibank N.A as trustee under the trust agreement for the Stanley

Account Value Plan for S41050763 aggregate principal amount of 6.07% Senior ESOP

Guaranteed Notes Due December 31 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i to the

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended July 1998

ii New 1991 Loan Agreement dated June 30 1998 between The Stanley Works as lender and

Citibank NA as trustee under the trust agreement for the Stanley Account Value Plan to

refinance the 1991 Salaried Employee ESOP Loan and the 1991 Hourly ESOP Loan and their

related promissory notes incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10u to the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1998

iii The Stanley Works Non-Employee Directors Benefit Trust Agreement dated December 27
1989 and amended as of January 1991 by and between The Stanley Works and Fleet

National Bank as successor trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit l0xviia to the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for year ended December 29 1990

Stanley Works Employees Benefit Trust Agreement dated December 27 1989 and amended

as of January 1991 by and between The Stanley Works and Fleet National Bank as

successor trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10xviib to the Annual Report on

Form 10-K for year ended December 29 1990

iv Master Leasing Agreement dated September 1992 between GE Capital Commercial Inc f/k/a

Citicorp Leasing Inc successor-in-interest to BLC Corporation and The Stanley Works

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10i to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 26 1992

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 27 2008 by and among The

Stanley Works the lenders named therein Citibank NA as Administrative Agent Citigroup

Global Markets Inc and Bane of America Securities LLC as Lead Arrangers and Book Runners

and Bank of America NA as Syndication Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 27 2008
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Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February

2009

vi Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors amended and restated as of

December 11 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOvii to Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 29 2007

vii Deferred Compensation Plan for Participants in Stanleys Management Incentive Plan amended

and restated as of December 11 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit Oi ix to Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 29 2007

viii Supplemental Retirement and Account Value Plan for Salaried Employees of The Stanley Works

amended and restated effective as of January 2009 except as otherwise provided therein

ix Supplemental Executive Retirement Program amended and restated effective January 2009

except as otherwise provided therein

1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended effective October 17 2008

Form of Award Agreement for the Long-Term Incentive Award Program for the period

January 2006 through January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to

Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 27 2006

Description of the Performance Criteria and Range of Certain Awards under the Long-Terni

Incentive Award Program for the period January 2006 through January 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 27

2006

Form of Award Agreement for the Long-Term Incentive Award Program for fiscal years 2007

through 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit lOxuif to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2007

Description of the Performance Criteria and Range of Certain Awards under the Long-Term

Incentive Award Program for fiscal years
2007 through 2009 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10xiiig to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2007

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Certificate for grants of restricted stock units pursuant

to 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated December 15 2005

Summary of Material Terms of Special Bonus Program incorporated by rererence to

Exhibit 10i to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29 2007

xi 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended effective October 17 2008

Form of Stock Option Certificate for stock options granted pursuant to 2001 Long-Term

Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10xiva to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2007

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Certificate for grants of restricted stock units pursuant

to 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10xivc to Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2007

Terms and Conditions applicable to Long Term Performance Awards issued pursuant to the

1997 and the 2001 Long Term Incentive Plans

Form of Award Letter for Long Term Performance Awards issued pursuant to the 2001 Long

Term Incentive Plan

xii Agreement and General Release between The Stanley Works and Donald Mcllnay dated

January 20 2009

xiii Agreement dated June 1999 between The Stanley Works and James Loree incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10u to the Quarterly Report on Form I0-Q for the quarter ended July

1999
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xiv Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Severance Agreement James Loree is

party to Restated and Amended Change in Control Severance Agreement in this Form

xv Form of Amended and Restated Change in Control Severance Agreement Each of Jeffery

Ansell Hubert Davis Jr and Mark Mathieu are parties to Amended and Restated Change

in Control Severance Agreements in this Form

xvi Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement Donald Allan Jr is party to Change in

Control Severance Agreement in this Form

xvii Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 10 2008 between The Stanley

Works and John Lundgren

xviii Amended and Restated Change in Control Severance Agreement dated December 10 2008

between The Stanley Works and John Lundgren

xix The Stanley Works Restricted Stock Unit Plan for Non-Employee Directors amended and restated

as of December 11 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit l0xx to Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 29 2007

Form of Certificate for RSUs issued pursuant to The Stanley Works Restricted Stock Unit

Plan for Non-Employee Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10xxv to the

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2005

xx The Stanley Works 2006 Management Incentive Compensation Plan amended and restated as of

December 11 2007

xxi Special Severance Policy for Management Incentive Compensation Plan Participants Levels 1-5

as amended effective October 17 2008

xxii Special Severance Plan as amended effectie October 17 2008 Donald Allan Jr was

participant in this Plan until February 23 2009

11 Statement re computation of per share earnmgs the information required to be presented in this

exhibit appears in Notes and to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements set forth

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

12 Statement re computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges

14 Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers incorporated by reference to the

Companys website www.stanleyworks.com

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Report on Schedule

24 Power of Attorney

31 ia Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

ib Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule l3a-14a

32 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

ii Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99 Policy on Confidential Proxy Voting and Independent Tabulation and Inspection of Elections as

adopted by The Board of Directors October 23 1991 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

28i to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 28 1991

Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement
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EXHIBIT 12

THE STANLEY WORKS AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
For the fiscal years ended January 2009 December 29 2007 December 30 2006 December 31

2005 and January 2005

Millions of Dollars

Fiscal Year

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Earnings from continuing operations before income

taxes and minority interest $303.7 $436.9 $35 1.7 342.9 S3 11 .7

Add

Interest expense 82.0 85.2 69.3 40.4 38.6

Portion of rents representative of interest factor 19.7 19.2 15.7 12.7 9.7

Income as adjusted $405.4 $54 1.3 $436.7 $396.0 S360.0

Fixed charges

Interest expense $82.0 $85.2 $69.3 $40.4 $38.6

Portion of rents representative of interest factor 19.7 19.2 15.7 12.7 9.7

Fixed charges $101.7 $104.4 S85.0 $53.1 $48.3

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 4.0 5.2 5.1 7.5 7.5



EXHIBIT 21

CORPORATE NAME

Domestic Subsidiaries

BA Inc

Cram Enterprises Inc

Hardware City Associates Limited Partnership

JennCol Inc

National Manufacturing Co

National Manufacturing Co of Canada Ltd

National Manufacturing Mexico LLC

National Manufacturing Mexico LLC

National Manufacturing Sales Co

Sargent Greenleaf Inc

Scan Modul System Inc

SecurityCo Solutions Inc

Sonitrol Franchise Company L.L.C

Stanley Access inc

Stanley Access Technologies LLC

Stanley Atlantic Inc

Stanley-Bostitch Holding Corporation

Stanley Canada Holdings L.L.C

Stanley Convergent Security Solutions Inc

Stanley European Holdings L.L.C

Stanley Fastening Systems LP

Stanley Housing Fund Inc

Stanley International Holdings Inc

Stanley Israel Investments Inc

Stanley Logistics L.L.C

Stanley Security Solutions Inc

Stanley Supply Services Inc

The Farmington River Power Company

ZAG USA Inc

JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION
ORGANIZATION

U.S.A Indiana

U.S.A Tennessee

U.S.A Connecticut

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Illinois

U.S.A Illinois

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Illinois

U.S.A Indiana

U.S.A New York

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Indiana

U.S.A Massachusetts

U.S.A Connecticut

U.S.A Delaware

International Subsidiaries

3230913 Nova Scotia Limited

African Time Systems orporation Proprietary Limited

Amano Blick International Europe Ltd

Auto Magic Entrance Systems Ltd

Beijing Bostitch Fastening Systems Co Ltd

Besco Hardware Machinery Manufacturing Ltd

Besco Investment Group Co Ltd

Besco Investment Holdings Ltd

Besco Pneumatic Corporation

Blick Dorniants Limited

Blick France SARL

Canada

South Africa

England

Canada

China

China

Cayman Islands

British Virgin Islands

Taiwan

England

France

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE STANLEY WORKS

The following is list of all active subsidiaries of The Stanley Works as of January 2009 All subsidiaries

except those marked with an asterisk are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of The Stanley

Works
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JURISDICTION OF
NCO P0 RATION

CORPORATE NAME ORG4NIZATION

Blick International Systems Limited England

Blick Properties S.A Proprietary Limited South Africa

Buck Software Systems Limited England

Buck Telefusion Communications Limited England

Bost Garnache Industries S.A.S France

Cene Investissement S.A.S France

Cerfasa S.A de C.V Mexico

Chiro Tools Holdings B.V Netherlands

Dubuis Cie S.A.S France

Facom Belgie BVBA Belgium

Facom Gereedschappen Netherlands

Facom Herraniientas SrI Spain

Facom Investments Ltd United Kingdom

Facom S.A.S France

Facom Tools Far East Ftc Ltd Singapore

Facom UK Ltd United Kingdom

Fanal S.A de CV Mexico

Frisco Finance GP Inc Canada

Frisco Finance LP Canada

FT Cannock Group Ltd United Kingdom

FT Cannock Ltd United Kingdom

GØnØrale de Protection Europe Holding S.A France

GØnØrale de Protection S.A.S France

General Protection SA Belgium

Georg Larsson A/S Denmark

Herramientas Stanley S.A de C.V Mexico

l-Ilanganani Buck Proprietary Limited South Africa

Investage Proprietary Limited South Africa

Isgus International Limited England Wales

Mac Tools Canada Inc Canada

MEDI-MATH Holding B.V Netherlands

Mont-Hard Canada Inc Canada

Mosley-Stone Limited United Kingdom

PAC International Limited England

Piole Parolai Equipement S.A.S France

Pro One Finance S.A.S France

Phillips/Accesstroniks Systems Ltd Canada

Sargent Greenleaf S.A Switzerland

Scan Modul Holding B.V Netherlands

Scan Modul Medi-Math By Netherlands

Scan Modul Medi-Math BVBA Belgium

Scan Modul MEDI-MATH Logistica Hospitalar Lda Portugal

Scan Modul Medi-math Logistics SA Spain

Scan Modul Medi-Math Sàrl France

Scan Modul Orgasystem GmbH Germany

Scan Modul System AG Switzerland

Scan Modul System Limited United Kingdom

SEEG France

Sielox Security Systems Pty Ltd Australia

Stanley-Bostitch S.A de C.V Mexico
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JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION

CORPORATE NAME ORGANIZATION

Stanley-Bostitch Servicios de R.L de CV Mexico

Stanley Canada Corporation
Canada

Stanley Chiro International Ltd Taiwan

Stanley CLPI Canada

Stanley CLP2 Canada

Stanley de Chihuahua de R.L de C.V Mexico

Stanley Deutschland GmbH Germany

Stanley do Brasil Ltda Brazil

Stanley Doors France S.A.S France

Stanley Europe BVBA Belgium

Stanley European Holdings B.V Netherlands

Stanley European Holdings II B.V Netherlands

Stanley Fastening Systems Investment Taiwan Co Taiwan

Stanley Fastening Systems Poland Sp 0.0 Poland

Stanley Finance Hungary Group Financing Limited Liability Company Hungary

Stanley France S.A.S France

Stanley France Services S.A.S France

Stanley Iberia S.L Spain

Stanley Israel Investments By Netherlands

Stanley Middle East FZE Dubai UAE

Stanley Nordic ApS Denmark

Stanley Sales and Marketing Poland Sp 0.0 Poland

Stanley Security Solutions Canada Corp Canada

Stanley Security Solutions Europe Limited England

Stanley Security Solutions Ireland Limited Ireland

Stanley Security Solutions Ltd England

Stanley Security Solutions Operations Limited England

Stanley Security Solutions Proprietary Limited South Africa

Stanley Technology Co Ltd China

Stanley Tianjin International Trading Co Ltd China

Stanley Tona Holding B.V Netherlands

Stanley Tools NZ Limited New Zealand

Stanley Tools S.A.S France

Stanley UK Acquisition Company Limited England Wales

Stanley U.K Holding Ltd United Kingdom

Stanley UK Limited United Kingdom

Stanley UK Sales Limited United Kingdom

Stanley UK Services Limited United Kingdom

Stanley Works Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore

Stanley Works Belgium BVBA Belgium

Stanley Works China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands

Stanley Works Europe AG Switzerland

Stanley Works Holdings By Netherlands

Stanley Works India Private Limited India

Stanley Works Limited Thailand

Stanley Works Malaysia SDN BHD Malaysia

Stanley Works Nederland B.V Netherlands

Stanley Zhongshan Hardware Co Ltd China

Stichting Beheer Intellectuele Eigendomsrechten Blick Benelux By Netherlands

STRATEC S.A.S France
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JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION

CORPORATE NAME ORGANIZATION

Suomen Stanley OY Finland

SWK U.K Holding Limited England Wales

SWK UK Limited England Wales

SWK Utensilerie SrI Italy

TCS Group B.V Netherlands

Teletechnicom Holding By Netherlands

The Stanley Works Bermuda Ltd Bermuda

The Stanley Works CV Netherlands

The Stanley Works Japan Japan

The Stanley Works Langfang Fastening Systems Co. Ltd China

The Stanley Works Limited United Kingdom

The Stanley Works Pty Ltd Australia

The Stanley Works Shanghai Co. Ltd China

The Stanley Works Shanghai Management Co. Ltd China

The Stanley Works Zhejiang Industrial Tools Co Ltd China

The Stanley Works Zhongshan Tool Co Ltd China

Tona a.s Czech Republic

Top Line Methodes et Concepts S.A France

Tronorsa S.A de CV Mexico

VIRAX S.A.S France

XMARK Corporation Canada

Z.A.G Industries Ltd Israel
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EXHIBIT 23

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Statement Form S-8 No 2-93025

Statement Form S-8 No 2-96778

Statement Form S-8 No 2-97283

Statement Form S-8 No 33-16669

Statement Form S-3 No 33-12853

Statement Form S-3 No 33-19930

Statement Form S-8 No 33-39553

Statement Form S-3 No 33-46212

Statement Form S-3 No 33-47889

Statement Form S-8 No 33-55663

Statement Form S-8 No 33-62565

Statement Form S-S No 33-62567

Statement Form S-8 No 33-62575

Statement Form S-8 No 333-42346

Statement Form S-S No 333-42582

Statement Form S-8 No 333-64326

Statement Form S-3 No 333-1 10279

Statement Form S-3 No 333-117607

Form S-4 No 333-133027

Form S-3ASR No 333-153646

Hartford Connecticut

February 19 2009

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Report on Schedule

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following registration statements of The Stanley Works

and subsidiaries of our reports dated February 19 2009 with respect to the consolidated financial statements

of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of The

Stanley Works and our report included in the following paragraph with respect to the financial statement

schedule of The Stanley Works included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended January

2009

Our audits also included the financial statement schedule of The Stanley Works listed in Item 15a This

schedule is the responsibility of The Stanley Works management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on this schedule based on our audits In our opinion as to which the date is February 19 2009 the financial

statement schedule referred to above when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Registration Statement

Registration Statement
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EXHIBIT 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We the undersigned officers and directors of The Stanley Works Connecticut corporation the Corpora

tion hereby severally constitute Bruce Beatt and Kathryn Sherer our true and lawful attorneys with full

power of substitution to sign for us and in our names in the capacities indicated below the Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended January 2009 of the Corporation filed herewith the Form 10-K and any

and all amendments thereof and generally to do all such things in our name and on our behalf in our

capacities as officers and directors to enable the Corporation to comply with the annual filing requirements

under the Securities Act of 1934 as amended including all requirements of the Securities and Exchange

Commission and all requirements of any other applicable law or regulation hereby ratifying and confirming

our signatures as they may be signed by our said attorneys or any of them to such Form 10-K and any and all

amendments thereto

SIGNATURE TITEE DTE

/s/ John Lundgren Chairman Chief February 17 2009

John Lundgren
Executive Officer

and Director

/s/ John Breen Director February 2009

John Breen

/s/ Patrick Campbell Director February 2009

Patrick Campbell

/s/ Carlos Cardoso Director February 17 2009

Carlos Cardoso

/s/ Virgis Colbert Director February 2009

Virgis Colbert

Is Robert Coutts Director February 2009

Robert Coutts

/s/ Eileen Kraus Director February 17 2009

Eileen Kraus

/s/ Marianne Parrs Director February 17 2009

Marianne Parrs

/s/ Lawrence Zimmerman Director February 2009

Lawrence Zimmerman
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EXHIBIT 31ia

CERTIFICATIONS

John Lundgren certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13 a- 15e and 15 d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 25 2009 Is John Lundgren

John Lundgren

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBFt 3lib

CE RTI FICATtONS

Donald Allan Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fbirly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and fbr the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and l5d-l5e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5f and l5d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and iresentcd in

this report our conclusions about effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants hoard of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 25 2009 /s/ Donald Allan Jr

Donald Allan Jr

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

TI-IF STANLEY WORKS

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Stanley Works the Company on Form 10-K for the period

ending January 2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Conimission on the date hereof the

Report John Lundgren Chairman and Chief Executive Officer certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C ss 1350

as adopted pursuant to ss 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a orl5d of the Securities

Exchange Act of l934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents
in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

/s/ John Lundgren

John Lundgren

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 25 2009
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EXHIBIT 32 ii

THE STANLEY WORKS

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of The Stanley Works the Company on Form 10-1K for the period

ending January 2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report Donald Allan Jr Vice President and Chief Financial Officer certify pursuant to 18 IJ.S.C ss 1350

as adopted pursuant to ss 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

/s/ Donald Allan Jr

Donald Allan Jr

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 25 2009
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